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NICHOLAS E.HUNTER
MAYOR

CITY OF LAI(E CHARLES
325 Pulo Street . P.O. Box 3706

Lake Charles, L A 70602-3706
(337) 491,-1,2s1 . FAX (334 491.-"t225

DEPARTMENTOF FINANCE
KAREN D. HARRELL, DIRECTOR

March 29,2018

Honorable Nicholas Hunter, Mayor
Members of the City Council

Dear Mayor and City Council Members:

In accordance with requirements of the City's Charter and applicable state law, I am pleased to submit the

Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the City of Lake Charles for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2017.

This report has been prepared by the City's Finance Department in conformity with generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP), and the basic financial statements contained herein have been independently audited in accordance
with generally accepted auditing standards. However, the completeness and reliability of all information presented in
this report remains the responsibility of the City's management. McElroy, Quirk, and Burch (APC), a firm of licensed

certified public accountants, have audited the City of Lake Charles's financial statements. The purpose of the

independent audit is to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free of material misstatement.
The independent auditor concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an

unmodified opinion on these financial statements. The independent auditor's report is presented as the first component

ofthe financial section ofthis report.

Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) requires certain government-wide statements as well as the fund
financial statements. The purposes and contents of these financial statements are further explained in Management's
Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) which follows the independent auditor's report and should be read in conjunction
with this letter of transmittal for a more complete understanding of the City's financial condition and activity.

City Profile

The City of Lake Charles was incorporated in I 867 and just last year celebrated its sesquicentennial anniversary. The

Southwest Louisiana community rallied with the City hosting numerous events throughout the year celebrating this
significant milestone. Lake Charles is the principal city and trade center of Southwest Louisiana, which is comprised

of a five parish area with a population of 301,752. According to the U. S. Census bureau, Lake Charles' population

was 7 1,993 in 2010. Although the formal census is taken every ten years, the bureau provided an estimated population

of 76,861 in 2016. The corporate limits of the City include 45.8 square miles. Lake Charles, which is in Calcasieu

Parish, is located on Interstate 10, approximately two hours east of Houston, Texas and west of Baton Rouge,

Louisiana.

The City operates under a mayor-council form of government pursuant to a 1961 home rule charter, and provides a

full range of traditional municipal services such as public safety, construction and maintenance of municipal
infrastructure including water and wastewater, parks and recreation, planning and zoning, trash collection and solid
waste disposal and public transportation. The City also has specialized facilities such as a municipal golf course, a

civic center coliseum and theater complex, and two art centers. All of these activities are integral parts of the city
government and are included in this report. Certain components of the judicial function are legally separate entities
which are discretely presented in these statements as "component units."

United for Progress and Prosperity
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The City adopts an annual operating budget and a project-based capital budget in accordance with procedures

established by its charter and by state statute. Although the budget document is comprehensive, covering all funds
under the City's control, legal control of expenditures is exercised primarily at the department level for the General
Fund and for each Special Revenue Fund pursuant to charter and statutory requirements. Budget-to-actual
comparisons for major funds of these types are included in this report.

The City also maintains an internal control framework designed to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance

regarding the safeguarding of assets against loss from unauthorized use or disposition, as well as the reliability of
financial records for preparing financial statements. Because the cost of intemal control should not exceed the

anticipated benefits, the objective is to provide reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance that the financial statements
are free of any material misstatements. An evaluation of internal controls and legal compliance is required by federal

law in connection with the independent audit, and the auditor's reports thereon are included in a separately issued

"uniform guidance" report.

Economic Environment

The Lake Charles area has an economic base that has been dominated by petrochemical manufacturing and refining
since the 1940's. Over the last couple of decades Southwest Louisiana has diversified its economy with aerospace and
gaming industries. The Port of Lake Charles, a deep water port with a 30-mile ship channel to the Gulf of Mexico,
was ranked by Forbes (l2ll5/17) as the 7ft of U.S. Seaports (there are 450 in the U.S.) in having the greatest increase

in value of their exports in20l7.It is estimated the total number ofjobs generated in Louisiana by the Calcasieu Ship

Channel is nearly 37,000. Chennault Industrial Airpark and the Lake Charles Regional Airport support a growing
aviation industry. Lake Charles is home to McNeese State University and Sowela Technical Community College.

Riverboat Gaming was introduced in 1993 and has provided funding for major capital improvements since that time.
Retail businesses within the City provide goods and services to a five-parish regional area. The Prien Lake Mall, a
Simon Properties development, is increasing the square footage of the mall by 65,000 square feet with the addition of
T.J. Max, Home Goods and D-Bat stores. Annual art events and over 75 annual festivals provide entertainment to both
locals and visitors.

The Business Climate report "southwest Louisiana Economic Development,2018 Edition" states that SWLA is the

nation's fastest growing region for economic gowth. Listed as reasons to live, work and invest in the area are a
booming economy, rich resources, strategic location, robust infrastructure, entertainment and culture, network of
hospitals, talented workforce, and world-class recreation.

Industrial Projects

The SWLA Economic Development Alliance recently summarized the areas economic growth with over $109 billion
in announced projects in the five parish region. To date, over $43 billion ofthose announced projects are underway,

creating more than 28,000 permanent, direct and indirect jobs.

The status of industrial projects underway is described below as obtained from the December 2017 SWLA Project

Report of the SWLA Alliance.

e Cheniere Energy in Cameron Parish began world-wide exporting of Liquid Natwal Gas (LNG) in the summer

of20l6. This $20 billion project to develop up to six natural gas liquefaction Trains to hansport affordable
natural gas around the world from Louisiana is well underway at its Sabine Pass Liquefaction (SPL) Project.

Trains I through 4 are operational. Train 5 is under construction and Train 6 is being commercialized and

has all necessary regulatory approvals in place. The project is expected to generate 4,500 constructionjobs
and 580 permanent jobs. Chenier Energy 2017 Annual Report stated that to date, approximately 300

cumulative LNG cargoes have been exported from the SPL Project, with deliveries to 25 countries and

regions worldwide.

o SASOL Ltd. Construction of an $l I billion world-scale petrochemical Ethane Cracker Complex in Westlake

is 80 percent complete as of November2017. The project, originally estimated at $8.9 billion, will triple
Sasol's chemical production capacity in the U.S. Sasol has been committed to "Louisiana First", and is hiring
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Louisiana workers and using local contractors, many from within Calcasieu Parish. Workforce is expected

to peak with 5,000-plus construction workers onsite.

Sasol announced at the end of 2017 that is has abandoned its future $13 billion gas-toJiquid project that was
put on hold in 2015. The company cited a volatile economy and low oil prices as the reason for its decision.

Cameron LNG began construction in 2014 on a $10 billion, 500 acre gas liquefaction facility at the

company's Cameron LNG terminal in Hackberry, formulating a dual-purpose import/export terminal. The

three-Train project will be able to lique$ domestically produced natural gas for export. The construction is
well underway, Train No. 1 should be operationalin2}lg, currently employing approximately 5,500 workers
each day.

Axiall Corporation and Lotte' Chemical Corporation construction project, which is visible at the junction of
Interstate l0 and 210, is two combined chemical manufacturing projects in Lake Charles that total $3 billion.
Construction jobs are estimated to peak at over 3,000. New permanent jobs will be 21 5 with average annual

salaries between $75,000 and $87,000, plus benefits. Lotte' Chemical USA announced in April, 2017 that
they were moving their headquarters to Lake Charles.

Impact of Growth

Two of the biggest indicators of the impact of the industrial growth are the local employment statistic and the taxable

sales reports. Growth has steadily increased for both in the last several years.

As reported by Louisiana Workforce March 12,2018, total nonfarm Lake Charles MSA employment was estimated

at I 15,600 for January 201 8. This shows a gain of 4,700 jobs over the year. It is the 79n consecutive month with an

over-the-year increase. The construction sector added 3,200 jobs over the year. Both the trade, transportation and

utilities sector and the professional and business services sector added 600 jobs from last January. The unemployment
for January 2018 was 3.5 percent. Although these numbers are impressive, employers are stmggling to retain their
workforce in such a competitive job market.

January
2018

Il-axe Ctrarles MSA Nonfarm Ernployment
Jl,-8...on.lly Adru.bd +X4 A.Eonrlly AdJu.bC

116,@0

1 1O,OOO

ro6,@o

too,ooo

95,0OO

0o,ooo
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Over the Morrth: -1

the Year: 4.
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Taxable sales are an indicator of the increase the market as it relates to the indusrial growth. Much of the increase in
taxes is related to the manufacturing industries, which are located outside of the incorporated areas of the parish;

therefore the sales tax for the City of Lake Charles has not increased at the same rate as the parish. Calendar year sale

taxcollectionsfortheCityincreasedby3.5percentn2013;6.9percentin20l5andby4.2percentin20l7. While
the increase parish-wide calendar year taxable sales increased by I I percent in 2013; 13.8 percent in 2015 andby 29.4
percent in2017.

Affordable housing is a concern amongst citizens. Many new hotels and apartment complexes have been built. As
per the City's Planning Department, there were 358 single family units and 79 multi-family buildings with 629 units
permiued in 2016, with a value of $ 1 16. I million. ln 2017 when there were 393 single family units and 5 I multi-
family building with 655 units permitted with a value of $144.6 million. All are in various stages of construction or
have been completed.

Traffrc congestion in both Calcasieu and Cameron parishes and especially along the I-10 corridor is the most evident
problem created by the additional workforce in the area. Infrastructure improvements are needed for streets, water
and wastewater. The City, Parish and State governments are working together on comprehensive plans to address

these needs, as well as drainage improvements. The City continues to provide for increased services with staffing
levels that have remained constant since 2009.

Tourism

Tourism is Southwest Louisiana's second largest economic driver. Golden Nugget Casino opened their $700 million
complex on Port property adjacent to the L'Auberge Casino in December of 2014. The new casino grew the gaming
market, with average monthly gross gaming proceeds of $24 million per month in 2017. A new $85 million hotel
tower opened in the fall of 2017 and added 300 rooms, bringing the total property's room count to more than I,000.

L'Auberge Casino which opened in 2005 had monthly gross gaming revenues of $26.4 million per month in20l7.
Both casinos operate full service, resort-style facilities, with pools, golf courses, restaurants and high-end
entertainment on a continual basis. The Calcasieu Gaming District also receives funds from racetrack gaming and an

additional riverboat located within the parish. Total taxable gaming proceeds were reduced by two percent in 2016

but increase slightly in20l7.
According to the Southwest Louisiana Convention and Visitors Bureau, SW Louisiana hosts over 75 annual festivals
and diversified arts and cultural events. The area also hosts 100 different sporting events annually at its football,
soccer and ball fields, basketball courts and golfcourses.

Current and Future Financial Plans

The City's primary operating account, the General Fund had an ending frrnd balance of $35 million at September 30,
20 1 7, which represents 49 percent of 2017 expenditures and operational transfers. This was an increase of $5 million
from fiscal year 2016, and included a transfer of S2.8 million for capital projects.

The adopted General Fund Operating Budget for fiscal year 2018 projects an operating surplus $538,806 but
additionally provides for a transfer of accumulated fund balance reserves of $4, I 00,000 to be transferred to the Capital
Project funds to pay for ongoing improvements to the City's wastewater system basins and to pay for additional
drainage projects. As budgeted, the fund balance at the end of fiscal year 2018 would total $31.4 million.

The voters of Lake Charles approved a one-quarter percent (ll4%) sales tax proposition in October 20 1 5. The current
economic gowth in the area necessitated increases in the City's pay scales in order to be able to recruit and retain a
suitable workforce. The additional revenue stream was needed to ensure the long-term affordability of an increase in
pay for all employee groups.

All full time City employees received across the board pay increases in January of each year since 2015 through 20 18.

The pay increases, and corresponding increase in base pay for all employee groups, was provided for in the 2015 sales

tax referendum.
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Budgeted salaries and fringe benefits of $45 million account for 64 percent of the General Fund departmental
expenditure budget of $70 million. Primarily a result of pay raises, this is an increase of $2.1 million over last fiscal
year's originally adopted budget. Overtime is budgeted at$2.4 million for all General Fund departments, however in
fiscal year 2017 the Fire Department was paid Sl.7 million in overtime and the Police Department's General Fund
total was $ 1.3 million. Current trends indicate the same level or increased level for 2018.

Retirement contribution rates are set annual by state retirement systems and this expenditure continues to be especially
challenging to govemmental agencies across the state. Recent notifications from these systems indicate that retirement
contribution rates will increase once again in July 2018.

Sales taxes are the City's largest revenue source, accounting for 44 percent ofall governmental revenue and 65 percent

ofthe General Fund's revenues lr:,2017. Collections ofthe new tax levy was effective in January 2016 so therefore
only nine months of collections were received, proceeds of which were deposited evenly in the General Fund and the
One Quarter Cent Tax Debt Reserve Special Revenue Fund. Fiscal year 2017 was a full year of collections, with 75

percent of the tax deposited in the General Fund and25 percent into the Debt Reserve Special Revenue Fund. On a
proportional basis for previously collected taxes, the taxes increased by 3.8 percent in fiscal year 2017 compared to a
2.1 percent in fiscal year2016.

The graph below captures the total sales tax revenue collected for March through February for each of the last five
years. For comparison purposes, the new tax levy is not included in the table below. The trend for the four month
period ofthe current fiscal year indicates that City revenues have increased by 4.3 percent over the same period last
year.

City of Lake Charles Sales Tax Collections:
March through February

s60,000

sso,oo0

S4o,ooo

s30,000

s20,000

s10,000

s-
20t2-20L3 20t3-2014 20L4-20\5 2015-2015 2016-20L7

Capital Improvements:

The City has issued $75 million in bonds for Phase 1 and 2 of the $90 million capital improvement plan that was

approved by Lake Charles voters. The City does not currently have any plans to issue the remaining $15 million in
authorized bonds. The City has applied for and received approval for a $15 million DEQ Revolving Loan that would
be used for additional improvements to the wastewater system and for a $20 million DHH Revolving Loan that would
be used for a new water treatment plant and distribution lines.

Sales tax revenues not needed to repay the bonded debt, combined with gaming revenues and use of accumulated

reserves will be used to fund projects totaling $32 million in the 2018 adopted Capital Budget. Below are highlights
of curent capital improvement projects, as of the date of this report:

Ec
(E

f
o

!
F il
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Recently completed projects from City capital funds. unless otherwise stated:

. 5ft Avenue Sewer Extension and Lift Station - $1.9 million City capital and bond funds

. Wastewater Basin Al2 Rehabilitation - $1.8 million

. Various road, sidewalk and drainage projects - Sl.9 million (Kirkman Street Drainage, Barbe Street Drainage,

5ft Avenue Drainage, Sally Mae Street, City Wide Sidewalks, Highway 14 Sidewalks, 5ft Street Sidewalks,

Texas Street Sidewalks, Hollyhill Sidewalks, 3'd Avenue Sidewalks)

' Various Utility (water and sewer) projects - Sl.4 million (Broadmoor, Creole, Stillwood and Von Blond Lift
Stations, Weaver Road Water and Sewer Extension)

. Other Governmental Projects - Sl.4 million (Civic Center Part 3 Improvements, Civic Center Boilers,
Mallard Cove Retaining Wall, Veterans Memorial Park)

Projects currently in design phase or under construction:

. Wastewater system improvements: The City is close to completing construction of a$42 million wastewater

treatment facility at the current Plant B/C location. In addition to various City funding sources, DEQ State

Revolving Loan and Priority 1 State Capital Outlay funds were used. Other Wastewater improvements
include the construction of a new administration building and the installation of an emergency generator at

Plant D; $2.5 million City capital funds and FEMA funds.

. Various drainage projects - $5.1 million City capital funds (Fairway & Muirfield Drainage, South Roosevelt
Street Drainage, Division Street Drainage, Open Lateral Maintenance, Enterprise Boulevard, River Road,

Legendre Street)

. 6m Avenue Paving and Drainage - $2.4 million City capital funds

r lst Ave Multi-Use Trail - $l million DOTD, FHWA, Recreational Trails and City capital funds

. Highway 385 multi-use trail (Clarence Street - Ryan to Lakeshore) - $t.+ million DOTD and City capital

funds

r 9y'. Frien Lake Road Relocation (Alternate 5) - $2.9 million Parish and City capital funds

. Lake Street (McNeese intersection south to Country Club) - $5 million City capital funds and Parish

Transportation funds

. Prien Lake Road Phase I (Cove Lane to Ihles Road) - $21 million City and Parish funds will be used

. Sallier Street - City capital and Parish Transportation funds

. Power Center Parkway Sewer - $2.8 million City capital funds

. WWTP Basin Rehabilitation - $3.1 million City capital funds

. Lift Station Improvements - $3.5 million City capital funds

. Various Utility (water and sewer projects) - $4.5 million City capital funds (Trunkline Rehabilitation, Nelson

Road Sewer, W. Prien Utility Extension, University Area Sewer, Hollyhill Sewer Rehabilitation, Country

Club Water)

6
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. Various road and sidewalk projects - $4.1 million City capital funds (Sally Mae Street, N Grace Street,
Comeaux Street, 5tr Ave Sidewalks, Kirkman & Opelousas Intersection, W. McNeese Sidewalks, Interstate
Corridor Beautification, 2018 City Wide Sidewalks)

. Clty Wide Asphalt Overlays 2017 - $1.6 million City capital funds

. Water Plant Improvements - $7 million City water funds (GH West Gl2 Well, SW Ground Storage Tank,
McNeese Plant Sedimentation, S

r $y' Plant Chlorine Containment, SW Plant Filter Media)

. The City has recently begun the study and design phase for a new Water Treatment Plant, with supporting
distribution lines. This project is estimated to be near $30 million and will be funded by accumulated reserves
in the Water Utility Fund and a potential loan from the Department of Health Drinking Water Revolving
Loan Fund.

Long-term financial planning:

The fund balance in the General Fund is $35 million which represents 49 percent of the 2017 budgeted expenditures

and non-capital transfers. It is the City's policy to maintain a 30 percent minimum fund balance target for the General
Fund.

Annually the City completes a five year capital improvement plan. This serves as the basis for budgeting and planning
the future of the City's capital assets. The Planning Department studies infrastructure needs for Lake Charles and the
surrounding areas beyond the required five year plan.

Awards and Acknowledgements

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) has awarded a Certificate of
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Lake Charles for its comprehensive annual financial
report for the fiscal year ended September 30,2016. The City also received this award for its reports of the preceding
thirty-two years. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, a government must publish an easily readable

and efficiently organized comprehensive annual financial report. Such reports must satis! both GAAP and applicable
legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for one year only. We believe our current report continues to meet Certificate
of Achievement program requirements, and we are submitting it to GFOA to determine its eligibility for another
certificate.

The preparation of this report could not have been accomplished without the efficient and dedicated efforts of the

Finance Department staff. We also would like to welcome Mayor Hunter and Councilman Johnnie Thibodeaux. We
acknowledge them and the other City Council members and appreciate their interest and support in planning and

conducting the financial affairs of the City in an efficient and effective manner.

Respectfully submitted,

furt* P flaut'ul
Karen Domingue Harrell
Director of Finance
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

Honorable Mayor Nicholas Hunter
and City Council

City of Lake Charles
Lake Charles, Louisiana

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the
aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Lake Charles, Louisiana, as of and for the year

ended September 30, 2017, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management's Responsibilaty for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible forthe preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordanle with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this
includes the design, implementltion, and maintenance of internal control relevantto the preparation and

fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did

not audit the iinancial statements of the City Court of Lake Charles or the Office of the Ward Three
Marshal, which represent 0.6 percent, 0.8 percent and 1.4 percent, respectively, of the assets,. net
position and revenues of the governmental activities. Those statements were audited by other auditors
whose report has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to the amounts included for
the City iourt of Lake Charles and the Office of the Ward Three Marshal, is based solely on the report of

the other auditors. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in

the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Sfandards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require

that wd plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

15
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error. ln making those risk assessments, the auditor considers rnternal control relevant to the
entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinions.

Opinions

ln our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other auditors, the financial statements
referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the
governmental activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component
units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Lake Charles,
Louisiana, as of September 30, 2017, and the respective changes in financial position, and, where
applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

Req u i red Su pple me ntary I nformatio n

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management's discussion and analysis, budgetary comparison information, and other postemployment
benefits - schedule of funding progress, schedule of employer's proportionate share of net pension
liability, and schedule of employer's pension contributions, as identified in the table of contents, be
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the
basic financial statements, is required by the GovernmentalAccounting Standards Board, who considers
it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We and other auditors have applied certain limited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the
methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our
audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the
information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an
opinion or provide any assurance.
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Other lnformation

Our audit was conducted for the purposes of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the City of Lake Charles, Louisiana's basic financial statements. The introductory
section, schedule of total compensation for Mayor, City of Lake Charles, combining nonmajor
governmental fund statements, combining internal service fund statements, schedules of capital assets
used in the operation of governmental funds, and statistical section, are presented for purposes of
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements

The schedule of total compensation for Mayor, City of Lake Charles, combining and individual
nonmajor governmental fund statements, schedules of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund
balance-budget and actual, combining internal service fund statements, and schedules of capital assets
used in the operation of governmental funds, are the responsibility of management and were derived
from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the
basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America by
us and other auditors. ln our opinion, based on our audit, the procedures performed as described above,
and the report of the other auditors, the schedule of total compensation for Mayor, City of Lake Charles,
combining and individual nonmajor governmental fund statements, schedules of revenues, expenditures
and changes in fund balance-budget and actual, combining internal service fund statements, and
schedules of capital assets used in the operation of governmental funds are fairly stated in all material
respects in relation to the basic financial siatements as a whole.

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures
applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or
provide any assurance on them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

ln accordance wilh Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March
29, 2018, on our consideration of the City of Lake Charles, Louisiana's, internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and
grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide
an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part

of an audit performed in accordance wilh Government Auditing Standards in considering City of Lake
Charles, Louisiana's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

/rl'gz^V,, A;/ r &.--/)
Lake Charles, Louisiana
March 29, 2018
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CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

This discussion and analysis seeks to provide an overview of the financial activity and performance of the City of
Lake Charles for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2017, and accompanies the basic financial statements
beginning on page 3 I of this report. The transmittal letter on pages I - 7 of this report provides further information
from a broader perspective, and should be consulted in conjunction with this discussion and the financial statements
themselves for a more complete understanding of the City's financial condition and economic environment.

Financial Highlights

30,2016 balance of $461 million. Per the Statement of Activities, total Governmental and Business-Type
Activities revenues of $147 million were used to cover total expenses of $124 million, primarily public
safety and public works related activities.

increase of 3 percent from the previous year total of $142 million. The sales tax revenue of $64.6 million
accounts for 44 percent of total revenues. Those revenues increased by $4 million in 2017 from the prior
year. Included is an additional one-quarter cent levy which was effective January 201 6. The nine months of
revenue reported in fiscal year2016 totaled $4.5 million; total collected for the fiscal year 2017 was $6.4
million. Property taxes of $10.6 million represent an increase of 4 percent from $10.2 million in the
previous year due to additional property being added to the tax rolls in 20 I 6.

million in2017 from $143 million in2016. The Capital Project Fund accounted for the largest decrease of
reserves to pay for the construction of a $42 million wastewater trea0nent plant, which is nearly completed.
Funds had been accumulated in the two previous years for this project.

million collected in 2016. This change is primarily due to additional tax revenue as mentioned above and a
reduction of intergovernmental revenue, which relates to funding from DEQ for the wastewater treafinent
plant.

the $117.5 million spent in 2016. Expenses of $50 million for capital projects in2017 is an increase from
$33 million spent in 2016, primarily due to the expenses of the treatment plant.

operating and capital ffansfers of $7 million, which included $2.8 million in reserves to the Capital Project
Funds for wastewater projects, resulted in a total fund balance increase of $5 million from the previous
fiscal year. The ending fund balance was $35 million at September 30,2017:' $30 million at the end of
fiscal year 2016.

The Financial Statements

This report encompasses a series of financial statements consisting of the following components:

1. The govemment-wide financial statements are designed to provide an organization-wide overview similar in
nature to the form ofreporting used for private-sector businesses. The two components ofthis presentation

are:

all of the City's assets and liabilities and reporting the difference between the two as "net position."
Changes in net position over time may provide an indication of either an improving or declining
financial position.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

fund net position during the City's 2017 fiscal year. This statement takes into account all revenues and

expenses accrued for that year, regardless ofwhen cash is received or paid.

The government-wide statements presented on pages 32 - 33 of this report are a result of the financial
reporting model established by Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 34. These

statements also distinguish governmental activities, which are those city functions principally supported by
taxes and intergovernmental revenues from business-type activities which are intended to recover a

significant portion of their costs through user fees and charges. The City's governmental activities include
such functions as public safety (fire and police) and public works (principally streets, sanitation and

sewerage), while its business-type activities consist of a civic center, golf course, transit system, and water
utility.

The govemment-wide statements also include two component units, City Court and the Ward Three
Marshal, which are legally separate entities with financial dependency on the City as "primary government."
They do not include other legally separate local entities which are financially and operationally independent
of the City. This discussion and analysis pertains only to the City as primary government.

2. Fund financial statements report financial data for individual funds into which the City's accounts are

organized to maintain compliance with finance-related legal and contractual requirements. This report
includes two categories of funds, governmental and proprietary. (The City has no fiduciary funds.)

The govemmental fund financial statements generally cover the same functions as the governmental
activities in the government-wide statements but differ in their focus on near-term spendable resources

rather than longer-term measurement of net position. A comparison of the fund and government-wide
statements with respect to governmental functions is useful in gaining a longer-term perspective than that
provided solely by the near-term focus of governmental fund statements, and reconciliation is provided in
the governmental fund statements to support such comparison.

The City maintains twelve individual governmental funds, five of which are classified as major. Budget to
actual statements for three funds are separately displayed in the Required Supplemental Information section

beginning on page 92 of this report. There are eight special revenue funds which are aggregated into a

single display on those schedules but are individually presented in the combining statements referred to
below.

The proprietary fund financial statements cover business-type activities in which external customers are

charged for services, as well as internal service activities funded by charges to other city funds and operating
units. The enterprise fund category in these statements corresponds to the business-type activities reported in
the government-wide statements. The internal service category consists of two funds which account for risk
financing and employee group medical benefits. All proprietary fund statements are reported on the accrual

basis of accounting as used in the government-wide statements and in private-sector business.

3. Notes to the financial statements provide additional information and explanation necessary for full
understanding of the government-wide and fund financial statements and are presented on pages 46 - 89 of
this report.

Required Supplemental Information is included with information related to OPEB, Net Pension Liability
and budget to actual schedules for the major govemmental funds.

Other information, consisting of the combining statements for the eight non-major governmental funds and

two internal service funds, is presented immediately following the Required Supplemental Information.

The statistical section contains primarily ffend data and non-financial information about the City's various
activities.

4.

5.

6.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

City-wide Financial Analysis

As shown on the government-wide financial statements, the City's net position at the end of 2017 was
S483,858,406, with 75 percent of this total consisting of capital assets, i.e., physical plant, equipment, and
infrastructure, less related outstanding debt. An additional 7 percent of the net position is externally restricted by
law or contract, leaving 18 percent as unrestricted net position which is generally available for use at the City's
discretion. Year-end assets, liabilities, and net position are summarized below. It should be noted that the investment
in capital assets is not available as a financial resource for payment of related debt, other liabilities, or future costs,
which will require the use of either existing financial resources or future revenues. Also note that capital assets are
reported net of accumulated depreciation and that the infrastructure portion of these reported assets includes only
those projects completed since 1975.

NET POSITION
(in thousands)

Current and other assets

Capital assets

Total assets

Defened outflows of resources

[.on g-term liabilities

Cunent and other liabilities

Total liabilities

Defened inflows of res ources

Net position:

Net investment in capital assets

Restricted

Unrestricted

Total net position

2017 2016

s t67,675 $ 174,061

371,620 338,659

539,295 512,720

15,650 18,897

141,797 140,776

20,920 19,220

162,717 159,%

2,928 3,191

294,028 259,977

33,409 31,273

61,863 77,180

_$_3 89,300_ _q_3 68,439_

Business-Type

Activities Total

2017 20162017 2016

s 32,382 S 30,129

69,202 68,622

101,584 98,751

$ 200,0s7 $ 204,190

440,822 407,281

&0,879 611"471

1,565 1,429 17,215 20,326

5,494 4,915

2,997 2,409

R 4ql 1 7)4

147,291 145,691

23,917 21,629

171,208 167,

100 68 3,028

Govemmental

Activities

69,202_ 68,622_

25,356 24,166

$ 94.,558 $ 2,788

363,230 328,599

33,449 31,273

87,219 101

$ 483,858 $ 461.2t8

Total net position of $483,858,406 is an increase of 522,640,231 or 4.9 percent from the 2076 net position of
$461,218,175. The change in net position for governmental activities was a 5.7 percent increase, while business-type
activities experienced a 1.9 percent increase. Explanations ofthe changes are outlined in the pertinent sections
below.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The following chart summarizes expenses and related program revenues for the various governmental and business-
type functions displayed in the financial statements. The significance of this comparison is that the portion of each

function's expenses not offset by program revenues is left to be covered by general revenues, namely taxes and other
restricted sources.

Expenses and Program Revenues

o
'roc
(U
o
o
F

$45,m0
$lm,m0
$31i,000

$30,m0
$25,m0
$2o,mo
$15,m0
$1o,mo
$5,0m

$o

On an overall basis, the City's total costs lrl,2017 were $104 million for governmental activities and $19.7 million
for business-type activities. The portions not covered by program revenues, or net costs funded by taxes and other
general revenues, were S74 million for governmental activities. The public safety function (fire and police)
historically accounts for the largest share of net cost, with $34.6 million in excess expenses over program revenues
during 2017.Total expenses of $124 million are a9 percent increase over 2016 expenses of $114 million.

The City's total revenue for2017 was $146.6 million, a 3 percent increase from 2016 revenues of $142.3 million.
Sales tax revenue for the Governmental Activities increased by $4 million or 7 percent primarily due to an

additional one-quarter cent sales tax levy that was collected for a fulI year in 2017, compared to only nine months of
fiscal year 2016. Capital grants and contribution's decrease of $3.5 million is related to funding for the wastewater
treatment plant.

The Statementof Activities for2017 categorizesthe City's revenues as eitherprogram revenues, which are service
charges or grants and contributions for specific governmental or business-type functions, or general revenues which
include most taxes and other revenue sources of a government-wide nature.

f .ap**-*l
I o*"r"nr". 
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CHANGES INNEIPOSMON
(in thousands)

Covemmental

Activities
Business-Type

Activities Total
2017

$ 20,435

5,143

4,939

10,616

&,5%
5,723

10,659

6,057

128,067

5,813

37,723

42,253

2,656

6,507

6,159

3,150

2016 2017

35,717

7,89s

5,101

10,616

&,596
5,723

10,658

l5

5,813

37,723

42,253

2,656

6,507

6,159

3,150

3,789

1,718

3,362
10,845

2016

34,808

6,837

8,614

10,217

60,570

5,473

10,800

5,033

142,352

5,613

36,589

34,279

2,521

5,839

7,191

2,7M
3,949

1,680

3,067
10,174

2017 20r6
Program revenues:

Charges for services
Operating grants & contributions
Capital grants & contributions

General revenues:
Property toas
Sales ta>as

Utility franchise toas
Riverboat gaming taes
Other general revenues

Total revenues

E>penses:

General govemment

Public safety

Public works

Plannin g and developrnent

General services

C-onununity services

lnterest in long-term debt
Civic Center

C-olf Course

Transit
Water

Total eryenses

E><ces s before trans fers

Transfers

Increase (decrease) net position

Net position - beginning
Net position - ending

$ 20,187

4,002

8,347

10,217

60,570

5,473

10,800

4,758

124,354

$ 15,282

2,752

262

$ 14,621

2,935

267

275

18,548 17,998

5,613

36,589

34,279

) \)1
5,839

7,191

z,lss
1,718

3362
10,845

,iqs
1,680

3,067
10,774

1

23,806 29,618 (1,166) (872) 22,640

(2,936) (2,s16) 2,e36 2,s16

20,870 27,102 1,770 l,&4 22,640 28,76

368,430 34t,328 92,788 91,144 461,218

$ 483,858 $ 461,218

28,746_

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Major components of program and general revenues, together with total expenses and the resulting change in net
position, are summarized below for the 201 7 fiscal year.

As indicated by the above table and the following chart, sales taxes are the City's largest single revenue source,
accounting for 44 percent of all government-wide revenue in 2017. Collections of $64.6 million are an increase of
$4 million from 2016. The City's collection of an additional one-quarter cent sales tax beginning in January 2016
amounted to $4.5 million in new revenue, with nine months of collections in 2016 and 56.4 million for the full year
n 2017 and accounts for much of the increase. A comparison of previously existing tax levies indicates taxes
increased by 3.8 percent. The current trend for the past 4 month's collections indicates an increase of 4.3 percent
when compared to the actual collections for the same 4 month period in fiscal year 2017.

The capital grant and contribution funds reflect a decrease of $3.5 million in2017 and are due to reductions in state
funding for various projects, such as the wastewater treatment plant.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Property taxes account for 7.2 percent of total revenues and increased by 4 percent in 201'7. Gaming tax revenue

accounts for 7 .2 percent of total revenues. The City of Lake Charles and the Calcasieu Parish Police Jury created the

Calcasieu Parish Gaming Revenue District and in April 2007 entered into a cooperative endeavor agreement to pool

most gaming revenues received parish-wide. Revenues for fiscal year 2017 decreased slightly for the second year in

a row. The Golden Nugget Casino opened in December of 2014 and has grown the Lake Area's gaming market but
revenues current trends show flat or slightly declined revenue growth.

Total expenses increased by 9 percent to $124 million compared to $113.6 million in 2016. The public works
category reflects the largest categorical increase of $8 million and reflects the expense of the construction of the

wastewater treatment plant.

Analysis of Fund Financial Statements

This discussion pertains to the financial statements for the various funds into which the City's accounts are divided
to comply with legal requirements. As previously noted, the two fund classifications represented in these statements

are governmental and p1Sp11glAly funds. The below discussion of the Fund Financial Statements is a better
representation of the City's current financial condition, rather than the above statements, which represent a longer-
term picture ofresources and liabilities.

The City's governmental funds had a combined fund balance of $132,538,722 at the end of fiscal year 2017, a

decrease of $10.8 million from fiscal year 2016 balance of $143 million. The fund balance in the General Fund
increased by $5 million but was offset by a reduction of $16 million in the Capital Project Fund for expenses

primarily related to the wastewater treatment plant. The ending fund balance of $35 million in the General Fund

compares $30 million in 2016 and reflects an increase in revenues.

Revenues bv Maior Source - All Activities

Operating & capital
grants & contributions

8.9o/o

All other
4.3o/o

Charges for services
24.4o/o

Sales ta:ces

44.1o/o

Property tures
7.2o/o
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The City's proprietary funds' net position increased from $92,787,941 lri,2016 to $94,558,084. The Water Fund's
net position increased by $2.8 million as the City continues to accumulate funds for future capital improvements and
expansions to the City's water system, primarily a new water treafinent plant with supporting transport lines.

General Fund Summary

The General Fund is the City's principal operating fund, accounting for nearly half of all revenue received by the
City and 6l percent of revenue for all governmental funds.

The adopted budget projected a $1.4 million deficit between operating revenues and expenditures and transfers,
including a transfer for capital projects of $1.5 million. Actual revenues exceeded budgeted revenues by $3 million
and operating expenditures were $3.4 million below budget so the result was in increase in fund balance for the year
of $5 million.

The General Fund revenues of $75,905,138 were an increase of $5,757,176 or 8 percent over fiscal year 2016
collections of $70,147,962.Total sales tax revenues of $49 million accounts for 65 percent of all General Fund
revenues. The City began collecting an additional quarter-cent sales tax levy on January 1,2016. The distribution of
that tax included $2.3 million in 2016 but the allocation changed in2017 and the amount recorded in the General
Fund was $4.8 million. Previously existing sales taxes increased by $1.6 million or 3.8 percent. Property taxes
account for 12 percent of General Fund revenues and increased to $9.4 million, an increase of 4 percent due to
increased properfy values for new construction. 2016 was a reassessment year and the City rolled back their millage
rate from 15.35 to 15.23.

Actual General Fund operating expenditures of $64,037,881 were an increase of 6.9 percent over prior year
expenditures of $59,913,041. Salaries of $26 million accounts for 41 percent of total expenditures and were up $1.2
million or 5 percent from prior year. As a result of the October 2015 election, the City implemented a new pay plan
effective January l, 2016. ln 2016, all Fire Department personnel received a ten percent across the board increase
and all other employees received an eight percent across the board pay increase. Effective January 1,2017, all full
time employees received a two percent across the board increase. In both years, this was in addition to the two
percent longevity pay for eligible employees. Entry level pay for all firemen and police offrcers were adjusted to
reflect the across the board increases. Starting pay for non-public safety positions was also increased.

Overtime increased to $3.4 million in2017 compared to $3 million in20l6, of which 92 percent is for the Fire and

Police Departments. For most of the fiscal year, retirement contribution rates were 26.5 percent for the Fire
Department and 30.75 percent for the Police Department and 13.25 percent for all other employees. Contribution
expenses for all retirement systems went from $2.9 million in 2010 to $5.57 million in 2016 and $6 million in the
2017 fiscal year. Contribution rates for all systems will increase again, effective July l,2018. The City has

maintained a constant staffing level since 201 I but have less vacant positions throughout the year due to increased
starting pay ranges.

The General Fund had operating transfers of $4 million in fiscal year 2017 compared to $4.5 million in 2016 which
were necessary to subsidize the grant funds and the proprietary funds. Fiscal year 2016 included a transfer of $7
million to the Capital Project Fund for wastewater system improvements.

The 2017 original adopted budget included a transfer of $ I .5 million in reserves to the Capital Project Fund to pay
for a sewer basin cleanout program that is necessary due to an EPA compliance order. It is the intention to fund this
program each year from the General Fund. As allowed by ordinance, funds budgeted for transfers for operating
subsidies can also be used to fund capital subsidies, therefore an additional $1.3 million was transferred from the
General Fund to the Capital Project Fund.

In summary, operating revenues exceeded operational expenditures and transfers by $7.8 million but capital
transfers of $2.8 million resulted in an increase of $4,984,269 in fund balance. The General Fund's ending balance
lr;,2017 was $35,009,807, which represents 49 percent of total expenditures and all transfers made from the fund that
year. The amount at2016 fiscal year end was $30,025,538.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Other Major Fund Summar.v

The riverboat taxes recorded in the Riverboat Gaming Special Revenue Fund decreased this year to $10.6 million
compared to $10.8 million in 2016. Golden Nugget Casino opened in December 2014 and increased the gaming

market, although the current trend does reflect a slight downturn from the initial increase. Revenues in previous
years had exceeded transfers and had resulted in fund balance reserves of $4.1 million at the end of 2015. However
transfers of $13.8 million in 2016 and $ll million in2017 have reduced fund balance reserves to $745,000 atthe
end of the fiscal year. Additional transfers were primarily for capital projects.

The Wastewater Special Revenue Fund revenues exceeded $17 million in both fiscal years 2017 and 2016 with
sewer user fees slightly reduced from the prior year. Sewer fee rates have not increased since fiscal year 2014, which
was the final year of a rate structure increase that was approved in 2010. Sales taxes of 16 percent of one cent are

dedicated to wastewater and increased by 3.8 percent to $4.1 million. Operating expenses of $10 million is an

increase of 7 percent from $9.4 million in 2016.

Wastewater funds are transferred each year to the Capital Project Fund and to debt service funds to pay for debt

service obligations. The transfer to the Capital Project Fund is used for infrastructure improvements to the

wastewater system. Needed expansions and improvements were considered when the rate structure was adopted in
2009 so the revenues collected are insufficient to cover all needed capital improvements of the system. A new rate

schedule was recently adopted for water and sewer fees and will be phased in over the next several years. In 2016

total transfers of $13 million included $9.5 million for capital improvements. Total transfers in 2017 were $6.8
million, and included $3.5 million for capital improvements. Both years transfers included $3 million for debt

service payments. Fund balance reserves from 2016 of $3.3 million were increased by $l.l million in2017 to $4.4
million.

The Debt Service Fund expenditures of $9.4 million in2017 compare to $8.7 million in 2016. The increase was due

to the repayment of the DEQ loan. The other financing sources in the current year reflected the transactions of a
bond refunding. The May 2017 refunding included the remainder of the Public Improvement Bonds originally
issued in 2007 and a portion of the Public Improvement Bonds originally issued in 2010. Par amount of $5,920,000

of the 2007 Public Improvement Bonds were refunded and $19,720,000 of the 2010 Public Improvement Bonds

were refunded. Additional bond proceeds were used to cover costs of issuance and future interest costs. Transfers of
$9 million into the debt service funds come primarily from the Wastewater, Gaming and Capital Project funds. The

City continues to draw down funds from the 2011 DEQ loan as needed for sewer plant improvements, the proceeds

ofthis debt is recorded in the Capital Project Fund.

The Capital Projects Fund expenditures of $50 million account for 35 percent of all governmental fund expenditures

and compares to $33 million in 2016. The increase is primarily attributable to $28 million spent in 2017, compared

to $14 million which was paid in 2016 for the ongoing construction of the wastewater treatment plant. The 2016

transfers of $29 million into the fund included $18.6 million from the General, Riverboat Gaming, Wastewater and

other special revenue funds and were being spent primarily for the wastewater treafinent plant. Transfers of $15

million in 2017 are from those same sources but are used for more customary annual capital expenditures. Fund

balance was decreased by $16 million to $77 million from $93 million in 2016. The major portion of those funds

were accumulated in the previous year to be spent on the plant in this fiscal year.

The business-type activities revenues of $15 million are unchanged from fiscal year 2016. Operating expenses, less

depreciation, increased by $l.l million overprevious year due to increase in salary and fringe benefit costs. Total
net position increased by $1.7 million from the prior year. While the Water Fund had an increase of $2.8 million and

continues to build reserves for a new water plant, the other funds had a cumulative net loss of $1.7 million, most of
which represents depreciation expense.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Capital Assets

The City's total net investment in capital assets of $441 million at the end of the 2017 fiscal year was an increase of
8 percent from $407 million at the end of 2016. The increase of $24 million in completed capital assets includes
various wastewater and water system improvements and some street project, much of which were included as work
inprogressinfiscalyear2016. The$35millionofconstructioninprogressin2016 included$16.5millionforthe
new wastewater featment plant. Additional work on the plant in fiscal year 2017 added $28.5 million more for that
project. Total construction in progress of $63 million includes $45 million for the treatment plant. Other projects
under construction include streets, water system improvements and other various sewer projects.

The voters of Lake Charles approved a $90 million bond issue in November 2006. The City has issued $75 million
in bonds and the proceeds were used for improving streets and roads, park and recreation facilities, water and
wastewater systems, downtown and/or lakefront development infrasffucture and economic development initiatives
within the City. fuverboat gaming revenue, sales tax revenues and funds from sewer user fees are used to repay the
debt.

As of September 30, 2017 , the City has spent most of the funds. Four of the five specific local road projects named
in the bond issue have been completed to date. Remaining bond funds will be used primarily on the Lake Sffeet
project which is currently under construction. The bond referendum included $15 million for matching funds for
improvements to state roads; however this category of bond funds were not issued due to lack of state funding.

Major completed capital projects during the current year included S10 million in wastewater system improvements
and $2.9 million in street improvements in the Governmental Activities. Changes in the Business-t)?e activates
include $ I .6 million for water system improvements.

Major projects that are included in Construction in Progress are as follows:

. Wastewater system improvements account for $52 million in construction in progress, including
Wastewater Treatment Plant B/C construction of $45 million; Plant A basin project $1.8 million

o Various street projects under construction total S5.7 million

o Various water system improvement projects total $2.5 million.

Components of the City's capital assets are summarized in the following table. As previously noted, reported value
for infrasffucture is limited to projects completed since 1975. Additional detail is provided by the financial
statements and notes thereto (Note 4-C).

Net lnvestnrent in Capital Assets as of September30,2017

land
Construction in progress

Buildings
Inprovenrents other than
buildings

Equipment

lnfrastructure

Total

2017

$ 16,180

60,899

27,974

37,&3

12,894

216,030

_$ y1,620

2016

$ 16,180

33,326

28,9s9

40,171

12,015

208,008

_$_338,69_

2017

$ 2,105

2,740

5,754

55,348

3,255

2016

$ 2,10s

l,g3g

5,94

54,956

3,628

Covemrnental

Activities

Business-type

Activities Total

2017 2016

s 18,285 $ 18,285

63,639 35,265

33,728 34,953

92,991 95,127

16,149 15,93

216,030

$ 69,202 $ 68,622 $ 40,822 $ Q7,281
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Debt Administration

As of September 30, 2017, the City's Governmental Activities reported Sl42 million in non-current liabilities
compared to $14l million in the previous year, relatively unchanged for all liabilities. Bonded debt of $57.7 million
is payable from future annual appropriations, all of the outstanding bond principal is due within ten years.

The City has no outstanding general obligation debt to which a bond rating can be assigned. All outstanding bond
issues are insured and therefore rated 'AAA' by Standard and Poor's.

The City underwent a formal bond rating process in2007. They received a rating of 'A+' from Fitch and a rating of
'A' from Standard and Poor's. The 2007 LCDA bond issue of $35 million had the afore-mentioned underlying
rating but is insured so was therefore sold with a rating of 'AAA'. The latest review by Fitch in September of 2016
rated the bonds at AA- with a Stable Outlook. Fitch also afiirmed the City's Long-Term Default Rating at 'AA'. All
ofthese bonds have been refunded.

Statutory debt limits are not applicable to any of the City's current outstanding debt.

The City issued phase two of funding in March 2010 as authorized in the $90 million bond proposition. The
$39,280,000 LCDA bond issue had an underlying rating from Standard and Poor's of 'A+' but was sold as insured
'AAA' bonds. Both the 2007 and 2010 bond issues will be repaid as outlined in the bond covenant. A maximum of
60 percent of Riverboat Gaming Funds, 60 percent of sales tax dedicated to capital projects and up to $500,000 in
sewer user fees are dedicated for the debt service. Stand-by revenues ofadditional property tax and sales tax levies
can be implemented if the primary revenues should ever fall below required debt service limits.

The Ciry refunded $20 million in variable rate bonds in October 2009. At that time, the City requested a rating from
Standard and Poor's and was upgraded to a rating of 'A+'. The bonds, in the amount of $17,735,000, were insured
and were sold with a rating of 'AAA'. The sewer user fees of the Wastewater Special Revenue Fund are used to
repay this debt. In September 2014, Standards and Poor's raised the City's bond rating to 'AA-'from'A+' due to
"strong budget performance."

The City issued $15,825,000 in Revenue Refunding Bonds in December 2014. The proceeds were used to advance
refund a portion of the outstanding 2007 Public Improvement Bonds. The Series 2014 Bonds were assigned a rating
of "AA-" (stable outlook) by Standard and Poor's.

The City issued S24,140,000 in Revenue Refunding Bonds in May 2017. The proceeds were used to refund the
remaining 2007 Public Improvement Bonds and to advance refund a portion of the outstanding 2010 Public
Improvement Bonds. The Series 2017 Bonds were assigned a rating of "AA-" (stable outlook) by Standard and
Poor's.

As per notification by Standard and Poor's on February 201 8, all City of Lake Charles debt was upgraded one notch
following new criteria application; therefore all debt was upgraded from 'AA'- to 'AA'.

The City of Lake Charles was approved in 201 I by the Louisiana Department of Environmental Quality (DEQ) for a
$21,000,000 loan from the State Revolving Loan Fund for improvements to the City's wastewater system. As of the
end of fiscal year 2017, the City had received $20,897,182 from the loan proceeds and repaid S3,339,000. The debt
will be repaid with sewer user fees of the Wastewater Special Revenue Fund through 2032.

The City has been approved for an additional $15 million loan from the DEQ State Revolving Loan Fund in
anticipation of future major sewer improvement projects. As with the 201 I loan, interest and administration fees will
total 0.95 percent and would be repaid over a 20 year period.

The City has been approved for $20 million loan from the Department of Health Drinking Water Revolving Loan
Fund in anticipation of future major water system expansions. Interest and administration fees will total 2.45 percent
and would be repaid over a 20 year period.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Additional information regarding long-term debt and liabilities is provided in the financial statements and

accompanying notes (Note 4-G).

Economic Outlook and Next Year's Budget

According to the December 1, 2017 report of the Southwest Louisiana Economic Development Alliance, SW

Louisiana has over $108 billion in projects announced for the area, primarily made up of LNG export terminals and

gas-to-liquid facilities. Of those announced, $43 billion of those projects are currently under construction with the

three largest nearly completed: the Sabine Pass LNG by Cheniere Energy, $20 billion; Sasol Ethane Cracker Plant,

Sll billion; and Cameron LNG, $10 billion. The additional $65 billion of announced projects are at various stages

of the permitting process and have construction schedules projected out as far as 2025. Sasol announced in
November 2017 that they were cancelling their plans for a proposed $13 billion gas-to-liquid plant.

Employment gowth from these projects has continued since 2014, with Lake Charles' job market being the fastest

growing mefiopolitan statistical area in the state for the past several years, and this pace could continue for several

more years. The increases in services and infrastructure to support projects of this magnitude are affecting the Lake

Charles area and projects are being carefully considered. Listed below are some of the current trends:

o Sales tax: As reported by the July 2017 through December 2017 Quarterly Report from the Calcasieu

Parish School Board Sales Tax Office, total current year sales tax collections are up $73.7 million or
4l 35% for Calcasieu Parish compared to the prior year collections for the same period. However, most of
the increase is related to the industrial expansion in the unincorporated areas of the Parish; therefore the

Police Jury, School Board and ShenifPs office are the beneficiary of the additional tax revenue. Per the

report, the City's current year collections have increased by only 2.68% or less than $l million over prior
year.

City of Lake Charles sales taxes revenue increased by 3.8 percent in fiscal year 2017 compared to a two
percent increase in 2016. The 2017 adopted budget had forecast a one percent increase, which resulted in a
positive revenue variance, and increase in fund balance reserves. The 2018 budget projects an increase of
I .2 percent over last year's actual collections. Current trend for the first four months of fiscal year 20 I 8 are

an increase of 4 percent when compared to the same period in fiscal yer 2017.

. Gaming industr,v: The Golden Nugget Casino opened in December 2014, making Lake Charles the second

largest casino market in Louisiana. The increase in the gaming market was evident in 2015, with City
gaming revenue increasing to more than Sl I million from the prior year's collections of $9.6 million.
Collections of $ 10.6 in admission taxes for 2017 were reduced from $ 10.8 million in 20 16. Current trends

indicate the market is increased by two percent, therefore the 2018 adopted budget of $10.8 million seems

to be on target.

o Labor market trends: The Louisiana Workforce Commission report dated March 12, 2018 for January 201 8

reflected a Civilian Labor Force statewide unemployment rate of 4.6 percent and the United States

unemployment rate of 4.1. The Not Seasonally Adjusted unemployment rate for the Lake Charles MSA
was estimated at 3.5 percent for January 2018 compared to 4.8 percent in January 2017 . The report stated

that total nonfarm employment in the Lake Charles MSA has gained 4,700 jobs in 2017, in addition to the

5,600 jobs gained in 2016, mostly in the construction sector. The Lake Charles MSA has seen consecutive

monthly increases in employment for the past 5 years.

The above items and other economic indicators were considered when preparing the budget for the 201 8 fiscal year.

The City adopted a 2018 General Fund budget with revenue projections of $75.8 million which will be used to cover
operational expenses and transfers of S75.2 million. Additionally, the budget authorized the use of $4.1 million of its
previously accumulated fund balance to be transferred to the Capital Project Fund to pay for needed improvements
to the wastewater basin system and drainage improvements.
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MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Fiscal year 2017 revenues include the first full year ofcollections ofa one-quarter cent sales tax that was approved
by a voter referendum in October 2015. The City had historically collected one-quarter cent less in sales tax than all
of Calcasieu Parish incorporated and unincorporated areas. The collections of this tax began effective January l,
2016 and leveled the tax rate for the entirety of Calcasieu Parish. The tax generated $6.4 million in2017, with 75
percent being used in the General Fund arrd 25 percent in the debt reserve fund. This is the same distribution
budgeted for 201 8.

As a result of the passage of the sales tax effective January 2016 the Fire Department employees received a l0
percent increase and all other City employees received an 8 percent across the board increase and beginning pay
scales were increased for all employee groups. Additional across the board pay increases of two percent were given
to all employees in January 2017 and20l8.

The Capital Project budget of $32.7 million includes $5.3 million for drainage projects, $8.5 million for street
projects, $8 million for wastewater and $5.6 million for water system projects. Sources of funding include sales tax
revenues of $7.3 million from the 1986 Sales Tax referendum that was renewed in November 2016. Transfers from
other funds to pay for capital improvements include $6.5 million from the Riverboat Gaming Fund, $4.1 million
from the General Fund and $3.5 million from the Wastewater Fund. Prior year sales tax revenue of $1.6 million
from the new 2016 levy, that was not needed to repay debt in 2016, is being transferred from the Debt Service
Reserve Fund. The City will continue spending funds that were previously accumulated for roads, wastewater and
water system improvements and other projects.

Construction is nearly completed on the $42 million rebuild of the Wastewater Treatment Plant B/C., the biggest
single capital project in the City's history. Funding for the project included $14.3 million from a 2011 DEQ
Revolving Loan fund and $4 million in State Capital Outlay funds. The City's reserves were used to pay the balance,
most of which were spent in fiscal years 2016 and2017.

The City has recently begun the study and design phase for a new Water Treatment Plant, with supporting
distribution lines. This project is estimated to be near $30 million and will be funded by accumulated reserves in the
Water Utility Fund and a potential loan from the Department of Health Drinking Water Revolving Loan Fund.

The City elected a new mayor for the first time in 17 years in April 2017.Mayor Nic Hunter took offtce in July 2017

and immediately became involved in the development of the 2018 budget. Since that time, he is very engaged and

interested in the financial health of the City, especially as it relates to continued gowth and development. The City
reelected six of the seven council members to serve an additional four years. We appreciate their interest and input
into the financial decisions affecting the City of Lake Charles.

Requests for Information
This report is intended to provide interested parties with a general overview of the finances of the City of Lake
Charles. Questions or requests for further financial information should be addressed to the Department of Finance,

City of Lake Charles, P. O. Box 3706, Lake Charles, Louisiana 70602.
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CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA
Statement of Net Position

September 30,2017

Primary Government Component Units

Governmental

Activities

Business-Type

Activities Total

City

Court

City

MarshalASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Investments

Receivables (net of allowance

for uncollectables)

Internal balances

Inventories

Prepaids

Restricted assets:

Cash and cash equivalents

Capital assets not being depreciated:

Land

Construction in progress

Capital assets net of accumulated depreciation:

Building

Improvements other than buildings

Equipment

Infrastructure

Total assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred charges on debt refundings
Deferred outflows related to net pension liab

LIABTLITIES

Accounts payable & other curent liabilities

Liabilities payable from restricted assets

Noncurrent liabilities:

Claims payable within one year

Claims payable in more than one year

Due within one year

Due in more than one year

OPEB payable due in more than one year

Net pension liability due in more than one year

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows related to net pension liab

NET POSITION

Net investment in capital assets

Restricted for:

Capital projects

Debt service

Unrestricted

Total net position

$ 59,236,043

91,788,329

13,64r,031

1,591,959

337,946

1,090,167

16,180,010

60,898,839

27,974,470

37,642,604

12,893,677

216,030,556

539,295,631

1,605,903
t4,043,739

$ 6,902,947

23,128,0t9

2,015,446

(1,591,959)

327,104

13,161

1,596,934

2,704,506

2,739,964

5,753,459

55,348,524

3,255,435

$ 66,138,990

114,916,348

15,656,477

665,050

1,093,328

1,596,934

18,284,516

63,638,803

33,727,929

92,991,128

16,149,112

216,030,556

s 982,690 $ 624,962

600

1,163,045

t63,094 1 86,1 30

101,583,540 640,879,171 2,410,001 811,692

t,ses,zez
1,605,903

15,609,101 zsiea
25,266

31,919

241,400

15,649,642

6,492,0-97

6,944,799

1,348,820

7,593,624

74,932,338

2,230,086

63,286,225

1,565,362

r,404,983

1,586,712

5,000

591,650

281,700

4,620,468

17,215,004

7,997,080

1,586,712

6,844,198

1,349,920

7,598,624

75,523,988

2,571,786

67,906,693

3,471

162,717,388 8,490,513

2,927,563

294,028,516

28,278,553

5,130,680

61,862,573

$ 389,300,322

100,305

171,207,901

3,027,868

273,319 3,471

5,269

69,201,888 363,230,404

28,278,553

5,130,680

25,356,196 87,218,769

163,094 186,130

1,993,585 622,091

$ 94,558,084 $ 2,156,679 $ 808,221

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statqgent.
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CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA
Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended September 30,2017

Program Revenues

Net (Expense) Revenue and

Changes in Net Position

Operating
Charges for Grants and

Services Contributions

Capital
Grants and

Contributions

Primary Government Component Units
Govemmental Business-Type

Activities Activities Total
City

Court
City

MarshalFunctions/Programs
Primary government:

Governmental activities:
General government

Public safety
Public works
Planning and development

General services
Community services

Interest in long-term debt

Total govemmental activities

Business-type activities:
Civic center
Golf Course
Transit
Water

Total business-Upe activities
Total primary govemment

Component units:
City Court
City Marshal
Total component units

Expenses

$ 5,812,852
37,722,822
42,253,530
2,656,677
6,507,033
6,158,706

3,788,824
1,718,210

$ 6,195,338
50,048

13,486,598

361,718
2,066

339,712

$ 260,229
3,060,846

67,879
789,910
158,395

805,664

$ 858,081
(34,611,928)
(24,112,544)

( 1,505,049)
(6,346,572)
(4,976,330)
(3,149,772)

(73,844,114)

$ 215,366

4,586,509

:
37,000

5,142,923 4,838,815

$ 8s8,081
(34,611,928)
(24,112,544)

(1,505,049)
(6,346,572)
(4,976,330)
(3,149,772)

(73,844,114)

(1,977 ,464) (t ,877 ,464)
(815,170) (815,170)

(1,310,678) (1,310,678)
2,585,557 2,585,557 

- -

104,261,392 20,435,480

3,361,381 191,826

10,845,330 13,215,887

19,713,745 15,282,113

971,360
903,040

940,000

l,8t 1,946

-

2,7 51,946

46,931
215,000
261,931

W- _$3sJtl'%_ _q7,894,869_ _$_s,t00,s06_ _$ (?3,8441_L1I _$ (t,417,7ss)_ _$ (7s,26t,869)_ _$ - _$ -

$876,022$384,744$-$204,190

_$_1,805,602_ _[_1,366,35]_ _q -_ _$_204,199_
General revenues:

Property taxes
Sales taxes
Franchise taxes
Riverboat taxes

Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs

Interest and investment earnings

Miscellaneous
Transfers

Total general revenues and transfers

Change in net position
Net position - beginning
Net position - ending

$ (287,088) $ -
52,027

368,430,234 92,787,941 461,218,175 2,174,411 756,194

-- 

-$ (2829!q -$ s2W

10,616,469
64,596,373
5,722,675

10,657,944
227,691

1,414,098
4,666,850

22,640,231 (17,732) 52,027

10,616,469
64,596,373
5,722,675

10,657,944
227,691

l, I 62,1 05

4,666,850
(2,935,905) 2,935,905
94,714,202 3,187,898

20,870,088 1,770,143

251,993 z,szl
266,429

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part ofthis statement.
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CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA
Balance Sheet

Governmental Funds
September 30,2017

ASSETS
Cash (Note 4-A)
Investments (Note 4-A)
Receivable (net of allowance for uncollectable)

Accounts (Note 4-B)
Special Assessments

Accrued interest

Intergovernmental (Note 4-B)
Due from other funds (Note 4-F)
Inventory
Prepaid items

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable

Contracts payable

Escrow
Due to other funds
Unearned revenue

Other liabilities
Total liabilities

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable:

Inventory
Pre-paid items

Restricted:
Sales tax and bond funds for capital projects
Debt service reserve

Committed:
Capital projects
Wastewater system improvements
Debt service payments

Other purposes - subsequent year's expenditures
Assigned:

Community services

Public safety

Disaster recovery
Capital projects

Unassigned

Total fund balances
Total liabilities and fund balances

General
$ 13,800,27s

15,990,414

6,861,454

9,947

60,8s4
1,g3l,gg4

337,946
346,174

_q_aijlg$_

$ 2,401,269

526,943
1,39r,324

9,705
432e241

346,174
337,946

3,561,194

30,764,;g3

35,009,807

_$_3e,33X919_

Riverboat
Gaming
Special

Revenue

$ 1,791,899

575,963

l,l4o,g32

$ 3,508,794

'-

2,763,878

2,763,878

744,916

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



Debt
Service

$ 5,106,981

25,254

38,484

_q_5,05?,121_

lrs,iqs
23,231

2,200

@
23,2_31

682,670 23,231

Capital
Projects

$ 12,907,829
61,870,962

612,603

196,865

104,872
531,532

3,975,000

95,000

@_

Other
Special Revenue
Governmental

Funds

$ 7,811,497

1,298,071

321,2_88

654,978
157,520

21,482

@_
197,830

2,612,0_56

95,000

2,904,886 494,945

Wastewater
Special

Revenue

$ 2,429,221

612,937

1,976,+79

305,217

7,826
369,627

38,484

c,zzs,gel

4,374,451

$ 5,057,121

312,700

3,092
173,153

6,000

Total
Governmental

Funds

$ 43,847,702

80,373,601

10,912,756

l96,g65
1 14,819

1,362,809
6,087,735

337,946
503,340

_$ 143J3?,5n_

3,240,247
2,612,056

537,861

4,697,982
101,000

9,705
11,198,851

I17,001

5,249,880

44,228,694

21,481

t,t+q,iss

1,174,996
602,476

3,023,966
3,202,673

zioo -

- 28,278,553
5,130,6',79

346,174
400,1 1 l

28,278,553
5,730,679

44,228,694
8,973,034

I17,001
5,305,653

1,174,996
602,476

3,023,966
4,lg2,gg2

30,764,493
132,538,722

- 245,463

77,389,777 9,769,891

$ 80,294,663 $ 10,264,836

Amounts reported for govemmental activities in the statement of net position

are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources

and, therefore are not reported in the funds.
Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period expenditures.
Intemal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of insurance

to individual funds. The assets and liabilities of the intemal service funds are

included in govemmental activities in the statement of net position.

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the

current period and, therefore are not reported in the funds.
Deferred outflows and inflows of resources are not available to pay current period
expenditures and therefore are not reported in the government funds

Net position of govemmental activities

371,611,700
101,000

19,738,804

(147,411,983)

12,722,079

_$_38e,300'322_
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CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds
For Fiscal Year Ended September 30,2017

Revenues:

Taxes

Licenses and permits

Intergovernmental
Charges for services

Fines and forfeitures
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current operating:

General government

Finance
Human Resources

Fire
Police
Public works
Planning and development

Community services

General services

Capital projects
Debt service:

Principal retirement
Interest and fiscal charges

Total expenditures

Excess (defi ciency) of revenues

over expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):

Transfers in
Transfers out
Issuance of debt - LCDA refunding bonds

Issuance ofdebt
Premium on debt issuance - LCDA bonds

Bond refunding - cost of issuance

Payment to refunded bond escrow agent-current refund
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent -advance refund
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent - interest

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

Fund balance at beginning ofyear

Fund balance at end ofyear

General

g 62,039,619
6,597,424

3,082,863

2,762,447
30 1,1 03

1,121,682
75,905,138

3,204,360
1,714,273

397,613
15,870,091

19,257,152
16,829,777

1,975,729

4,788,886

64,037,881

11,867,257

(6,882,988)

(6,882,988)

4,984,269

30,025,538

_q_35,009,807_

Riverboat
Gaming
Special

Revenue

$ 10,657,944

tg,3tz
10,677,276

10,677,276

(11,062,304)

(11,062,304)

(385,028)

129,944

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Wastewater
Special

Revenue
Debt

Service
Capital
Projects

$ 7,194,703

5,101,422

.
541,579

12,837,704

50,028,846

50,028,846

(37,191,142)

15,443,000
(2,318,381)

8,012,943

21,137 ,562

(16,053,580)

93,443,357

Other
Special Revenue
Governmental

Funds

$ 4,822,815

2,203,846
163,425

3r7,672
7.50',7,758

5 13,356

635,547

5,998,397

7,147,300

360,458

1,717,270
(2,468,000)

(7s0,730)

(390,272)

1 0, I 60,163

j_9,769,89_l_

Total
Governmental

Funds

$ 88,826,340

6,597,424
10,603,497

16,286,940
30 1,1 03

2,154,234
124,769,538

3,204,360
1,714,273

397,613
15,870,091

19,770,508

26,421,585
2,611,276
5,998,397

4,788,886
50,470,051

6,664,637
2,719,730

140,631,407

( 15,861,869)

26,615,768
(29,551,673)

24,740,000
9,012,943
3,687,728
(378,726)

(5,920,000)
(19,720,000)

(1,801,605)
5,084,435

(10,777,434)

143,316,156

-$ 132538Jn_

121,603 32,366

17,593,930 247,732

$ 4,111,2_59

13,36r,068
215,366

9,591,808

441,205

10,033,013

7 ,560,917 (9,136,635)

357,141

",rrr,l,

(6,462,859)

1,098,058

3,276,393

6,664,637

2,719,730
9,384,367

9,098,357

24,140,000

E,Agl,7Zg
(378,726)

(5,920,000)
(19,720,000)

(1,801,605)

9,105,754

(30,88 I )

5,280,761

_$ 4374As1_ j_s,24e,q!9_ _$ 7738e.lll_
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CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and

Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
To the Statement of Activities

For Fiscal Year Ended September 30,2017

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are

different because:

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $ (10,777,434)

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However,
in the statement of activities the costs of those assets axe allocated

over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense.

This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded depreciation
in the current period. 32,965,527

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current
financial resources are not reported as revenue in the funds. (69,417)

The issuance oflong-term debt provides current financial resources to
governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term
debt consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds.

Neither transaction, however, has any effect on net position. This

amount is the net effect of these differences in the treatment of
long-term debt and related items. (2,341,702)

Net effect of pension liabiity recognition (2,710,298)

Deferred charge on debt refunding, net current year amortization 606,624

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of
insurance to individual flrnds. The net expenses ofcertain activities of
internal service funds is reported within the governmental activities. 3,196,788

Change in net position of governmental activitie, , ,r,rrr,r*

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA
Statement of Net Position

Proprietary Funds
September 30,2017

Business-type Activities-Enterprise Funds

Civic
Center

Golf
Course

Public
Transit

Water
Utility

$ 4,876,023
19,506,497

1,586,934

Governmental
Activities -
Internal

Service Funds
Totals
2017

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash

Investments

Restricted cash:

Customer deposits
Accounts receivable (net of allowance

for uncollectible)
Accrued interest receivable
Intergovernmental receivables

Due from other funds

Inventories
Prepaid items

Total current assets

Capital assets:

Land
Buses

Buildings and structures

Improvements
Consffuction in Progress

Equipment, furniture and fixtures
Total capital assets

Less accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets (net of

accumulated depreciation)
Total assets

s 907,785 S 633,551

3,581,671

20,423 253 - 1,181,633 1,202,309 1,023,066

2,104 25,966 28,070 30,716
785,067 - 785,067

290-105-395
29,007 40,483 - 25',1,614 327,104

5,250 269 2,242 5,400 13,161 576,827

4,546,530 674,556 1,312,853 27,440,067 33,974,006 28,433,679

485,588

39,851

$ 6,902,947
23,128,019

1,s86,934

2,104,506
2,638,296

25,881,046
100,354,059

2,739,964
7,117,065

140,834,936
71,633,048

$ 1s,388,341

11,414,729

35,257
35,257

26,802

t g,zos,5gs

20,477,844
211,823

3,505,754
42,964,016
31,609,899

11,354,117
15,900,647

1,065,697

2,123,406
2,812,817

366,775

6368,6%
2,407,267

3,961,428
4,635,984

806,824
2,638,296
4,529,761

19, l 03

946,787

8,940,771

2,873,314

231,985

459,284
77,063,398
2,509,038
2,297,749

82,561,454
34,742,568

DEFERRED OUTFLOW OF RESOURCES

Deferred amounts related to net
pension liabilities 304,742 140,917 245,044 874,659 1,565,362

6,067,457 47,818,886 69,201,888 8,455

7,380,310 75,258,953 103,175,894 28,442,134

t62,436
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Business-tvpe Activities-Enterprise Funds

Civic
Center

Golf
Course

Public
Transit

Water
Utility

Governmental
Activities -
Internal

Service Funds
Totals
2017

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities :

Accounts payable

Contracts payable

Customer deposits payable

Escrow
Due to other funds

Total current liabilities

Non-current liabilities:
Compensated absences

OPEB liability
Net pension liability
Accrued insurance claims
Incurred-not reported claims
Accrued insurance claims-noncurrent

Total non-current liabilities
Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOW OF RESOURCES

Deferred amounts related to net
pension liabilities

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets

Unrestricted
Total net position

245,424

lg,g32

6,474
296,703
558,433

52,896

2,955
193, I 50
249,001

63,414 946,289
610 67,089
- 1,5 86,712

512,l8l 398,096

576205 2995,186 4,381,825 82,246

1,308,023

87,531

1,596,712

9,429
1,390,130

82,228

18

r,055,926
1,6\4,359

507,3 18

'7 56,319

856,506
1,432,711

3,079,068

6,077,254
5,498,818

9,880,643

108,028
48,392

899,506

43,668
47,706

415,9_44

99,404
33,809

723,2_93

345,550
151,793

2,581,725

596,650
281,700

4,620,4-68

129,280

21,547

479,463
6,519,198

325,000
1,348,820

8,823,308

8,905,554

11,354,117

3,217,386

15,702 56,046

6,067 ,457 47,818,886
109,484 22,181,426

19,527 9,030 100,305

69,201,888
25,558,420
94,760,308

(202,224)

_qzrs&9!1_

10,408

8,455

19,680,153

_q_l_9,688,69!_

3,961,428
50,124

Adjustrnents to reflect the consolidation of internal service fund activities
related to enterprise funds

Net position of business-type activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

_$_l 4,57 1 J9!_ _[ 4,0 1 1,s r_ _s 6,17 6 I 41_ _q_70,000,3 1 2_
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CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Position

Proprietary Funds
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30,2017

Business-type

Operating revenues:

Charges for services

Other
Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:

Personal services

Materials and supplies

Maintenance

Utilities
Transportation
General and administration
Claims and losses paid
Depreciation

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):

Operating grants-governmental agencies

Interest

Gain (loss) on retirement or transfer of capital assets

Total nonoperating revenues

Income (loss) before operating transfers

Capital contributions and ffansfers:

Capital contributions - governmental agencies

Transfers in (out)
Total capital contributions and transfers

Change in net position
Net position at beginning of year

Net position at end of year

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.

Civic
Center

$ 943,318

26,466
969,784

1,308,234

302,872
202,605
487,797

281,247

t,zaz,lat
3,845,516

(2,87s,732)

940,000
40,339

(12,232)
968,107

(1,907,625\

839,668
839,668

(1,067,957)
15,639,460

$ 14,571,503

Golf
Course

$ 889,276

12,812
902,088

775,836
342,855
193,733
42,616

ts3,t92

zll,saa
1,745,798

(843,710)

6,197

952
7,149

(836,561)

428,396
4W%

(408,165)
4"419.717
4,011,552
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Activities-Enterprise Funds

Public
Transit

s 103,670

88, I 56

191,826

1,071,073

26,735
256,186

36,864
2s2,147

1,471,732

465,823

3J80J60

(3,388,734)

1,811,946

5,1 33

r,817,079
(1,571,6ss)

46,931
1,317,515
1,364,446
(207,209)

6,384,150

_s 6,176941_

Water
Utility

$ 12,540,602
612,015

13,152,617

3,631,995
1,363,485

592,878
926,500

2,993,929

r,ass;ts
11,204,062

1,948,555

200,324

63,270
263,s94

2,212,149

215,000

350,326
565,326

2,777 ,47 5

67,222,837

_$_?0,000,3 D_

Totals
2017

$ 14,476,866

739,449
15,216,315

6,787,138
2,035,947
1,245,402
1,493,777

252,147
4,900,100

3,661,425

2037s936

(5,159,621)

2,751,946
25r,993
5l,990

3,055,929
(2,103,692)

261,931
2,935,905
3,197,836
1,094,144

675,999

_$ rJTo)43_

Governmental
Activities -
Internal

Service Funds

$ 1s,60s,289
375,053

15,980,342

732,844
18,691

2,397,260
9,178,230

4,058

12,331,083

3,649,259

223,528

223,528
3,872,787

-

3,872J87
I 5,8 I 5,821

_$_l_9,688,6q!_

Adjustments to reflect the consolidation of
internal service fund activities related

to enterprise funds
Change in net position of business-type activities
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CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIAI{A
Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Funds
Fiscal Year Ended September 30,2017

Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers

Payments to employees

Payments to suppliers
Intemal activity - payments from other funds
Intemal activity - payments to other funds

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flow from noncapital financing activities:
Operating subsidies

Shared revenue from governmental agencies

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Purchases/sale of capital assets

Contracts payable

Capital subsidies from govemmental agencies

Capital transfers
Net cash provided (used for) capital and related financing activities

Cash flow from investing activities:
Purchase of investment securities
Proceeds from sale and maturities of investment securities

Interest on investments

Net cash provided (used for) investing activities
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning ofyear
Cash and cash equivalents at end ofyear

Reconciliation ofoperating (loss) to net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Operating income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided by operating activities
Depreciation expense
(lncrease) decrease in accounts receivable
(Increase) decrease in due from other funds
(Increase) decrease in inventories
(Increase) decrease in prepaid items
(Increase) decrease in defened outflows ofresources
Increase (Decrease) in accounts payables

Increase (Decrease) in miscellaneous payables

Increase (Decrease) in customer deposit account
Increase (Decrease) in compensated absences payable

Increase (Decrease) in OPEB liability
Increase (Decrease) in NP liability
Increase (Decrease) in due deferred inflows ofresources
Increase (Decrease) in due to other funds

Total adjustments
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Noncash investing and capital activities:

Civic
Center

$ 987,541
( 1 ,1 93,650)
(1,269,276)

(2e0)
(34,434)

( l ,s 10, 109)

639,668
940,000

1,579,668

(204,204)
(91 1,606)

200,000
(915,810)

(516,469)

49,540
(466,92e)

(1,313,180)

2,220,965

_{._90?,?85_

g (2,875,732)

1,262,767

17,757
(2e0)
(676)
(462)

(26,s63)
28,491
(3,r_37)

11,518
(2,s12)

106,864

6,306
(34,434)

1,36s,623

_!.gtLqJ0e).

Assets retired/transferred cost $343,750 and had accumulated depreciation of 5329,942,Ioss of $13,808.
Developer/governmental agencies donated capital assets of $2 I 5,000.

Change in the fair value of investments resulted in an unrealized loss of $85,899 at year end 2017

and an unrealized gain of$9,927 at year end 2016.

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



Business-tvpe Activities - Enterprise Funds

$ 901,835
(724,650)
(726,4-41)

25,140
(524,1t6)

428,396

428,396

(11,715)
(136,4-s4)

(148,169)

:

6,197

6,197
(237,692)
871,243

$ 633,551

$ (843,710)

237,566
(2_s3)

1,251
(260)

(12,283)
20,295
(9,007)

3,615
1,199

49,415

2,916
25,140

319,594

_{_(s24,t 16)_

$ 191,826
(987,098)

(2,069,130)

4s2,297

QAt2,1W

1,023,303
7,623,699
2,646,991

(58,664)

10,336

294,2r2
245,994

(3ls)

5,133

4,81 8

485,588

_I_l!sff!_

$(3,388,734)

465,823

110

r)vt
(21,360)
(17,041)

8,133
( 1,936)

85,929
5,07 t

452,r87
976,629

_$12,4 t 2,t 05)_

Water
Utility

$ 13,095,462
(3,337,834)
(s,381,867)

543,350

4,919,771

350,326

350,326

(234,277)
(2,459,7_23)

(2,694,000)

(7,27s,s92)
l,2oo,ooo

234,861
(5,840,73 l)
(3,26s,294)
9,729,251

_$ 6,4629s1_

$ 1,948,555

1,695,275
(152,473)
145,562
(12,102)
28,143

(76,240)
514,226

95,3 18

9,787
457

306,716
18,099

397,788
2,970,556

_[_1,et%]_l_l_

Totals
2017

$ 15,176,664
(6,243,232)
(9,446,714)

(2e0)
986,3s3
472,781

2,441,693
2,563,688
5,005,381

(450,196)
(3,s66,447)

10,336

494,212
(3,512,095)

(7,792,376)
1,200,000

295,731
(6,296,645)
(4,330,578)

12,820,459

_q_q,48%$_l_

$ (5,159,621)

3,661,425
(134,969)
145,382
(11,s27)

27,134
(136,446)

545,971
(12,144)
95,3 l8
33,053
(2,792)

548,924

32,392
840,681

5,632,402

_$ 4?2J81_

Governmental
Activities
Internal

Service Funds

$ 16,378,1 l5
(663,200)

(11,944,992)

(8e)

3,769,834

(9,1 83,082)
7,805,700

230,150
(1,147,232)

2,622,602
12,765,739

_us,388J4_

$ 3,649,259

4,058

397,7-73

198,1 l9
( 14,1 58)

(474)
(s4s,4s7)

21,214
(733)

56,961

3,361
(8e)

120,575

_s 3J69,834_

Golf
Course Transit
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
September 30,2077

l. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

A. Reporting Entity

The City of Lake Charles, Louisiana (the City) was incorporated in 1867 , and operates under a home rule
charter, which became effective in 1961. The City utilizes the Mayor-Council form of govemment and
provides a full range of municipal services under a centralized system of administration.

The accounting and financial reporting policies of the City conform to generally accepted accounting
principles as applicable to governments. Such policies also conform to the requirements of Louisiana
Revised Statutes 24:517 and to the guides set forth in the Louisiana Municipal Audit and Accounting
Guide, and to the industry audit guide, Audit of State and Local Governmental Units. Following is a
summary of the more significant accounting policies.

The accompanying financial statements include all funds, which are directly controlled by the City, and

which constitute the primary government as defined for financial reporting purposes. In accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, this report also includes component units, which are legally
separate from the City but considered to be fiscally dependent on the primary government. Component

units are discretely presented in this report, are reported for periods and balance sheet dates which differ
from the City's, and have been separately audited. Further disclosures conceming such units are provided
below.

Discretelv Presented Comoonent Units

Financial data of component units is displayed on the Statement of Net Position and Statement of
Activities. The reported component units are as follows:

City Court of Lake Charles:

This entity is created by state statutes, which provide for its govemance by independently
elected officials and has a jurisdictional area extending beyond the corporate limits of the City.
Although legally separate, City Court is fiscally dependent upon the government because of the
statutory requirements that the City provides and maintains the physical facilities necessary for its
operation. The relationship between the City and City Court is such that exclusion would cause

the City's financial statements to be incomplete. Financial data reported for the City Court
component unit is from its separately audited financial statements for the fiscal year ended

December 31,2016.

Ward Three Marshal:

The offrce of Ward Three Marshal, which is governed by an independently elected official, is

created in the same statutory manner as City Court and has a corresponding area of jurisdiction.
Although legally separate, the office of Ward Three Marshal is fiscally dependent upon the
government because of the statutory requirements that the City provides and maintains the
physical facilities necessary for its operation. The relationship between the Marshal and the City
is such that exclusion would cause the City's financial statements to be incomplete. Financial data
reported for this component unit are from its separately audited financial report for the year ended

December 31, 2016. Complete financial statements of the individual component units are

available from the City of Lake Charles at 326 Pujo Street, Lake Charles, Louisiana 70601.
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B.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Government-wide and Fund Financial Statement

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of
changes in net position) report information on all of the activities of the primary government and its
component units. For the most part, the effect of the interfund activity has been removed from these

statements. Governmental activities, which normally are supported by taxes and the intergovernmental
revenues, are reported separately from business-type activities, which rely primarily on charges for
services for support. Likewise, the primary government is reported separately from certain legally
separate component units for which the primary government is financially accountable.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or
segment is offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a
specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants who
purchase, use or directly benefit from goods, services or privileges provided by a given function or
segment; and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among
program revenues are reported as general revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds and proprietary funds. Major
individual governmental funds and major enterprise funds are reported as separate columns in the fund
financial statements.

Measurement Focus and Basis of Accounting in the Basic Financial Statement

The government-wide financial statement of net position and statement of activities are prepared using
the economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary
fund financial statements. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets, deferred outflows of resources,

liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources resulting from exchange and exchange-like transactions

should be recognized when the exchange takes place. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets, deferred

outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of resources resulting from non-exchange

transactions should be recognized in accordance with the requirements of Section N50, Non-exchange

Transactions.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both
measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the

current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the

City considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the current
fiscal period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual

accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to compensated

absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due.

Property taxes, franchise taxes, licenses, and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all
considered to be susceptible to accrual so they have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal
period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available only when cash is
received by the government.

Governmental fund reporting focuses primarily on the sources, uses, and balances of current financial
resources and often has a budgetary orientation. Governmental funds are, in essence, accounting
segregations of financial resources. Expendable assets are assigned to the various governmental funds
according to the purposes for which they may or must be used; current liabilities are assigned to the fund
from which they are to be paid; and the difference between governmental fund assets and deferred
outflow ofresources, and liabilities and deferred inflow ofresources is referred to as "Fund Balance."

C.

47



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The City of Lake Charles reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund - The General Fund is the general operating fund of the City. It is used to account
for and report all financial resources not accounted for and reported in another fund.

Riverboat Gaming Special Revenue Fund - This fund accounts for receipt and subsequent

expenditure or transfer ofrevenue from casino riverboat admissions taxes.

Wastewater Fund - This fund accounts for the receipt and subsequent expenditure of dedicated

sales taxes, sewer use charges, and other current charges dedicated to operations, maintenance

and improvement of the City's sanitary sewerage system.

Debt Service Fund - This fund is used to account for the accumulation of resources and the

payments made for principal, interest, and related costs on long-term debt obligations of
governmental frrnds. The primary source of revenue is transfers in from other funds as mandated

by law or City policy.

Capital Projects Fund - This fund is used to account for financial resources to be used for the

acquisition or construction of major capital facilities (other than those financed by proprietary

funds). Revenues include 28 percent of one percent sales tax dedicated to capital improvements
and various intergovernmental revenues.

The City of Lake Charles reports the following proprietary funds:

Civic Center - This fund accounts for the activities of the Lake Charles Civic Center.

Golf Course - This fund accounts for the activities of Mallard Cove Golf Course.

Transit Fund - This fund accounts for the operation of the City's transit system.

Water Fund - This fund accounts for the operation of the City's water system.

The City of Lake Charles reports the following additional fund type:

Internal Service Funds - Internal Service Funds are used to account for the insurance needs

provided to other departments of the City, or to other governments, on a cost

reimbursement basis.

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide

financial statements. Exceptions to this rule are payments between the government's water
function and various other functions of the govemment. Elimination of these charges would
distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned.

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods,

services, or privileges provided; 2) operating grants and contributions; and 3) capital grants and

contributions. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general revenues rather than as

program revenues. Likewise, general revenues include all taxes.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from non-operating items.

Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and

delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The intent
ofthe governing body is that the costs (expenses) ofproviding goods or services to the general

public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges and are

reported as program revenues.
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D.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Operating expenses for enterprise funds and internal service funds include the cost of sales and

services, administrative expenses and depreciation on capital assets. All other revenues and

expenses are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

Assets, Liabilities and Net Position

l. Deposits and Investments

The government's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits,

and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of
acquisition.

The City's investment program is authorized and limited by state statue and city ordinances to
purchases of securities issued or guaranteed by the U.S. Government and its agencies or
insffumentalities and participation in the Louisiana Asset Management Pool, Inc. (LAMP).
LAMP is a non-profit corporation formed by an initiative of the State Treasurer and organized

under the laws of the State of Louisiana, which operates a local government investment pool

equivalent to a money market fund. LAMP invests in short-term instruments permitted by statute.

Investments for the government, its component units and for LAMP are reported at fair value.

2. Receivables and Payables

Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and business-type

activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as "internal balances."

All receivables, including those for grass cutting and demolition assessments in the governmental

funds and water and sewer charges in the enterprise funds, are shown net of an allowance for
uncollectables. The allowance for estimated uncollectable receivables is established based on

historical collection experience and other relevant circumstances.

There appears to be concentration of credit-risk with regard to general accounts receivable and,

more specifically, accounts receivable for water and sewer user fees in the Wastewater Special

Revenue Fund and the Water Utility Enterprise Fund. The City's ability to collect the amounts

due from the users of the City water and sewer system and others (as reflected on the financial
statements) may be affected by significant economic fluctuations, natural disaster or other

calamity in this one concentrated geographic location.

The City property taxes must be levied by December 1 of each year. Properfy taxes are due by
December 3land are delinquent by January 1. Delinquent property taxes are assessed interest at

one and one-quarter percent per month for the period of delinquency. Properly owners with taxes

still delinquent by March 1 are notified by certified mail that they have twenty days to pay

delinquent property taxes. The lien date is the date in which the tax assessor files the tax roll with
the Clerk of Court, which is the same as the levy date. Sale of delinquent properties is held each

year as soon as possible after May L Most taxes are collected in December, January and

February.

3. Inventories and Unpaid Items

Inventory is valued at average cost. Inventory in the General Fund consists of materials and

supplies held for consumption and are accounted for under the consumption method where

expenditures are recorded when the goods are used. Inventories are also held in the enterprise
funds. These consist of concession supplies held for sale to the public and materials held for
water system maintenance and improvements. Certain payments made to vendors are for services

that will benefit subsequent periods, and, using the consumption method, these expenses are
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5.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

recorded as prepaid items in fiscal year 20'ti in both the governmental-wide and fund financial
statements.

Restricted Assets

Customer deposits in the Water Enterprise Fund are classified as restricted assets on the balance

sheet because their use is limited to repayment of deposits to qualified customers or upon

termination of service.

Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include properfy, plant, equipment, and infrastructure assets (e.g. roads,

bridges, sidewalks and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-

type activities columns in the government-wide financial statements. Capital assets are defined
by the government as assets with an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated

useful life in excess of two years. Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated

historical cost ifpurchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at the acquisition
value on the date ofdonation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or
materially extend the asset's life are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.

Historically, capital assets constructed during the past 30 years had been financed on a pay-as-go

basis. However, the City incuned debt in 2003 for the construction of a new sewer treatment

facility and issued bonds in 2007 and 2010 to fund capital improvements, such as roads, watero

sewer, recreation and downtown development activities. Debt was also incurred during the past

two fiscal years for improvements to the City's wastewater plant.

Property, plant and equipment of the primary government, as well as the component units, are

depreciated using the straight line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Assets
Buildings
Improvements other than buildings
Public Domain infrastructure
System infrasffucture
Machinery and equipment

First four years

Five to nine years

Ten to nineteen years
Nineteen years and over

Years
20
20
l0-50
l0-50
7

Compensated Absences

It is the government's policy to permit employees to accumulate earned, but unused, vacation
pay benefits. All vacation pay is accrued when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary

fund financial statements. There was $580 recorded in the governmental fund statements as a

payable to employees who had terminated as of the end of the fiscal year on September 30,

2017.

Vacation is based on the number of years of service and is earned as follows:

I 0 days
I 5 days
20 days
25 days
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Sick pay is based on the number of years of service and is carried as follows:

First three years

Four years and over
8 hours per month
12 hours per month

Sick pay is not vested except at retirement, where accumulated sick pay hours up to six hundred

(600) are payable to non-civil service retirees. The termination payment liability was calculated
by developing a ratio based on historical data of sick leave paid at termination compared with
sick leave accumulated and by applying that ratio to the sick leave accumulated by the current
employee population as of Septemb er 30, 2017 . Because there was no current liability at the end

of the fiscal year, all estimated termination payment liability is recorded in the government-wide

and proprietary fund financial statements.

City employees may receive compensatory time off with pay in lieu of overtime pay for work in
excess of regular scheduled hours. Accumulation of unused compensatory time is limited, and

any unused or unpaid portion is payable upon separation from employment. Compensatory time

is accrued when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary funds financial statements.

There was no current portion of compensatory time recorded in the governmental fund statement

at September 30,2017.

At September 30, 2Ol7 the total tiability reported on the Statement of Net Position for accrued

vacation, sick and compensatory time was $3,969,83 I for Governmental Activities, which

includes S129,280 from the Internal Service Funds. The amount recorded in Business-Type

Activities equaled $596,650.

Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of
resources, represents a consumption of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will
not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The City has

items that qualifu for reporting in this category. It has defened charges on refunding reported in
the government-wide statement of net position. A deferred charge on refunding results from the

difference in the carrying value of refunded debt and the reacquisition price. This amount is

deferred and amortized over the life of the refunded debt. The $1,605,903 balance of deferred

outflows of resources related to bond refunding will be recognized as interest expense over the

remaining life of the bonds. The City also has deferred outflow of resources related to net

pension liability of $15,609,101.

The statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of
resources. This separate financial statement element represents an acquisition of net position that

applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow ofresources (revenues)

until that time. The City has reported deferred inflows related to the net pensions liability in the

amount of $3,027,868.

Additional information on deferred outflows/inflows of resources related to defined benefit
pension plans can be found in Note 5.

Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary firnd types in the fund financial

statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the

applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund type statement of
net position.

8.
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In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize principal payrnents during
the current period. The face amount ofdebt issued is reported as other financing sources.

9. Fund Equity

In accordance with Government Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 54, Fund Balance
Reporting and Governmental Fund Type Definitions, the City of Lake Charles classifies
governmental fund balances as follows:

Non-spendable -_lncludes fund balance amounts that cannot be spent either because they
are not in a spendable form or because oflegal or contractual constraints.

Restricted - Includes fund balance amounts that are constrained for specific purposes

which are externally imposed by providers, such as creditors, or amounts constrained or
due to constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. Any deviation from the specific
purpose must be approved by the original third party whether that is the electorate or
grantor.

Committed - Includes fund balance amounts that are constrained for specific purposes that
are internally imposed by the government through formal action of the highest level of
decision-making authority (the City Council) and does not lapse at year end. Formal action
by the same authority is required to rescind such a commitment. A separate city ordinance

adopted by the City Council is required to modiff a previous commitment of fund balance.

Assigned - Includes fund balance amounts that are intended to be used for specific
purposes that are neither considered restricted or committed. Fund balances may be

assigred by action of the Mayor, an ordinance of the City Council, or adoption of the

budget and generally only exists temporarily. A similar action or amendment is necessary

to remove or revise the limitation.

Unassigned - Includes positive fund balance within the General Fund which has not been

classified within the above mentioned categories and when applicable, negative fund
balances in other governmental funds.

All of these items are included as elements of net position on the government-wide statement.

The City uses restricted/committed amounts to be spent first when both restricted and

unrestricted fund balances are available unless there are legal documents or contracts that
prohibit doing this, such as a grant agreement requiring dollar for dollar spending. Additionally,
the City would first use committed, then assigned, and lastly unassigned amounts of unrestricted
fund balance when expenditures are made.

It is the City's policy to maintain a minimum fund balance of 30 percent of operating

expenditures and operating transfers in the General Fund.

2. Reconciliation of Government-Wide Financial Statements

A. Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund balance sheet and
the government-wide statement of net position:

The governmental fund balance sheet includes a reconciliation between fund balance of total
governmental funds and net position - governmental activities as reported in the government-wide
statement of net position. One element of that reconciliation explains "long term liabilities, including
bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current period and, therefore, are not reported in the funds."
The details of this $147,411,983 difference are as follows:
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Deferred outflows and inflows ofresources are not available to pay current period expenditures, therefore

are not reported in the governmental funds. The details of this $12,722,079 difference are as follows:

Explanation of certain differences between the governmental fund statement of revenues,
expenditures, and changes in fund balances and the government-wide statement of activities:

The governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances includes

reconciliation between net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds and changes in net

position of governmental activities as reported in the government-wide statement of activities. One

element of that reconciliation explains that, "Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures.

However, in the statement of activities the cost of those assets is allocated over their estimated useful
lives and reported as depreciation expense."

The details of the $32,965,527 are as follows:

2009 Revenue Refi.rnding Bonds payable

Premium on 2009 LCDA Bonds payable

(to be amortized over the life of the debt)

2010 LCDA Bonds payable

Premium on 2010 LCDA Bonds payable

(to be amortized over the life of the debt)

2014 LCDA Reflrnding Bonds payable

Premium on 2014 LCDA Reflrnding Bonds payable

(to be arnortized over the life ofthe debt)

2017 LCDA Retunding Bonds payable

Premium on2017 LCDA Refirnding Bonds payable

(to be amortized over the life of the debt)

Coorperative endeavor-Sales Tax Dist. No. 3

Compensated absences

Other post employee benefits (OPEB) payable

Net pension liability
LC City Court building project

DEQ loan -- sewer plant rehabilitation
Net adjustment to reduce fund balance-total governmental

funds to arrive at net position-governmental activities

6,600,000

156,812

6,685,000

259,273

15,430,000

714,643

24,140,000

3,687,728
964,492

3,840,s51
2,208,539

62,806,762

2,360,000
I 7.558. I 83

t47,411,983

Deferred outflows on charges on bond refunds
Deferred outflows of resources - related to net pension liability
Deferred inflows of resources - related to net pension liability

Net adjustment to increase fund balance to arrive at net
position - governmental activities

$ 1,605,903
14,043,739

7

s 12,722,079

Capital outlays

Depreciation expense

Loss on retirement of capital assets

Net adjustment to increase net changes in fund balances - total governmental

funds to arrive at changes in net position of governmental activities

48,927,364

(15,912,741)

(49,096)

g 32,965,s27
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Another element of that reconciliation states that, "The issuance of long-term debt provides current
financial resources to governmental frrnds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt
consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither ffansaction, however, has any
effect on net position." The details of this $(2,341,702) are as follows:

C. Explanation of certain differences between the proprietary fund statement of net position and the
governmental-wide statement of net position:

The proprietary fund statements of net position include reconciliation between net position - total
enterprise funds and net position of business-type activities as reported in the governmental-wide
statements of net position. The description of the sole element of that reconciliation is "adjustment to
reflect the consolidation of internal service fund activities related to enterprise funds." The details of this

$(202,224) are as follows:

Principal repayment:

2007 LCDA public improvement bonds

2009 Revenue refunding bonds

2010 LCDA public improvement bonds

2014LCDA public improvement refunding bonds

2017 LCDA public improvement refunding bonds

Compensated absences

OPEB liabilities
Cooperative endeavor - Sales Tax Dist. No. 3

Proceeds from premium on2007 LCDA public improvement bonds

(to be amortized as interest over the life of the debt)

Proceeds from premium on 2009 Revenue refunding bonds

(to be amortized as interest over the life of the debt)

Proceeds from premium on 2010 Revenue refunding bonds

(to be amortized as interest over the life of the debt)

Proceeds from premium on2014 public improvement refunding bonds

(to be amortized as interest over the life of the debt)

Proceeds from premium on 2017 public improvement refunding bonds

(to be amortized as interest over the life of the debt)

Lake Charles City Court building loan

DEQ loan - sewer plant improvements

Net adjustment to decrease net changes in fund balances - total governmental

funds to arrive at changes in net position of governmental activities

7,530,000

1,500,000

21,760,000

175,000

(24,140,000)

(32,586)

(6,1 10)

350,000

224,559

39,203

810,182

69,721

(3,687,728)

115,000

(7,048,943)

,341,702)

Internal payable representing costs in excess ofcharges to the

business-type activities - prior year $ (878,223)

Intemal payable representing costs in excess of charges to the

business-type activities - cunent year 675,999

Net adjustment to decrease net position - enterprise funds to

anive at net position - business-type activities $
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3. Stewardship,Compliance,andAccountability

A. Budgetary Information

The City annually adopts and implements an operating and capital budget in accordance with
requirements of the City Charter and applicable state law for the General Fund and all Special

Revenue and Proprietary Funds. The Capital Projects Fund's budget is a project-based capital budget.

Policies and procedures with respect to budget adoption and budgetary control are as follows:

l. The Mayor submits the proposed operating budget for the fiscal year commencing October 1 to

the City Council no later than August 15. This budget includes proposed expenditures and the

means of financing them.

2. A summary of the proposed budget and notices of public hearing is published in accordance with
statutory requirements.

3. The proposed budget is subject to one or more public hearings before the City Council prior to
adoption by ordinance, which must occur no later than September 15. The City Charter requires

a two-thirds vote of the City Council to amend the proposed budget submitted by the Mayor.

4. Expenditures are legally restricted to budgetary appropriations at the department level within the

General Fund and at the fund level for Special Revenue Funds, which are not departmentalized.

Revisions, which alter the total expenditures of any such department or fund, must be approved

by budget amendment ordinance adopted by the City Council at the request of the Mayor.

Transfers of budgeted amounts between expenditure objects or programs within the same

department and fund are authorized to be made administratively by the Director of Finance.

5. Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year for
the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, and the Capital Projects Fund, which is budgeted on

a project basis. Formal budgetary integration is not employed in the Debt Service Funds because

effective budgetary control is altematively achieved through the respective bond indentures and

provisions.

6. Budgets for the General, Special Revenue, and Capital Projects Funds are adopted on a basis

consistent with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP). Comparisons of budgeted

and actual results ofoperation are presented for the General Fund and Special Revenue Funds in

the accompanying financial statements. The Capital Projects Fund is not included in this budget,

and actual comparison, as the capital budget which encompasses that fund, is presented on the

basis of cumulative as opposed to annual budget amounts.

7. All budgetary appropriations, except capital project budgets, lapse at the end ofeach fiscal year.

8. Budgeted amounts are as originally adopted or as amended by the Ciry Council. The originally
adopted General Fund expenditure budget of $67,446,260 did not need to be amended during the

fiscal year.

The originally adopted amount of all Special Revenue Funds was $41,957,304. Amendments

reduced the budget by $2,405,284 and resulted in the final total Special Revenue Fund budget of
539,552,020. An annual amendment is necessary in response to grant awards compared to actual

expenditures within the fiscal year.
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Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, conffacts, and other commitments for the

expenditures of monies are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation,
is employed as an extension of formal budgetary integration in the General Fund, Special Revenue

Funds, and Capital Projects Funds.

In accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, outstanding encumbrances at year end

for which goods or services have been received are reclassified to expenditures and accounts payable.

All other encumbrances in the annual budgeted funds are reversed atyear end and are either canceled

or are included as re-appropriations of fund balance for the subsequent year. Encumbrances at year

end in funds that are budgeted on a project basis, including Enterprise Fund construction projects, are

carried forward along with their related appropriations and are not subject to an annual cancellation

and re-appropriation. Such balances are classified as committed fund balance in the Capital Project

fund. Significant project encumbrances are included in the "construction commitments" section of
the capital asset note disclosure on page 64. The total amount reserved for encumbrances in all funds

at fiscal year ended September 30,2017 are as follows:

Proprietary Funds:

Civic Center 199,685

Mallard cove 926

Major Funds:

CapitalProjects $ 9 5.210

Water Utility
Total Proprietary Funds

Total Reserved for Encumbrances

2,209,020

Fiscal Year ended September 30,2017 $ 11,854,239

C.

D.

Excess of Expenditures Over Appropriations and Deficit Fund Equity

There was no deficit fund equity in any fund at fiscal year ended September 30,2017.

Unfavorable Revenue Variance

The charges for services revenue of the Wastewater Special Revenue Fund were below budget and

resulted in total revenues of $17,593,930 which was $49,570 less than the $17,643,500 budgeted

amount. These funds were down slightly from projected figures. The revenue of the Grant Special

Revenue Fund was $976,256, which was $35,368 less than budgeted. The revenue of the Disaster

Recovery Special Revenue Fund was $645,922 which was $6,282less than the $652,204 budgeted

amount. The revenue of the Community Development Special Revenue Fund was $620,122 which

was $12,830 less than the $632,952 budgeted amount. These unfavorable variances in these special

revenue funds are attributable to variances in grant program revenues, which are budgeted on the

basis of grant awards but actual revenues received are based on annual expenditure reimbursements

in those funds. None of the variances were large enough to require an amendment to those budgets.
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4. Detailed Notes on All Funds

A. Deposits and Investments

The City maintains a cash and investment pool that is available for use by all funds. Each fund type's

portion of this pool is displayed on the combined balance sheet within "cash and investments" or

"restricted cash and investments" where applicable. Legal and contractual provisions with respect to

deposits and investments are substantially the same for all funds and fund types.

Demand deposits of the City are maintained under a banking agreement in which account balances

are collateralized entirely by U.S. Treasury and government agency securities held by a Federal

Reserve Bank in the City's name. The bank balance of such deposits at September 30, 2017 was

$68,193,31 I (carrying amount $63,692,069).

The total includes restricted cash in the amount of $1,586,934 from customer deposits in the Water

Utility Enterprise Fund. The amounts do not include petty cash of $24,275 or S4,009,580 that is on

deposit with a third parfy for bond reserves and the administration of the City's insurance claims.

The carrying amounts of cash deposits for component units at their respective balance sheet dates

were $982,690 for City Court and $624,962 for the Ward Three Marshal. These amounts were fully
covered by federal deposit insurance or were collateralized entirely by U.S. Treasury and government

agency securities held by a Federal Reserve Bank in the entity's name.

Fair Value Reporting - Investments

Investments are stated at fair value and are categorized within the fair value hierarchy established by

GASB Statement No. 72. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair

value. Level I inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level2 inputs are those

included within Level I that are either directly or indirectly observable; Level 3 inputs are

unobservable inputs. The City utilizes the market based approach for determining the fair value of
investments which uses prices and other relevant information generated by market transactions

involving identical or comparable assets. Louisiana Asset Management Pool (LAMP) is excluded

from fair value assessment. As of September 30,2017 the City had the following investments and

maturities:

Investment

Fair Value/

Net Asset Value

U.S. agencies non-callable

Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (Level 2)

Federal National Mortgage Association (kvel 2)

United States Treasury Bonds (kvel 1)

U.S. agencies callable

Federal Farm Credit Bank (Level 2)

Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (Level 2)

Federal National Mortgage Association (trvel 2)

Louisiana Asset Management Pool (Net Asset Value)

Les than I year $ 12,639,310

1-5year

11,345,182

114,945

1 ,1 79,1 83

I 5,877,040

21,787,038

I 8,829, I 20

56,493,198

$ I 14,916,348
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Credit Risk - Investments

The City's investment program is authorized and limited by state statue and city policy to purchases

of securities issued or guaranteed by the U.S. Government and its agencies or insffumentalities and
participation in the Louisiana Asset Management Pool, Inc. (LAMP), a non-profit local government
money-market type (2a-7-like) investment pool sponsored by the State of Louisiana. This pool is
rated "AAA" by Standard & Poor's. Security investments are carried at fair value; investment in
LAMP is carried at cost, which approximates market. With the exception of LAMP, all of the City's
investments are held in the City's name by its custodial bank. The City's investment policy does not
specifically limit investment maturities, except for a general requirement that funds used for
operation be invested within a three-year final maturity range. This policy assumes that callable
investments will not be called. The City's investment policy states that financial or credit risk, as

distinguished from market risk, is not acceptable for any investment in either short or long term
investment categories.

The City does not directly invest in commercial paper, which is permified by state statute. However,
such investments are made by LAMP, which are subject to concentration and maturity limitations of
its investments policy.

The City's investments in U.S. Agency Securities were primarily rated "AAA" by Standard and

Poor's and Fitch Ratings and "Aaa" by Moody's Investors Services. The City's investment policy
does not specifically limit concentration with individual issuers. The policy states that financial or
credit risk, as distinguished from market risk, is not acceptable for any investment in either short or

long term investment categories.

Interest Rate fusk - Investments

The City's policy on investments places primary order of emphasis on l) the safety of principal;2)
the liquidity of the investment, in order to enable the City to meet reasonably expected operating and

capital funding requirements; and 3) the yield or return on investment.

Custodial Credit Risk - Investments

Custodial credit risk for investments is the risk that in the event of the failure of the counterparty to a

transaction, the City will not be able to recover the value of the investment. Investments are exposed

to custodial credit risk if the securities are (a) uninsured and unregistered and held by the

counterparty; or (b) uninsured, unregistered and held by the counterparty's trust department or agent

but not in the name of the City.

According to the City's investment policy for investment purchases, the fiscal agent bank merely

executes the necessary wire-transfer services to support the City's investment transactions and is

therefore not a counterpart to the investment transactions. As such, these investments are not subject

to custodial credit risk since the fiscal agent bank is not a party to the original investment purchases

and is only holding the book-entry securities in a securities safekeeping account in the name of the

City of Lake Charles.

Receivables

Receivables as of year-end for the City of Lake Charles's individual major funds and non-major and

internal service funds in the aggregate, including the applicable allowances for uncollectable
accounts are as follows:
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Receivables as of year-end forthe City of Lake Charles's individual enterprise funds inthe aggregate,

including the applicable allowances for uncollectable accounts are as follows:

Governmental-tvne Activities General

Riverboat

Gamins Wastewater Debt Service

Receivables:

Accounts

Taxes

Property standards &
special assessment

Interest

Intergovernmental

Gross receivables

Less: allowance for
uncollectable

Net total receivables

3,82s,327

4,225,209

9,g4;
60,854

t,t4o,%;
2,101,165

350,059

115,445

8,t21,337

( I ,l 89,082

1,140,932 2,451,224

(474,745

115,445

$ 6,932.25s $ 1.140,932 $ 1,976,479 $ 115,445

Governmental-type Activities
(continued) Capital Projects

Non-major
Funds Internal Service

Total
Governmental

Activities

Receivables:
Accounts
Taxes
Property standards &

special assessment

Interest
Intergovernmental

Gross receivables

Less: allowance for uncollectable

612,603

I 96,865
104,872
531.532

9,375
3l1,913

r.672.26;

1,023,066

30,716

s 7,571,536
6,028,113

196,865
145,535

2.380,097

t,445,872 t,993,554

( l,017,288

1,053,782 16,322,146

(2,681,1 l5)

Net total receivables $ t,44s.872 s 976,266 $ 1.053.782 $ 13,641,031

Total Business-

Type Activities

9,249,934

6,028,113

196,865

173,605

3,165,164

1,657,722_

25,966

$ 1,678,398

28,070

Receivables:

Accounts

Taxes

Property standards &
special assessment

Interest

Intergovemmental
Gross receivables

Less: allowance for
uncollectable

Net total receivables

(3,157,204)

1,683,688

(476,089)

$ 15,656,4772,015,446$ 785,067
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Intergovernmental receivables consisted of the following, net of uncollectable allowance of
$1,017,288:

Governmental-type activity:

Calcasieu Parish Policy Jury

Calcasieu Parish District Attorney

Lake Charles City Court

U.S. Department of Justice

Community Development Grant

LA Department of Treasury

LA State Facility Planning & Control

LA Commission on Law Enforcement and Admin. Of Criminal Justice Grant

LA Department of Military Affairs

LA Department of Health and Hospitals

Housing and Urban Development Emergency Solutions Grant

Total Government-type activities

Business-type activity:
LA Department of Transportation

Total Business-type activities

Total Primary govemment

58,605

3,102
115,445

11,410

t65,514
10,950

497,3',15

16,234

445,710

250

14

785,067
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C. Capital Assets

Capital asset activity for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2017 was as follows:

Primary Government
Governmental Activities:

The assets of the Internal Service Funds are included in the table for assets related to governmental-type

activities. Total assets are $35,257 with accumulated depreciation of $26,801. Remaining value of assets at

September 30, 2017 equaled $8,456; and this total is included in the net asset statement for the

Governmental-type activities.

61

Ending Balance

16,180,010

Capital assets - not being depreciated:

Land

Construction in progess

Total capital assets - not being depreciated

Capital assets - being depreciated:

Buildings

Improvements

Machinery & Equipment

Infrastructure

Total capital assets - being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings

Improvements

Machinery & Equipment

Infrastructure

Total accumul ated depreciation

Total capital assets - being depreciated, net

Govemmental activities capital assets, net

16,180,0 10

tl,254,263

(2,209,132

55,652,970

72,044,795

38,260,031

15,637,853

1,319,608

425,271

3,972,100

331.9s2.735

54,333,362

71,679,524

36,497,063

21.354,832

2,160,036

(27,678,500)

(34,402,191)

(25,366,354)

13 I,560,032

(2,304,132)

(3,044,202

(25,374,368

(31,448,813

(24,482,188

123,944,944

289,152,371

$ 371 ,620,I 56
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Business-type activities:

Capital assets - not being depreciated:

Land

Construction in progress

Total capital assets - not being depreciated

Capital assets - being depreciated:

Buildings

Improvements

Machinery & Equipment

Total capital assets - being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings

Improvements

Machinery & Equipment

Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets, being depreciated, net

Business-type activities capital assets, net

25,881,046

I 00,354,059

9,755,361

25,881,046

97,385,489

343.751

43.7513,454,105

(20,127,587)

(45,005,535)

(1 9,886,801)

(42,429,219)

$ (1,803,576) $

Depreciation expense was charged to functions / programs of the primary govemment as follows:

Governmental activities:

General govemment

Public safety

Public works

Planning and development

General services

Community services

Capital assets held by the govemment's intemal service funds are charges

to the various functions based on their usage ofthe assets

Total depreciation expense - governmental activities

Business-type activities:

Civic Center

Golf Course

Transit

Water

Total depreciation expense - business-type activities

268,974

I ,81 0,603

11,862,879

30,703

373,090

7,566,492

15,916,800

1,262,761

237,566

465,823

1,695,27 5

1.425
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D. Discretely Presented Component Units

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31,2016 was as follows for City Court:

Capital asset activity for the year ended December 31,2016 was as follows for City Marshal:

Governmental activities

l 93.55 5

Govemmental activities:

Equipment

Fumiture and fixtures

Total at historial cost

Less accumulated depreciation:

Equipment

Fumiture and fixtures

Total accumulated depreci ation

Governmental activities capital assets, net

(45,135)(49,461) (6,753)

10.414

Governmental activities

Govemmental activities:

Automobiles & equipment

Furniture and fixtures

Buildings & improvements

Totals at historical cost

Less accumulated depreciation:

Equipment

Furniture and fixtures

Buildings & improvements

Total accumulated depreciation

Govemmental activities capital assets, net

(482,237)

(7,853)

(3,135)

157,021
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E. Construction Commitments

The City had total commitments of $10,379,585 with contractors for unfinished consffuction projects as

of September 30,2017 categorized as follows:

Proiect type Expended to date
Remaining

commitment

Streets and storm drainage

Waterlines

Water Facilities

Sanitary sewer rehabilitation
Wastewater facilities

Recreation / community facilities

Transit Facility

Mallard Cove Golf Course

Civic Center Improvements

Total

2,6s0,018

88,219

1,165,345

3,163,736

41,251,927

170,624

128,758

198,3 l5

3,073,033

36,109

1,564,655

2,867,221

2,169,785

354,171

114,000

926

199,685

s 48,816,942 $ 10,379,585

All remaining commitments are financed from City revenues previously received.

F. Inter-fund Receivables, Payables and Transfers

The composition of inter-fund balances as of September 30, 2017 is as follows:

Due to / from other funds:

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount

General Fund

Debt Service Fund

Capital Projects Fund

Non-Major Govemmental Funds

Civic Center Fund

Transit Fund

Total

Golf Course

Civic Center Fund

Waste Water Fund

Water Fund

Non-major Govemmental Funds

Risk Management Fund

Transit Fund

General Fund

General Fund

Riverboat Fund

General Fund

Riverboat Fund

Non-Major Governmental Funds

Disaster Recovery Fund

Waste Water Fund

Non-major Govemmental Funds

Water Fund

1 93,1 50

286,703

369,567

398,082

172,284

18

5l2,l8l
23,23r

1,325,000

2,650,0O0

43,092

113,878

550

290

60

30

l5
s 6,088,130
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Inter-fund Transfers:

Transfers are used to move revenues from the fund with collection authorization to the debt service fund as debt

service principal and interest payments become due. Unrestricted general fund revenues are transferred to

finance various programs that the government must account for in other funds in accordance with budgetary
authorizations, including amounts provided as subsidies or matching funds for various grant programs and

proprietary fund operations.

Amounts recorded in the Capital Project Fund to the Water Fund are a transfer of capital assets that were paid

for with bond proceeds and then transferred to the Proprietary Funds where they are recorded as capital

contributions from the governmental funds. Excess reserves in the Employee Insurance Internal Service Fund

were transferred to the General Fund to offset health insurance costs.

Transfer out:

Transfer in:

General Fund

Debt Service

CaptialProjects

Non-maj or Governmental

Civic Center

Golf Course

Transit

Water

Waste Water

Total

260,637

2,825,000

998,517

639,668

428,396

1,023,303

350,326

357,141

3,449,339

6,650,000

718,753

200,000

44,212

3,320,000

3,500,000

2,068,381

250,000

$

2,468,000

$ 2,318,381
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Long-Term Debt

Bonds payable as of September 30,2017 are comprised ofthe following individual issues and are entirely
related to governmental activities:

$ 17.735.000 2009 Revenue Refunding Bonds : LCDA Original issue was for
construction of sewer treatment facility due in amounts of $1,270,0000 to $1,750,000

through 2021; interest rates of2%oto 4%o. $

$ 39.280.000 2010 Fixed Rate Revenue Bonds : LCDA for City of Lake Charles

Public Improvement Projects (roads, utilities, downtor+dlakefront development,

economic development and parks) due in annual amounts of $1,575,000 to

$ 3,2 00, 00 0 through 2027 ; inter est r ates of 2Yo to 4. I 2 5o/o.

$ 15.825.000 2014 Fixed Rate Revenue Refunding Bonds : LCDA Original issue

was for City of Lake Charles Public Improvement Projects (roads, utilities,

downtown/lakefront development, economic development and parks) due in annual

amounts of $50,000 to $2,450,000 through 2027; interest rutesof 2o/oto syo.

$ 24.140.000 2017 Fixed Rate Revenue Refunding Bonds 
= 

LCDA Original issue

was for City of Lake Charles Public Improvement Projects (roads, utilities,

downtown/lakefront development, economic development and parks) due in the

annual amounts of $1,715,000 to $3,050,000 througlr 2027; inlerest rates of 47o to

5o/o.

6,600,000

6,685,000

24,140,000

Total bonds payable 52,855,000

The Revenue Bonds are subject to arbitrage rules. An arbitrage rebate in the amount of $493,061 was paid in
fiscal year 2012 for the 2007 bond issue. Additional calculations will be done in the future as required.

Annual debt service requirements to maturity of the bonds are as follows:

r s,430,000

Governmental Activities

Year ending

September 30: Principal Interest Total

20r 8

2019

2020

2021

2022

2023

2024

2025

2026

2027

Total

5,410,000

5,635,000

5,875,000

6,145,000

4,410,000

4,760,000

4,840,000

5,055,000

5,255,000

5,470,000

2,181,230

2,025,956

1,785,425

1,528,925

1,284,825

1,088,075

853,575

634,400

439,650

224,500

7,591,230

7,660,956

7,660,425

7,673,925

5,694,825

5,848,075

5,693,575

5,689,400

5,694,650

5,694,500

$ 52,855,000 $ 12,046,561 $ 64,901,561
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Changes in Long-Term Liabilities

Long-term liability activity for the year ended September 30,2017 was as follows:

Internal service funds predominantly serve the governmental funds. Accordingly, long-term liabilities for them

are included as part of the above totals for governmental activities. At year end, $129,280 of internal service

compensated absences; $21,547 OPEB liabilities and $479,463 in Net Pension liabilities are included in the

above statement.

Balance

t0t0u20t6 Additions Reductions

Balance

9t30t2017

Due within one

year

1,555,00;

39,203

2,1 35,000

25,927

1,720,000

69,721

368,773

5,913,624

200,000

125,000

1,005,000

350,000

7,593,624

5,000

5,000

Governmental activities:

Bonds payable:

Revenue Bonds LC Public Imp 2007

Defened amount ofrevenue bonds

Revenue Refunding Bonds

Defened amount ofrevenue bonds

Revenue Bonds LC Public Imp 2010

Defened amount ofrevenue bonds

Revenue Refunding Bonds

LC Public Imp 2014

Defened amount ofrevenue bonds

Revenue Refunding Bonds LC

Public Imp 2017

Deferred amount ofrevenue bonds

Total bonds payable

Compensated absences

Other post-employement benefi ts

Net pension liability

Lake Charles City Court building loan

DEQ loan

Cooperative endeavor - Sales Tax Dist. 3

Long-term liabilities

Business-type activities:

I Compensated absences
I

I Other post-employement benefits

Net pension liability

Long-term liabilities

7,530,000

224,559

8,l0o,ooo

196,01 6

28,445,000

1,069,455

15,605,000

784,364

61,954,394

3,916,03 1

2,224,708

64,120,707

2,475,000

10,509,239

r.314.492

146,514,571

563,597

284,492

24,140,000

3.687.728

27,827,728

470,976

238,876

7,389,862

8,0t2.944

43,940,386

134,630

31 ,390

(7,530,000)

(224,559)

(1,500,000)

(39,203)

(21,760,000)

(8 I 0,1 82)

( I 75,000)

(69,721)

J
(32, I 08,665)

(417,176)

(233,498)

(8,224,344)

(1 I 5,000)

(964,000)

(I0r,577)

(34,182)

6,600,000

156,813

6,685,000

259,273

15,430,000

714,643

24,740,000

3,687,728

57,673,457

3,969,831

2,230,086

63,286,225

2,360,000

I 7,558,1 83

964,492

596,650

281 ,700

4,620,468

5,498,818

-$

(350,000'

42,412,683 148,042,274

1,544

4,919,633 r.317

1,151,485 602,561

(738,320)

$
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5.

In the current year compensated absences were paid from the following governmental funds:

General Fund Wastewater Fund

Other Special Revenue

Funds

$ 393,531 $ 9,683 $ 13,443

In the current and prior years, other post-employment benefits and net pension liabilities are paid primarily
from the General Fund.

Refunding of Bonds

On May 24,2017 the Louisiana Local Government Environmental Facilities and Community Development

Authority (LCDA) authorized on the behalf of the City of Lake Charles the issue of $24,140,000 in Revenue

Refunding Bonds, Series 2017. The proceeds of the bonds will be used by the City for the purpose of 1)

current refunding portions of the Authority's $34,380,000 Revenue Bonds Series 2007 maturing May 7,2020;
May l, 2021; and May l, 2023;2) advance refunding portions of the Authority's $39,280,000 Revenue Bonds

Series 2010 maturing May 1, 20211'May 1,2022; May 1, 2023;May 1,2024; May l, 2025;May 1,2026 and

May 1, 2027; (collectively, the "Revenue Refunding Bonds Series 2017) and 3) paying the cost of issuance of
the Series 201 7 bonds. The Bonds mature on May 1 of each year beginnin 92020 through 2027 with interest of
4Yoto 5o/o. The reacquisition price exceeded the net carrying amount of the old debt by $774,962. This amount

is being reported as a deferred outflow of resources and amortized over the life of the new debt, which is the

same as the old debt. Amortization for 2017 was $77,496. The amount includes S908,437 from the 2014

Revenue Refunding Bonds.

As a result of the refunding, the cash flow difference between the old debt service and new debt service

amounted to $1,390,876. The present value difference between the old debt service cash flows and new debt

service cash flows amounted to an economic gain of $1,220,207. The City recognized a reoffering premium

on refunding of $3,687,728 related to these bonds and is the deferred amount shown as of September 30,

2017.

Defeasance of Debt

The City of Lake Charles defeased certain revenue bonds by placing tle proceeds of the new bond in an

irrevocable ffust to provide for all future debt service payments on the refunded bonds. Accordingly, the trust

account assets and the liability for the defeased bonds are not included in the City's financial statements. As

of September 30, 2077, $19,720,000 of outstanding bonds refunded during the current fiscal year are

considered defeased.

Other Information

A. Risk Management

As of July 1, 1986 the City became self-insured with regard to workmen's compensation, auto

Iiability, general liability, and a portion of police professional liability risk. The Risk Management

Fund was established as an internal service fund at that date to account for all claims, expenses and

administrative costs related to these self-insured and retained risks. The fund uses a third-party

administrator to service and estimate claim losses, and uses both in-house legal staff and outside

counsel for defense of self-insured claims. Excess risk or stop-loss coverages are used to limit
retained risk where feasible, and the cost of such coverages is also paid through the Risk Management

Fund.
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As an internal service activity, the Risk Management Fund is a proprietary fund in which both current
and long-term liabilities for claims and losses are recognized and reported when the liability is
incurred. Financial resources are provided to the fund primarily through internal service charges that
are distributed among other departments and funds in proportion to estimated risk and prior loss

experience. A portion of the fund's accumulated resources is designated for catastrophic losses as

provided by authorizing ordinance. Any remaining fund equity is reserved for subsequent workmen's
compensation and liability claims on an aggregate basis.

The Nsk Management Fund also accounts for payment of hazard insurance premiums and third-party
claims administration services under a comprehensive risk limitation and insurance program. Under
this program, the City's retained risk for all auto liability and general liability is generally limited to a
maximum of $500,000 per claim or loss. The City's self-insured retention for workmen's
compensation is $550,000 for all employees.

Total net position at September 30,2017 was $ I 1,942,407 . Specific ordinance authorization is required
of any claim in excess of $100,000 or for any reduction or use of the amount designated for
catastrophic loses. However, all estimable claims are accrued as current or long-term liabilities when
incurred, without regard to the level of authorization required for payment.

The City established a self-insurance program for employee health benefits as ofJanuary l, 1993 and

accounts for this program through a separate internal service fund. Total net position of that fund at

September 30,2017 was$7,746,201. The amount of risk retained by the fund during 2017 was limited
to $135,000 per claimant through use ofpurchased stop-loss coverage.

Changes in the balances of claims liabilities during the past year are as follows:

6,679,108

3,798,300

9,379,108

10,321,706

(9,962,339)

Unpaid claims, beginning of fiscal year 2016:

Incurred and adjusted claims

Claim payments

Unpaid claims, beginning of fiscal year 2017 :

Incuned and adjusted claims

Claim payments

Total unpaid claims September 30, 2017:

Current claims due within one year

Long-term claims due one year or more

Total unpaid claims September 30,2017:

1,750,000

6,080,31 I

6,180,311'

8,738,475

8,632,773

(9,178,230)

5,194,198

1,349,920

6,844, I 98

1,348,820

6,543,0 1 8 $ 8,193,018
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Property Tax

The City levies taxes on real and business personal property located within its boundaries. Property
taxes are levied by the City on property values assessed by the Calcasieu Parish Tax Assessor and

approved by the State of Louisiana Tax Commission. All millages except the General Alimony tax
were reauthorized in 2006 for an additional 10 years. The distribution of the City's levy (tax rate per

$1,000 assessed value) to its funds was as follows for 2017 and 2016:

Tax

l'iscal year

2017

l'iscal year

2016

GeneralAlimony

Special recreation

Employee salary

Special street improvement

TotalMillage

6.02

1,69

5.23

2.29

6.07

1.70

5.27

2.31

1s.231 1s.35

Contingencies and Commitments

The City has a number of outstanding contracts, the breach of any, of which could result in a liability to
the City. The amount of the liability to the City at September 30,2017, if any, is not estimable.

Joint Service Agreements

The City of Lake Charles and the Calcasieu Parish Police Jury entered into a joint service agreement,

with an effective date of January l, 2010, regarding operational responsibility for a consolidated animal

services and shelter program. The term of the agreement was for the calendar year 2010 through 2012,

with an optional renewal period of three years. The City agreed to fund one-half of the operating
budget, after the reduction for self-generated revenue and other specified grant revenue. The fifty
percent amount is based on the average service call breakdown between the City and the Parish. The

2017 payment was $424,208.

The City of Lake Charles and the Calcasieu Parish Police Jury are statutorily required to fund the

operations of the Ward Three Court and Marshal's Office. The Parish paid the City $229,210 in 2017

under this agreement.

On July 20,2004, the City and the Calcasieu Parish Police Jury entered into a joint services agreement

regarding the management of Fire Protection District 2 of Ward 3. In that agreement, the Parish

dissolved the existing board of directors and assumed that responsibility. The City of Lake Charles

assumed the day-to-day management of those operations, which would be inclusive of any budgetary,

decision-making requirements. The Parish would continue to collect the property tax revenue on behalf
of the District while paying the City for their management services. The ownership of the District's
assets would not be transferred under this joint services agreement, and any costs associated with major
improvements or capital expenditures would remain the responsibility of the District. The fee for the

management services provided is the full amount of the property tax collections and the state revenue

sharing collections paid to the District. ln2017, the Parish remitted $2,215,059 to the City. The activity
of this District is presented as a blended component unit of the Parish since the Police Jury's and the

District's governing board are the same.

C.

D.
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Gaming Activity and Agreements

ln 2007, the City of Lake Charles and the Calcasieu Parish Police Jury entered into a cooperative
endeavor agreement thereby creating the Calcasieu Parish Gaming Revenue District which is
responsible for collecting fees and assessments related to gaming activity conducted within the
boundaries of the Parish and the City of Lake Charles and then distributing those collections to
participating entities. The entities eligible for participation in this distribution are currently the Parish,
the City of Lake Charles, the City of Sulphur, the City of Dequincy, the Town of Vinton, the Town of
Iowa and the Town of Westlake. Specifically excluded from the definition of gaming revenues to be
collected by the new district is the annual cash payment received by the Parish from the Isle of Capri.
The City received $10,657,944 during fiscal year 2017 as a result of this agreement.

Other Postemployment Benefits Other than Pensions (OPEB)

For the fiscal year ended September 30, 2009, the City implemented Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 45, "Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions." This statement addresses the fact that certain
postemployment benefits other than pensions, which for the City consists of healthcare benefits only,
are related to employee services and salaries received presently but that will benefit the employee in the
future, upon retirement, and whose costs will be borne by the City in the future. This statement
attempts to quantifu the future "retirement" costs that have been earned by the employee during his
active years of employment. The City will finance the postemployment benefits on a "pay-as-you-go"
basis. Accordingly, a liability is recognized in the financial statements for the actuarial determined
amount of postemployment benefits that are associated with the normal costs of benefits attributable to
service in the current year as well as an amortization of any unfunded actuarial accrued liability for
costs of benefits associated with prior years of employment.

The notes to the furancial statements contain other required disclosure information such as the

estimated costs today of providing the postemployment benefits to all of our current employees once
they retire, not just the liability referred to above that is actually recognized in the statements of net
position. The City contracted with a third-party consultant to perform the actuarial valuation required
by GASB Statement No. 45 for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2017. GASB Statement No. 45

requires biennially valuations for plans with memberships exceeding 200. The projected unit credit
actuarial cost method was used for the September 30, 2008, 2010 and 2014 actuarial valuations. The

Projected Unit Cost Method was used for the September 30,2016 actuarial valuation. The schedule of
funding progress is presented immediately following the financial statements as required
supplementary information. The schedule of funding progress presents multi-year trend information
about whether the actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the

actuarial accrued liability for benefits. The Valuation Reports for the City of Lake Charles - GASB 45

Actuarial Valuation - is available at City of Lake Charles, 326 Pujo Street, Lake Charles, LA 70601 .

Plan Description: The City OPEB Plan is a single employer defined benefit plan. Employees are

eligible for retiree health benefits if they are eligible for a pension from their respective retirement
system, and they are enrolled in the City of Lake Charles health plan at the time of retirement. City
employees may retire upon attaining 1) age 60 with 10 years of service; or 2) at any age with 30 years

of service. Police employees may retire upon attaining 1) age 55 with 12 years of service; or 2) at any
age with 20 years of service. Fire employees may retire upon attaining l) age 55 with 12 years of
service; 2) age 50 with 20 years of service; or 3) at any age with 25 years of service. In addition, if an

employee becomes disabled under the terms of his retirement system, he shall be eligible for medical
benefits. City employees must have l0 years of service at time of disability. Police and fire employees
must have 5 years of service at time of disability.

Upon election, spouses and children are eligible for coverage. In the event of death after satisffing the

criteria for retirement, but prior to actual retirement, a surviving spouse and dependents are eligible for
benefits. Participants over 65 are covered under a retiree-pay-all Medicare Advantage plan.

F.
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The City offers dental and vision benefits to its retirees. However, those benefits are fully insured and
retiree-pay-all, so the City has no liability forthose benefits. A life benefit of $10,000 is available at

retirement. The current cost of the life insurance is $7.10 per month and is completely paid by the
retirees. Therefore, there is no liability to the City for life insurance benefits.

Funding Policy: The contribution requirements of the retirees and the participating employees are

established in the annual operating budget and may be amended in the subsequent year by City
management. As stated previously, the required contribution is based on projected pay-as-you-go
financing requirements. The employer contribution to the OPEB plan for 2017 was S169,898. For
coverage under the plan prior to age 65, retirees pay the active premium. There is no retiree
contribution to the OPEB plan other than the retiree share of insurance premiums paid monthly which
for 2017 consisted of$585 per month for retiree only and $1,170 for retiree and dependent coverage.
After age 65, retirees may participate in a retiree-pay-all Medicare Advantage plan. Three optional
plans are administered by Blue Cross Blue Shield and are completely paid by the retiree. Pharmacy
benefits are included. Therefore, there is no post- retirement benefit increase/liability to the City after
age 65.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions: All calculations are based on the OPEB benefits provided under
the terms of the substantive plan in effect at the time of such valuation and on the pattern of sharing of
costs between the employer and plan members to that point. The actuarial valuations for the OPEB
plan involves estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions about the probability of
events far into the future, and the actuarially determined amounts are subject to continual revision as

results are compared to past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The actuarial
calculations of the OPEB plan also reflect a long-term perspective and liability for the future premiums
expected to be paid by the retiree for their own and their dependents' coverage. This liability is based

on the current premium rates without adjustment for age or gender. It also is based on the terms of the
retiree medical program. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that are

designed to reduce the effects of short-term volatility in actuarial liabilities and the actuarial value of
assets, consistent with the long-term perspective ofthe calculations.

Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes include the types of benefits provided at the
time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and
the plan members. The actuarial cost method and assumptions used for determining the benefit
obligation is the Projected Unit Credit Cost Method for the October 1, 2016 actuarial valuations.

Method and Assumptions:
o The Projected Unit Cost Method was the Actuarial Method used for the October 1, 2016

calculation.
r The Service Cost was determined for each employee as the Actuarial Present Vale of Benefits

allocated to the valuation year. The benefit attributed to the valuation year is that incremental
portion of the total projected benefit earned during the year in accordance with the plan's
benefit formula. This allocation is based on each participant's service between date of hire
and expected termination.

o The Accumulated Post-Retirement Benefit Obligation is the Actuarial Present Value of Benefits
allocated to all periods prior to the valuation year. The assumed Discount Rate was 4% (l%
real rate of return plus 3% inflation).

. The Average Per Capital Claim Cost, determined as of October 1,2016, varied by age: Age 55

Medical cost of $9,434 up to $12,310 for age 64.
r Heath Case Cost Trend rate was a level 5.50%.
o Mortality Rate was based on the RPH - 2014 Total Table with Projections MP-2016.
o Salary Increase Rate was assumed tobe 3o/o.

o Turnover Rates for the valuation reports were varying by years of service and whether public
service or non-public service employees. Demographic assumptions regarding turnover
disability are based on statistics taken from the Municipal Employees' Retirement System of
Louisiana (MERSLA) Plan B report and from the Louisiana Municipal Police Employees'
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Retirement System (LAMPERS) valuation. Sample rates for non-public service employees
turnover rates, based on year of service: 5 years of service, l0%; 10 years of service, 5%o;20

or more years of service;2o/o.
o Disability rates were not assumed.
o Retirement Rates vary by age, with average retirement age of 62. Retirement rates vary between

public service and non-public service employees. Rates based on MERSLA - Plan B and
LAMPERS report.

o Retiree Contributions are based on 100% of the total monthly premium for active employees.
o Date Assumptions

females, 50Yo are married.

continue with the same coverage. 25%o of all actives who currently have individual
healthcare coverage will continue with the same coverage upon retirement. 18.75%o of
actives with dependent coverage will continue with induvial coverage and 6.25Yo will
continue with dependent coverage.

To determine the future trend rate assumptions, the Actuarial Valuation considered both near-term and

long-term expectations of healthcare inflation. The Actuary used GASB accounting methodology to
determine the postretirement medical benefit obligations. The Amortization Period used to determine

the amortization cost for the initial Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability is a level period for 30 years

on an open period.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB Obligation: The City annual OPEB costs were calculated based on
the annual required contribution of the employer (ARC), an amount actuarially determined in

accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement No. 45. The ARC represents a level of funding,
which if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover normal costs each year and amortize any
unfunded actuarial liabilities over the actuarial amortization period. The ARC was calculated as part of
the October l, 2016 actuarial valuation performed by an outside actuary consultant. The following
table shows the components of the City's annual OPEB costs for the year and the amount estimated to
have been contributed to the plan during the year:

Comparable costs and liabilities for fiscal year 2011 are lower than those calculated in the previous valuation
for fiscal year 2015. The primary reason is the current per capita medical costs are considerably lower than

those used in the previous valuation. The current trend rate assumption and the active election rate for family
coverage at retirement are also lower than in the previous valuation.

Determination of Net OPEB Obiligation

I 50,1 6

Interest on prior year Net OPEB Obligation

Adjustment to ARC

Annual OPEB Cost

City contributions made

Increase in Net OPEB Obligation

Net OPEB Obligation - beginning of year

Net OPEB Obligation - end of year

152,451
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Trend Information for OPEB Plan:

Funding Status and Funding Progress: The following is a Schedule ofFunding Status and Funding Progress

for the OPEB Plan based on the current actuarial valuation:

Retirement Commitments

Plan Descriptions

The City participates in four state-administered cost-sharing multiple-employer retirement systems,

which together cover substantially all of the City's full-time employees: Municipal Employees'

Retirement System (MERS), Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System (MPERS), Firefighters'

Retirement System (FRS) and Louisiana State Employees' Retirement System (LASERS) of the State

of Louisiana. These systems are cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans

administered by separate boards of tmstees. Article 10, Section 29 of the Louisiana Constitution of
1974 assigns the authority to establish and amend benefit provisions to the state legislature. The

systems issue annual, publicly-available financial reports that include financial statements and required

supplementary information for the systems. Although separately administered by their respective

boards of tmstees, these systems are established and regulated by acts of the Louisiana Legislature with
respect to membership and contribution requirements, plan benefits, and actuarial determination of
funding requirements as provided by the state constitution. The City of Lake Charles implemented

Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement 68 on Accounting and Financial

Reporting for Pensions and Statement 7l on Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent

to the Measurement Date - an Amendment of GASB 68. Additional disclosures with respect to
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GASB 68 to the City's participation in these systems are provided below. The reports for MERS,
MPERS, FRS, and LASERS may be obtained at www.mersla.com. www.lampers.org,
www.lafirefightersret.com and www.lasersonline.org respectively. the Municipal Employees'
Retirement System (MERS) issues a publicly available financial report, which may be obtained by
writing to that system at 9737 Office Park Boulevard, Baton Rouge, LA 70809. The financial report for
the Municipal Police Employees' Retirement System (MPERS) may be obtained by writing to that
system at 8401 United Plaza Boulevard Suite 270,Baton Rouge, LA 70809-7017. The financial report
for the Firefighters' Retirement System (FRS) may be obtained by writing to that system at P.O. Box
94095, Capitol Station, Baton Rouge, LA 70804-9095. The financial report for LASERS may be

obtained by writing to that system at 8401 United Plaza Blvd., #100, Baton Rouge, LA 70809.

Plan Description- MERS

MERS was originally established by Act 356 of the 1954 regular session of the Legislature of the State

of Louisiana and is composed of two distinct plans, Plan A and Plan B, with separate assets and benefit
provisions. All employees of the City of Lake Charles are members of Plan B. All permanent

employees working at least 35 hours per week who are not covered by another pension plan and are

paid wholly or in part from municipal funds and all full-time elected municipal officials are eligible to
participate in MERS.

Plan Description- MPERS

All full-time police department employees engaged in law enforcement are required to participate in
MPERS providing he or she does not have to pay social security and providing he or she meets the

statutory criteria. MPERS provides retirement benefits for municipal police officers. The projections of
benefit payments in the calculation of the total pension liability includes all benefits to be provided to

current active and inactive employees through MPERS in accordance with benefit terms and any

additional legal agreements to provide benefits that are in force at the measurement date. Benefit
provisions are authorized within Act 189 of 1973 and amended by LRS 1l:2211-11:2233.

Plan Description- FRS

The Firefighters' Retirement System (FRS) is the administrator of a cost-sharing, multiple-employer,
defined benefit pension plan. Membership in the System is a condition of employment for any full-time
firefighters who eam at least S375 per month and are employed by any municipality, parish, or fire
protection district of the State of Louisiana in addition to employees of the Firefighters' Retirement

System. The System provides retirement benefits for their members. The projections of benefit payments

in the calculation of the total pension liability include all benefits to be provided to current active and

inactive employees through the System in accordance with benefit terms and any additional legal

agreements to provide benefits that are in force at the measurement date.

Benefit provisions are authorized within Act 434 of 1979 and amended by LRS 1l:2251-11:2272. The

following is a brief description of the plan and its benefits and is provided for general information
purposes only. Participants should refer to the appropriate statutes for more complete information.

Any person who becomes an employee as defined in RS 1l:.2252 on and after January 1, 1980 shall

become a member as a condition of employment.

No person who has attained age fifty or over shall become a member of the System, unless the person

becomes a member by reason of a merger or unless the System received an application for membership

before the applicant attained the age of fifty. No person who has not attained the age of eighteen years

shall become a member ofthe System.
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Any person who has retired from service under any retirement system or pension fund maintained
basically for public officers and employees of the state, its agencies or political subdivisions, and who is

receiving retirement benefits therefrom may become a member of this System, provided the person meets

all other requirements for membership. Service credit from the retirement system or pension plan from
which the member is retired shall not be used for reciprocal recognition of service with this System, or
for any other purpose in order to attain eligibility or increase the amount of service credit in this System.

Plan Description- LASERS

The City of Lake Charles has two Judges participating in LASERS. The System was established for the
purpose of providing retirement allowances and other benefits as stated under the provisions of LRS
ll:401, as amended, for eligible state officers, employees and their beneficiaries. The projection of
benefit payments in the calculation of total pension liability includes all benefits to be provided to
current active and inactive employees through LASERS in accordance with benefit terms and any legal
agreements in force at the measurement date.

Benefits Provided

Retirement Benefits- MERS (Plan B)

Any member of Plan B hired before January 1,2013 may retire at any age with 30 years of creditable
service or at age 60 with at least l0 years of creditable service. Any member of Plan B hired on or after
January 1 , 2013 may retire at age 67 with at least 7 years of creditable service, at age 62 with at least l0
years of creditable service, or at age 55 with at least 30 years of creditable service. Members hired on or
after January l, 2013 are also eligible to retire at any age with at least 25 years of creditable service, but
their benefit will be actuarially reduced from the earliest age of which the member would be entitled to
a vested deferred benefit under any of the previously-mentioned provisions, if the member had

continued in service to that age. Members are entitled to a retirement benefit, payable monthly for life,
equal to 2o/o of the member's final compensation (defined below) multiplied by the member's years of
creditable service. However, under certain conditions as outlined in the statutes, the benefits are limited
to specified amounts. Employees who terminate with at least the amount of creditable service stated

above, and do not withdraw their employee contributions, may retire at the ages specified above and

receive the benefit accrued to their date of termination.

Final average compensation is the average monthly earnings during the highest 60 consecutive months,

or joined months if service was intemrpted. However, under certain conditions as outlined in the

statutes, the benefits are limited to specified amounts.

Retirement Benefits- MPERS

Members of MPERS with membership beginning prior to January l, 2013 are eligible for regular

retirement after he or she has been a member of MPERS and has 25 years of creditable service at any
age or has 20 years of creditable service and is age 50 or has 12 years of creditable service and is age

55. A member is eligible for early retirement after he or she has been a member of MPERS for 20 years

of creditable service at any age with an actuarially reduced benefit. Members are entitled to a retirement
benefit, payable monthly for life, equal to three and one-third percent (3.33%) of the member's final
compensation (employee's average salary over the 36 consecutive or joined months that produce the

highest average) multiplied by the member's years of creditable service.

Members of MPERS with membership beginning on or after January 1,2013 are eligible for regular
retirement, early retirement, disability and survivor benefits based on Hazardous Duty and Non-
Hazardous Duty sub plans. Under the Hazardous Duty sub plan, a member is eligible for regular
retirement after he or she has been a member of MPERS and has 25 years of creditable service at any

age or has 12 years of creditable service at age 55. Under the Non-Hazardous Duty sub plan, a member
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is eligible for regular retirement after he or she has been a member of MPERS and has 30 years of
creditable service at any age, 25 years of creditable service at age 55, or 1 0 years of creditable service at

age 60. Under both sub plans, a member is eligible for early retirement after he or she has been a
member of MPERS for 20 years of creditable service at any age, with an actuarially reduced benefit
from age 55. Under the Hazardous and Non-Hazardous Duty sub plans, the benefit rates are three
percent and two and a half percent, respectively, of average final compensation (average monthly
earnings during the highest 60 consecutive months or joined months if service was intemrpted) per
number of years of creditable service not to exceed 100% of final salary.

In 1999, the State Legislature authorized MPERS to establish an Initial Benefit Option program. This is

available to MPERS members who are eligible for regular retirement but have not participated in
DROP. This program provides both a one-time single sum payment of up to 36 months of the regular
monthly retirement benefit, plus a reduced monthly retirement benefit for life.

Retirement Benefits- FRS

Members of the FRS with 20 or more years of service who have attained age 50, or employees who
have 12 years of service who have attained age 55, or 25 years of service at any age are entitled to
annual pension benef,rts equal to 3.333% of their average final compensation based on the 36

consecutive months of highest pay multiplied by their total years of service, not to exceed 100%.

Employees may elect to receive their pension benefits in the form of a joint and survivor annuity.

If employees terminate before rendering l2 years of service, they forfeit the right to receive the portion
of their accumulated plan benefits attributable to their employer's contributions. Benefits are payable

over the employees' lives in the form of a monthly annuity. An employee may elect an unreduced

benefit or any ofseven options at retirement.

Retfuement Benefits- LASERS

The age and years of creditable service required in order for a member to retire with full benefits are

established by statute, and vary depending on the member's hire date, employer, and job classification.
Members may either retire with full benefits at arry age upon completing 30 years of creditable service
or at age 60 upon completing five to ten years of creditable service depending on their plan. Members

may also choose to retire with 20 years of service at any age, with an actuarially reduced benefit. The

basic annual retirement benefit for members is equal to 2.5Yo to 3.5o of average compensation

multiplied by the number of years of creditable service. Act 992 of the 2010 Louisiana Regular

Legislative Session, changed the benefit structure for LASERS members hired on or after January 1,

2011. This resulted in three new plans: regular, hazardous duty, andjudges. The new regular plan
includes regular members and those members who were formerly eligible to participate in specialty
plans, excluding hazardous duty and judges. Regular members and judges are eligible to retire at age 60

after five years of creditable service and, may also retire at any age, with a reduced benefit, after 20

years of creditable service. Hazardous duty members are eligible to retire with twelve years of
creditable service at age 55, 25 years of creditable service at any age or with a reduced benefit after 20
years of creditable service. Average compensation will be based on the member's average annual
earned compensation for the highest 60 consecutive months of employment for all three new plans.

Members in the regular plan will receive a 2.5o/o accrual rate, hazardous duty plan a 3.33% accrual
rate, and judges a3.5o/o accrual rate. The extra l.|Yo accrual rate for each year of service for court
officers, the governor, lieutenant governor, legislators, house clerk, sergeants at arms, or Senate

secretary, employed after January 1,2011, was eliminated by Act 992. Specialty plan and regular
members, hired prior to January 1, 201 l, who are hazardous duty employees have the option to
transition to the new hazardous duty plan. A member leaving employment before attaining minimum
retirement age, but after completing certain minimum service requirements, becomes eligible for a

benefit provided the member lives to the minimum service retirement age, and does not withdraw
their accumulated contributions. The minimum service requirement is ten years of service.
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Deferred Retirement Options

In lieu of terminating employment and accepting a service retirement allowance, any member of MERS who
is eligible to retire may elect to participate in the deferred retirement option plan (DROP) for up to three years
and defer the receipt of benefits. A MERS member may participate in DROP only once. During participation
in the plan, employer contributions are payable but employee conffibutions cease. The monthly retirement
benefits that would be payable, had the person elected to cease employment, are credited to the MERS
member's individual DROP account. Interest is earned when the member has completed DROP participation.
Upon termination of employment prior to or at the end of the participation period, the member may receive a
lump sum from the account or a true annuity based on the account balance. If employment is not terminated at

the end of the three year DROP participation period, payments into the DROP account cease and the person

resumes active contributing membership in MERS.

A member of MPERS is eligible to enter DROP when he or she is eligible for regular retirement based on the
members' sub plan participation. At the entry date into DROP, employee and employer contributions cease.

The amount deposited into the DROP account for MPERS members is equal to the benefit computed under
the retirement plan elected by participant date of application. Interest is earned when the MPERS member has

completed DROP participation. Upon termination of employment prior to or at the end of the participation
period, the MPERS member may receive a lump sum from the account or a true annuity based on the account
balance.

A member of FRS may elect to participate in the deferred retirement option plan (DROP) for up to 36 months,
after completng 20 years of creditable service and age 50 or 25 years at any age. Upon commencement of
participation in the deferred retirement option plan, employer and employee contributions to the System cease.

The monthly retilement benefit that would have been payable is paid into the defened retirement option plan
account. Upon termination of employment, a participant in the progftIrn has several options to receive their DROP
benefit. A member may (l) elect to roll over all or a portion of their DROP balance into another eligible qualified
plan, (2) receive a lump-sum payment from the account, (3) receive single withdrawals at the discretion of the

member, (4) receive monthly or annual withdrawals, or (5) receive an annuity based on the DROP account
balance. These withdrawals are in addition to his regular monthly benefit. If employment is not terminated at the
end of the 36 months, the panicipant resumes regular contributions to the System. No payments may be made

from the defened retirement option plan account until the participant retires. Effective Jtne 16, 1999, members
eligible to retire and who do not choose to participate in DROP may elect to receive, at the time of retirement, an

initial benefit option (IBO) in an amount up to 36 months of benefits, with an actuarial reduction of their future
benefits. Such amounts may be withdrawn or remain in the IBO account earning interest at the same rate as the

DROP account.

A member of LASERS is eligible to enter DROP when he or she is eligible for regular retirement based on
service requirements. The State Legislature authorized LASERS to establish a Deferred Retirement Option
Plan (DROP). When a member enters DROP, their status changes from active member to retiree even
though they continue to work and draw their salary for a period of up to three years. The election is
irrevocable once participation begins. During DROP participation, accumulated retirement benefits that
would have been paid to each retiree are separately tracked. For members who entered DROP prior to
January l, 2004, interest at a rate of one-half percent less than the System's realized return on its portfolio
(not to be less than zero) will be credited to the retiree after participation ends. At that time, the member
must choose among available alternatives for the distribution of benefits that have accumulated in the
DROP account. Members who enter DROP on or after January l, 2004, are required to participate in
LASERS Self-Directed Plan (SDP) which is administered by a third-party provider. The SDP allows
DROP participants to choose from a menu of investment options for the allocation of their DROP balances.
Participants may diversiff their investments by choosing from an approved list of mutual funds with
different holdings, management styles, and risk factors. Members eligible to retire and who do not choose to
participate in DROP may elect to receive at the time of retirement an initial benefit option (IBO) in an

amount up to 36 months of benefits, with an actuarial reduction of their future benefits. For members
who selected the IBO option prior to January 1,2004, such amount may be withdrawn or remain in the
IBO account earning interest at a rate of one-half percent less than the System's realized return on its
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portfolio (not to be less than zero). Those members who select the IBO on or after January 1,2004, are
required to enter the SDP as described above.

Disability Benefits

A member of MERS Plan B is eligible to retire and receive a disability benefit if he or she has at least l0
years of creditable service, is not eligible for normal retirement and has been officially certified as disabled by
the State Medical Disability Board. The monthly maximum retirement benefit under Plan B of MERS is the

lesser of an amount equal to two percent of member's final compensation multiplied by years of service (not
less than 30% of member's final compensation) or an amount equal to what the member's normal retirement
benefit would be based on final compensation at time of disability, but assuming continuous service until
member's earliest normal retirement age.

A member of MPERS is eligible to retire and receive a disability benefit if he or she has been certified as

disabled by the State Medical Disability Board. If the disability incurred is job-related, there is no minimum
creditable service requirement. If the disability is non-job-related, a minimum of l0 years of creditable
service is required if the member was employed on or after July 1, 2008. Members of MPERS employed prior
to July l, 2008 must have a minimum of 5 years of creditable service to be eligible to retire with disability
benefits if the disability incurred is non-job-related. The disability benefit received by a MPERS member is

equal to three percent ofhis or her final average compensation multiplied by years ofcreditable service (not

less than 40o/o, nor more than 60% of final average compensation). At the time the disabled MPERS member

reaches normal retirement age, he or she will have the option to continue to receive the disability retirement
benefit or to receive his or her vested retirement benefit.

A member of FRS disability benefit or any member who has been officially certified as totally disabled
solely as the result of injuries sustained in the performance of his official duties, or for any cause, provided

the member has at least five years of creditable service and provided that the disability was incurred while
the member was an active contributing member, is entitled to disability benefits. Any member under the

age of fifty who becomes totally disabled will receive a disability benefit equal to 60% of final
compensation for an injury received in the line of duty; or 750/o of his accrued retirement benefit with a
minimum of 25o/o of average salary for any injury received, even though not in the line of duty. Any member

age fifty or older who becomes totally disabled from an injury sustained in the line of duty is entitled to a
disability benefit equal to the greater of 60Yo of final compensation or his accrued retirement benefit. Any
member age fifty or older who becomes totally disabled as a result of any injury, even though not in the

line of duty, is entitled to a disability benefit equal to his accrued retirement benefit with a minimum of
25%o of average salary. The surviving spouse of a member who was on disability retirement at the time

of death receives a benefit of $200 per month. When the member takes disability retirement, he may, in
addition, take an actuarially reduced benefit in which case the member's surviving spouse receives 50%, of
the disability benefit being paid immediately prior to the death of the disability retiree. The retirement
system may reduce benefits paid to a disability retiree who is also receiving workers compensation

payments.

A member of LASERS with ten or more years of credited service who becomes disabled may receive a

maximum disability retirement benefit equivalent to the regular retirement formula without reduction by
reason of age. Upon reaching age 60, the disability retiree may receive a regular retirement benefit by
making application to the Board of Trustees. For injuries sustained in the line of duty, hazardous duty
personnel in the Hazardous Duty Services Plan will receive a disability benefit equal to 75oh of frnal
average compensation.

Survivor's Benefit

The surviving spouse (defined as someone married to the deceased member for at least 12 months

immediately preceding the member's death) of a MERS Plan B member (not eligible for retirement at the

time of death) will receive a survivor benefit, provided that the member had 5 or more years of creditable
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service. The surviving spouse will be paid either a monthly benefit equal to 30Yo of member's final
compensation, payable when surviving spouse attains the age of 60 or becomes disabled, or a monthly benefit
equal to actuarial equivalent of the benefit described previously (not less than 75Yo of member's final
compensation), payable upon the death of the member. A MERS Plan B member who is eligible for normal
retirement at the time of death will be deemed to have retired and selected Option 2 benef,rts on behalf of the
surviving spouse upon the date of death. Benefits will begin only upon proper application and are paid in lieu
ofany other survivor benefits.

Survivor benefits for MPERS members are payable to the surviving spouse or surviving minor child/children
of a deceased active contributing member or a deceased disability retiree. Survivor benefits are not payable to
survivors of retirees receiving benefits under the provisions of early or normal service retirement. The
maximum benefit for a surviving spouse of a MPERS member is equal to the regular retirement formula,
regardless of age, but not less than 40oh or more than 60% of the deceased member's final average

compensation. There is no requirement for minimum years of creditable service. If the MPERS member is

killed in the line of duty, the surviving spouse shall receive a benefit equal to 100% of the deceased member's
final average compensation, less any survivor benefits payable to a child or children. Each surviving minor
child of the MPERS member will receive a benefit equal to l0%o of deceased member's final average

compensation or $200 per month, whichever is greater. Benefits for a surviving child cease upon the child's
attainment of age 18 or upon marriage, whichever occurs first. The benefit may continue after age l8 if the
child meets certain educational or disability requirements. The surviving minor child may receive an

increased benefit if there is no surviving spouse of the MPERS member.

Survivor benefits for FRS are payable to survivors of a deceased member who dies and is not eligible for
retirement as follows. If any member is killed in the line of duty and leaves a surviving eligible spouse, the
spouse is entitled to an annual benefit equal to two-thirds of the deceased member's final compensation. If
any member dies from a cause not in the line of duty, the surviving spouse is entitled to an annual benefit
equal to 3%o of the deceased member's average final compensation multiplied by his total years of
creditable service; however, in no event is the annual benefit less than 40oh nor more than 60%o of the
deceased member's average final compensation. Children of the deceased member who are under the age

of eighteen years are entitled to the greater of $200 per month or 10Yo of average final compensation
(not to exceed 100% of average final compensation) until reaching the age of eighteen or until the age of
twenty-two if enrolled full-time in an institution of higher learning, unless the surviving child is physically
handicapped or mentally retarded in which case the benefit is payable regardless of age. If a deceased

member dies leaving no surviving spouse, but at least one minor child, each child is entitled to receive forty
percent of the deceased's average final compensation, not to exceed an aggregate of sixty percent of average

final compensation.

Certain eligible LASERS surviving dependents receive benefits based on the deceased member's
compensation and their relationship to the deceased. The deceased member who was in state service at

the time of death must have a minimum of five years of service credit, at least two of which were earned
immediately prior to death, or who had a minimum of twenty years of service credit regardless of when
earned in order for a beneht to be paid to a minor or handicapped child. Benefits are payable to an unmarried
child until age 18, or age 23 if the child remains a full-time student. The aforementioned minimum service

credit requirement is ten years for a surviving spouse with no minor children, and benefits are to be paid
for life to the spouse or qualified handicapped child.

Cost of Living Increases

MERS is authorized under state law to grant an annual cost of living adjustment to members who have been

retired for at least one year. The adjustment cannot exceed 2Yo of the retiree's original benefit and may only
be granted if sufficient funds are available. The cost of living increase must be paid from investment income
in excess of normal requirements.
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MPERS is authorized to provide annual cost of living adjustments to members who have been retired for at
least one full fiscal year. The adjustment cannot exceed 3oh in any given year. MPERS members who elect
early retirement are not eligible for a cost of living adjustment until they reach regular retirement age.

FRS is authorized to grant retired members and widows of members who have retired an annual cost of living
increase up to 3% of their current benefit, and all retired members and widows who are 65 year of age and
older a 2o/o increase in their annual benefits. In order for the board to grant either of these increases, the
System must meet certain criteria detailed in the statute related to finding status and interest earnings.

The present value of future LASERS retirement benefits are based on benefits currently being paid by the
System and include previously granted cost of living increases. The present values do not include provisions
for potential future increases not yet authorized by the Board of Trustees as they were deemed not to be

substantively automatic. As fully described in Title I I of the Louisiana Revised Statutes, LASERS allows for
the payment of permanent benefit increases, also known as cost-of-living adjustments (COLAs) that are

funded through investment earnings when recommended by the Board of Trustees and approved.

Contributions

The MERS, MPERS, FRS, and LASERS employer contribution rates are established annually under LRS
l1:101-l l:104 by the Public Retirement Systems' Actuarial Committee (PRSAC), taking into consideration

the recommendation of the system's actuary. Each plan pays a separate actuarially-determined employer
contribution rate. For the year ending September 30,2017 the employer contribution rate for MERS Plan B
was 13.25o/o: MPERS was 30.7 5Yo; FRS was 26.50Yo; and LASERS was 40. I 07o & 39.60oh for those hired

after January l,20ll. Employer contributions to MERS, MPERS, FRS, and LASERS were $1,968,971;

$2,752,521; $2,190,828; and $12,839 respectively, for the year ended September 30,2077. Employees

participating in MERS are required to contribute 5.00%: employees participating in MPERS are required to
contribute 10.00%; employees participating in the FRS are required to contribute 10.00%; employees

participating in LASERS are required to contribute 11.50% &.13% hired after January 1,2011.

Contributions received by a pension plan from non-employer contributing entities that are not in a special

funding situation are recorded as revenue by the respective pension plan. MERS receives ad valorem taxes

and state revenue sharing funds. MPERS receives insurance premium tax monies appropriated by the

legislature each year based on an actuarial study. FRS receives insurance premium tax monies appropriated

by the legislature each year based on an actuarial study. The City of Lake Charles recognizes revenue in an

amount equal to its proportionate share of the total contributions to the pension plan from these non-employer
contributing entities. During the year ended September 30, 2017,the City of Lake Charles recognized revenue

as a result of support received from non-employer contributing entities of $589,593 for its participation in

MERS; $580,1l8 for its participation in MPERS; and $916,286 for its participation in the FRS.

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of
Resources Related to Pensions:

At September 30,2017, the City of Lake Charles reported a liability for MERS, MPERS, FRS, and LASERS

of $20,489,879,$26,530,219, $20,750,182,and $136,413, respectively, for its proportionate share of the net

pension liability. The net pension liabilities were measured as of June 30, 2017 and the total pension

liabilities used to calculate the net pension liability were determined by actuarial valuations as of that date.

The City of Lake Charles's proportion of the net pension liability for each retirement system was based on a
projection of the City of Lake Charles's long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the

projected contributions of all participating employers, actuarially determined. At June 30, 2016, the City of
Lake Charles's proportion for MERS was 21.7824160/o and increased by 1.898932% to 23.6813487o for June

30,2017 . The City's proportion of MPERS at June 30,2016 was 2.900519o/o, and increased by 0.138305% to
3 .038824% at June 30, 2017 . The City's proportion of FRS was 3.485849Yo at June 30, 2016 and increased

by 0.1343060/oto 3.620155%o at June 30,2017. At June 30,2017, the City's proportion of LASERS was

0.00194% an increase of 0.000030%, from its proportion of .001910% as of June 30,2016.
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For the year ended September 30, 2017, the City of Lake Charles recognized pension expense, for which
there were no forfeitures, as follows:

Pension Plan Pension Expense

MERS $ 4,540,764

MPERS 4,157,269

FRS 3,525,034

LASERS 8,305

Total $ 12,231,372

At September 30,2077, the City of Lake Charles reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows of Resources

MERS MPERS FRS LASERS Total
Differences between expected and actual

exnerience $ 107,33 $ 173,719 $ $ $ 281 ,052

Chanses in assumntions 902,187 1,887,771 867.884 539 3.658,381

Net difference between projected and actual

earnings on pension Dlan investments 4,317,12r 1,161,393 1,785,1 14 4,436 7.268.064

Changes in Proportion and differences between

employer contributions and proportionate share of
contributions 1,082,136 790,884 792,009 2,665,029

Employer contributions subsequent to

measurement date 532,954 619,689 580,507 3,424 1,736,574

Total I $ o,q+t,zltl $ +,ol:,+so l$ +,ozs,sr+ l$ t,lgg | $ rs,ooq,roo
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

During the year ended September 30,2017, employer contributions totaling $532,954; $619,689; $580,507; and

$3,424 were made subsequent to the measurement date for MERS, MPERS, FRS, and LASERS respectively. These

contributions are reported as deferred outflows ofresources and will be recognized as a reduction ofthe net pension

liability in the year ended September 30, 2017. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and

deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Year Ended June 30:

2018

2019

2020

202t
2021

2022

Total

MERS

2,332,665

2,205,127

1,231,968

194,206

5.963.966 $

MPERS

1,21 1,600

t,7 42,587

1,210,708

(622,495)

FRS

658,1 86

1,015,644

223,645
(78t,923)

72,515
147,753

I,335

LASERS

(548)

3,991

1,775

(2,746)

,472

Actuarial Assumptions

The net pension liability was measured as the portion of the present value of projected benefit payments to be

provided through the pension plan to current active and inactive employees that is attributed to those

employees' past periods of service, less the amount of the pension plan's fiduciary net position. The

components of the net pension liability of MERS, MPERS, FRS, and LASERS employers as of June 30,
2017 are as follows:

Deferred Inflows of Resources

MERS MPERS FRS LASERS Total

Differences between expected and actual experience $ 444,811 $ 203,916 $ 1,157,174 $ 2,503 $ 1,808,404

Changes in assumptions 0 4,949 4.949

Net difference between projected and actual earnings

on pension plan investments 0 0 U U

Uhanges ln Proportlon and clrtterences between

employer contributions and proportionate share of
contributions 267.451 947.064 1,214,515

Employer contributions subseequent to measurement

date

Total I s+++,srr | $a7r,i67 I $2,10e,187 I $2

$
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Total pension liabiltiy

Plan fiduciary net position

Total net pension liability

MERS Plan B

236,991,237

150,467,958

86,523,279

FRS

2,166,881,556

MPERS

2,918,064,612

Total pension liability
Plan fiduciary net position

Total net pension liability
1,593,696,648

873,042,303

LASERS

18,792,105,561

ll,7 53,275,850

7,038,829,7ll573,184,908

The City of Lake Charles's allocation is 23.681348Yo of the Total Net Pension Liability for MERS;
3.038824% of the Total Net Pension Liability for MPERS; 3.620155% of the Total Net Pension Liability for
the FRS, and 0.001940oh of the Total Net Pension Liability for LASERS.

The total pension liabilities for MERS, MPERS, FRS, and LASERS in the June 30,2017 actuarial valuations
were determined using the following actuarial assumptions:

MERS MPERS

Actuarial cost method Entry Age Normal Cost Entry Age Normal Cost

Expected remaining
service lives

4 years for Plan B 4 years

Investment rate of return 7.40Yo, net of investment expense 7 .325oA, net of investment expense

Inflation rate 2.775% 2.70%

Projected salary increases
5.00% (2.775% inflation, 2.225%
merit)

Years of Salary
Service Growth Rate
1-2 9.75%
3-23 4.75%
24 & over 4.25%

Cost of living adjustments None None

Mortality

For Annuitant and beneficiary mortality
tables used were: RP-2000 Healthy
Annuitant Sex Distinct Mortality tables
(set forward 2 years for males and set

forward I year for females). For
employees, RP-2000 Employees Sex

Distinct Tables (set back 2 years were
used.) RP-2000 Disabled Lives
Mortality Table (set back 5 years for
males and set back 3 years for females)
was selected for disabled annuitants

Based on an experience study for
the period July l, 2009-June 30,
2014. The RP-2000 Combined
Healthy with Blue Collar
Adjustment Sex Distinct Tables
projected to 2029 by Scale AA (set

back 1 year for females) were
selected for annuitant and
beneficiary mortality. For
employees, the RP-2000 Employee
table set back 4 years for males
and 3 years for females. Disabled
Lives tables were set back 5 years

for males and 3 years for female
disabled annuitants.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The MERS actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2017 valuation were based on the results of an

experience study for the period July l, 2009 through June 30,2014. The MPERS and FRS actuarial
assumptions used in the June 30,2017 valuation were based on the results ofan actuarial experience study for
the period July l, 2009 through June 30, 2014.

The forecasted long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a

building-block method in which best-estimates ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected

returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.

These ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of retum by weighting the expected future
real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation and an

adjustment for the effect of rebalancing/diversification. The resulting expected long-term rate of retum for
MERS is7.2\I6,MPERSis8.19%,FRSis 8.29yo, andLASERS is8.69Yo fortheyearendedJune30,20lT.

FRS LASERS

Actuarial cost method Entry Age Normal Cost Entry Age Normal Cost

Expected remaining
service lives

7 years 3 years

Investment rate of return 7.40Yo, net of investment expense 7 .70oh, net of investment expense

Inflation rate 2.77s% 2.75%

Projected salary increases
Vary from 15.0% in the first two years

of service to 4.750 after 25 years

Member Lower to
Type Upper Range

Regular 3.8% - 12.8%
Judges 2.8% - 5.3%
Corrections 3.4% - 14.3%
Hazardous 

3.4% - r4.3yo
Duty
Wildlife 3.4%- r4.3%

Cost of living adjustments Only those previously granted Only those previously granted

Mortality

Mortality rate assumptions were based

upon experience and data was
combined with the RP-2000

Combined Healthy with Blue Collar
Adjustment Sex Distinct Tables
projected to 2031 using Scale AA
were selected for employee, annuitant
and beneficiary mortality. The RP-
2000 Disables Lives Mortality Table
are set back 5 years for males and 3

year for females for disabled
annuitants.

Mortality rates based on the RP-
2000 Combined Healthy Mortality
Table with monality improvement
projected to 2015 for Non-disabled
members. Mortality rates based on

the RP-2000 Disabled Retiree

mortality Table, with no projection
for mortality improvement for
Disabled members. Termination,
disability, and retirement
assumptions were projected based

on a five year (2009-2013)
experience study of the System's
members.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the target asset

allocation for MERS, MPERS, FRS and LASERS as of June 30,2017 are summarized in the following table:

Discount Rates

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability for MERS was 7.40o/o, MPERS was 7.325Yo, and FRS

was 7.40%o. The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability for LASERS was 7.70o/o. The projection of
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the

current contribution rates and that contributions from participating employers will be made at the actuarially
determined rates approved by PRSAC taking into consideration the recommendation of the actuary. Based on those

assumptions, the net position of MERS, MPERS, FRS, and LASERS were projected to be available to make all
projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on
pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension

liability.

Sensitivity of the Employer's Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount
Rates

The following table presents the City of Lake Charles's proportionate share of the net pension liability using the

discount rate of 7 .40%o for MERS, 7 .325% for MPERS, 7 .40% for FRS, and 7 .70oh for LASERS as well as what the

City of Lake Charles's proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount
rate that is one percentage-point lower (6.40Yo for MERS, 6.325% for MPERS, 6.40% for FRS, and 6.70Yo for
LASERS ) or one percentage-point higher (8.40% for MERS, 8.325% for MPERS, 8.40%o for FRS, and 8.70oh for
LASERS) than the current rate:

Pension Plan l7o Decrease Current Discount I 7o Increase

MERS

MPERS

FRS

LASERS

Total

26,511,602

36,654,056

29,817,210

171,250

20,489,879

26,530,219

20,750,182

136,413

15,351,173

18,037,049

13,128,042

106.792

s 93,154,1 1 8 $ 67 $ J

Term Expected Real Rate of Return

Equity

Fixed income

Alternatives

Other

Subtotal

Inflation adjustment

Total

MERS MPERS FRS LASERSMERS MPERS FRS LASERS

2.30% 3.66% 3.98% 3.32%

1.60% 0.52% 0.47% 29.00%

0.70% t.r'% 0.63% 1.63%

0.00% 0.16% 0.46% 20.00%

50% 53% 57% 57%

35% 2t% 23% t4%

t5% 20% 10% 22%

0% 6% 10% 7%

4.60% 5.44% 5.54% 5.44%

2.60% 2.75% 2.75% 3.2s%

7.20% 8.19% 8.29% 8.69%
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Payables to the Pension Plans

At September 30,2017, payables to MERS, MPERS, FRS, and LASERS were $239,351, $271,108, $270,877, and
$ 1,489 respectively, for September 30,2017 employee and employer legally-required contributions.

H. Federally Assisted Grant Programs

The City participates in a number of federally assisted gant progams, with the principal grantor agencies being the
U.S. Department of Transportation, the Department of Housing and Urban Development, Environmental Protection
Agency, and the U.S. Department of Military Affairs. These programs are subject to compliance audits by the grantors

or their representatives, and the City's compliance with applicable grant requirements for the year ended September
30,2017 will be established at some future date. The amount, if any, of expenditures which may be disallowed by the
ganting agencies cannot be determined at this time, although the City expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

Federal and state governmental units represent an important source of supplemental funding used to finance housing,
construction and infrastructure programs, and other activities beneficial to the City. These funds, primarily in the form
of grants, are recorded in the General, Special Revenue, Capital Project and Enterprise Funds. A grant receivable is

recorded when the City has a right to reimbursement under the related grant. The grants normally specifr the purpose

for which the funds may be used and are subject to audit by the granting agency or its representative using standards
established under the Single Audit Act of 1984 and Uniform Guidance Supplemental Reports. The compliance audit
report is not included within this report but will be issued as a separate supplementary report.

During fiscal year 2017 the following amounts were recorded in the accompanying financial statements under various
federal and state pass-through entitlements:

Fund Fiscal year 2017

Community Development

Grant Fund

Capital Projects Fund

Transit Enterprise Fund

Recreation Fund

Disaster Recovery Fund

600,787

936,759

5 10,139

1,758,443

750

593,477

Dedication of Proceeds and Flow of Funds - Two and One-Half Percent Sales and Use Tax

One Percent Sales and Use Tax:

Proceeds of the one percent sales tax levied bythe City of Lake Charles (2017 collections $25,695,368;2016
collections $24,759,696; 2015 collections$24,233,675;) are collected by the General Fund and may be used for
virtually any operating or capital needs of the City of Lake Charles. This tax levy was originally authorized in
1965 and was recently re-authorized for an additional 25 years from March l, 2015.

$
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Additional Dedicated One Percent Sales Tax:

In November 1986, a sales tax election was held, and the City of Lake Charles was authorized to collect an

additional dedicated one percent sales tax levy for a period of five years commencing January l, 1987. This tax
has since been reauthorized for periods of five years extending through 1996, and then for ten years through
2006. This tax was re-authorized 1112016 for an additional l0 years through 2026.Proceeds of this additional one
percent sales tax levied by the City of Lake Charles (2017 collections $25,695,368; 2016 collections
$24,759,696;2014 collections $24,233,672) were deposited directly to the funds for which they are dedicated on
a percentage basis as follows:

General Fund
Public safety purposes
Public works purposes

Wastewater Special Revenue Fund
Wastewater or sanitary sewerage services or facilities

Recreation Special Revenue Fund
Recreation

Capital Project Fund
Certain types of capital improvements

20Yo

28%

t6%

8%

28%

One-Ouarter Percent Sales Tax - Employee salar.v and Benefits:

The voters approved a sales tax levy of one-quarter of one percent in January 1995 for the purpose of
maintaining the salaries and benefits of City employees. This tax levy is authorized for a period of ten years

from its effective date ofApril l, 1995. This tax has been reauthorized for ten years, extending through 2025.

The revenues from this tax are recorded exclusively in the General Fund. Collections for September 30,2017
totaled $6,423,849;$6,189,202 in fiscal year2016 and $6,058,540 in2014.

Additional One-Ouarter Percent Sales Tax:

The voters approved a sales tax levy ofone-quarter ofone percent in October 2015 for the purpose ofsecuring
the bonded debt of the City, should primary sources of repayment become insufficient. Furds not used for this
purpose shall be reauthorized for capital improvements. The balance of funds not otherwise needed for the bond
reserve fund shall be used to pay for salaries, operational, maintenance and other capital needs. This tax levy is
authorized for a period offifteen year from its effective date ofJanuary 1,2016. Collections for September 30,

2017 totaled $6,372,112 and for the nine month period of fiscal year 2016 totaled $4,571,836. Funds are

deposited into the General Fund and the Sales Tax Reserve Fund.
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J. Schedule of Compensation Paid to Governing Board

Salary Vehicle Usage Per Diem Total

Mayor:

Randy Roach

Nicholas Hunter

Councilmen:

Luvertha August

Mark Eckard

Rodney Geyen

John Ieyoub

Dana Carl Jackson

Mary Monis

Johnnie Thibodeaux

Stuart Weatherford

Total

$ 93,750

34,043

13,500

13,500

13,500

13,500

9,000

13,500

4,500

12,750

1,800

20c

$ 93,750

35,843

13,500

13,700

13,500

13,500

9,000

13,500

4,500

12,750

$ 221,543 $ 1,800 $ 200 s 223,543

Mayor Randy Roach and Councilman Dana Jackson received compensation from October 7, 2016 through June 30,
2017.

Mayor Nicholas Hunter and Councilman Jonnie Thibodeaux received compensation from July 1,2017 through
September 30,2077.
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CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA
General Fund

Schedule ofRevenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For Fiscal Year Ended September 30,2017

Original

$60,506,933
6,314,400

2,750,590

2,s12,331

184,200

683,850

72,952,304

s60,506,933
6,314,400

2,750,590

2,512,331

184,200

683,850

72,952,304

$62,039,619
6,597,424

3,082,863

2,762,447

301,103

t,t2t,682
75,905, I 38

Variance with
Final Budget

$ 1,532,686

283,024

332,273

250,116

116,903

437,832

2,952,834

Budgeted Amounts
Final

2017
Actual

Revenues:

Taxes

Licenses and permits

Intergovernmental

Charges for services

Fines and forfeitures

Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures:

Current:

General govemment

Finance

Human Resources

Fire

Police

Public works

Planning

General services

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) ofrev over exp

Other financing sources (uses):

Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

Fund balance at beginning ofyear

Fund balance at end ofyear

5,506,044 5,506,044

(6,888,889) (6,888,889)

(6,888,889) (6,888,889)

( l ,3 82,84s) (1,382,845)

30,025,538 30,025,s38

_$28,642,693_ _$28,642,693_

1t,867,25',7 6,361,213

(6,882,988) 5,901

(6,882,e88) 5,e01

4,984,269

30,025,s38

6,367,114

__[35,009,807_ _$636?,114_

3,454,588

1.954,320

426,167

16,409,243

19,801,479

17,507,847

2,414,043

5,478,573

67,446,260

3,454,588

1,954,320

426,167

16,409,243

19,801,479

17,507,847

2,414,043

5,478,573

67,446,260

3,204,360

1,714,273

397,613

15,870,091

19,257,152

16,829,77'.7

1,97 5,729

4,788,886

64,037,881

250,228

240,047

28,554

539,152

544,327

678,070

438,314

689,687

3,408,379
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CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA
Riverboat Gaming Special Revenue Fund

Schedule ofRevenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For Fiscal Year Ended September 30,2017

Budgeted Amounts 2017 Variance with
Original Final Actual Final Budget

Revenues:

Taxes S 11,300,000 10,450,000 10,657,944 207,944

Miscellaneous 6,000 16,000 19,332 3,332

Total revenues 11,306,000 10,466,000 10,677276 211,276

Expenditures:
Other services and charges

Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over expenditures I1,306,000 10,466,000 10,677,276 211,276

Other financing sources (uses):

Transfers in

Transfers out

Excess (deficiency) ofrev and other

sources over exp and other uses

Fund balance at beginning ofyear

Fund balance at end ofyear

(l1,628,;01) (11,128,;01) (l1,062,;04) 6s,ssl

(322,301) (662,301) (38s,028) 277,273

1,129,944 1,129,944 1,129,944

$807,643 $467,643 744,916 $277,273

-:--

Totalotherfinancingsources(uses) (11,623,301) (11,128,301) (11,062,304) 65,997
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CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA
Waste Water Special Revenue Fund

Schedule ofRevenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For Fiscal Year Ended September 30,2017

Original

$ 4,000,000
13,624,500

19,000

17,643,500

3,637,060
3,332,79s
1,289,250

1,47 4,000

6,498,695

3s7,t4t

$ 4,000,000
13,624,500

19,000

17,643,500

3,694,060
3,750,195
1,1 16,950

1,475,000

1,108,600

6,498,695

357,141

3,572,876
3,667,357
1,029,148

1,322,427
441,205

Variance with
Final Budget

121,184

82,838
87,802

152,573

667,395

Budgeted Amounts
Final

2017
Actual

Revenues:

Sales tax revenue

Charges for services

Miscellaneous
Total revenues

Expenditures:
Personal services

Contractual and operational services

Materials & supplies

Special Current Charges

Capital outlay
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) ofrev over exp

Other financing sources (uses):

Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Excess (deficiency) ofrev and other
sources over exp and other uses

Fund balance at beginning ofyear

Fund balance at end ofyear

$ 4, I 11 ,2s9 $ I tl ,259
13,36r,068 (263,432)

121,603 102,603

17,593,930 (49,570)

I,41 r ,700
11,144,805 I1,144,805 10,033,013 1,111,792

(6,820,000) (6,820,000)
(6,462,8s9) (6,462,8s9)

7,560,917

357,141
(6,820,000)
(6,462,859)

1,062,222

35,836

3,276,393

1,062,222

3,312,229 _$ 331222e_ _S 4374Ast_ _$ 1,0A222_

35,836 1,098,058

3,276,393 3,276,393
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CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA

NOTES TO REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION
For Fiscal Year Ended September 30,2017

Budget to Actual schedules that are included in the RSI Section are reported on the same basis as GAAP.

95



CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA
Other Postemployment Benefits -

Schedule of Funding Progress
For Fiscal Year Ended September 30,2017

Schedule of Funding Progress for the OPEB Plan

Only five years of trend information is available for presentation since 2009 was the first year for
implementation of Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 45

"Accounting and Financial reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pension",

and actuarial valuations are only required every two years.

Actuarial
Valuation Date

Actuarial
Value of
Assets

Actuarial Accrued
Liabilitv (AAL)

Unfunded
Actuarial Accrued
Liability (UAAL)

Funded
Ratio Covered Payroll

UAAL as a
oh of

Covered
Pavroll

1010y2008 s0 $ 6,063,254 $ 6,063,254 0% $ 23,558,095 25.74o/c

1010U2010 $0 $ 6,402,679 $ 6,402,679 0% $ 23,900,000 26.79o/c

1010112012 $0 $ 4,928,516 $ 4.928"516 0% $ 25,3 11,382 19.47%

1010U20r4 $0 $ 4,668,177 $ 4,668,177 0% $ 26.619"t3s 17.54o/c

r0l0U20t6 $0 s 2,046,160 $ 2,046,760 0% $ 31,113,777 6.58o/c
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CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA
Schedule of Employer's Proportionate Share Of

Net Pension Liability
For Plan Year Ended June 30,2017

Plan

Year

Employer
Proportionate of
the Net Pension

Liability
(Asset)

23 .6813480/0

21 .782416Yo

20.9205340/o
20.829217Yo

3 038824%
2.900519%
2 951862%
2 991097%

3 620155%
3.485849Yo

3.543553%
3.8051760/o

0.001940%
0.001910%
0 001880%
0.001910%

Employer
Proportionate Share
of the Net Pension

Liability
(Asset)

20,489,879
18,055,628
14,218,580
I,779,242

Employer's
Covered

Employee
Payroll

$ 17,438,404
16,114,347
14,405,300
14,297,054

Employe/s
Proportionate
Share of the
Net Pension

Liability (Asset)

as a percentage

of lt's Covered

Employee Payroll

Plan Fiduciary

Net Position

as a Percentage

of the Total
Pension Liability

MERS:

2017
2016
2015
20'14

[iIPERS:
2cl|7
2016
2015
2014

FRS:
2c17

2016
2015
2014

LASERS:
2017
2016
2015
2014

26,530,219

27,186,035
23,124,7 53
18,712,548

20,750,182
22,800,604
19,124,954
16,932,704

136,41 3

149,984
127.800
1 19,368

9,036,361

7,918,823
7,901,901
7,668,782

8,444,443
8,504,518
7,530,781
7,478,773

34,344
34,344
34,344
34,344

117 .5o/o

112.0%
98.7%
68.40/o

293.6%

343.3Yo

292.6Yo

244.0o/o

245.70/o

268.10/o

254.00/o
226.4o/o

397.2%
436.7%
372.1%
347 .6Yo

63.5%

63.3%
68.7%
76.9%

70.1%

66.0%
70.7Yo

7 5.1o/o

73.SYo

68.2Yo

72.5Yo
76.jYo

62.5%
57.7o/o

62.7%
65.0%

* This schedule will contain ten years of historical information once such information becomes available.
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CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA
Schedule of Employer's Pension Contributions

For Fiscal Year Ended September 30,2017

Fiscal

Year

Contractually
Required

Contribution

Contributions in
Relation to
Contractual

Required

Contribution

Contribution Employer's
Deficiency Covered
(Excess) EmployeePayroll

Contributions
As a Percent of

Covered

Employee
Payroll

M ERS:

2017
2016
2015
2014

MPERS:
zci|7
2016
2015
2014

FRS:
2ci|7
2016
2015
2014

LASERS:
2017
2016
2015
2014

1 ,968,428
'1,649,933

1,399,446
1,276,122

2,748,475
2,540,782
2,438,032
2,415,255

2,189,624
2,147,160
2,161 ,180
2,148,278

13,065
13,'163
13,162
12,467

1,968,428
1,649,933
1,399,446
1,276,122

2,748,475
2,540,782
2,438,032
2,415,255

2,189,624
2,147,160
2,'161 , 1 80
2,148,278

13,065
1 3, '163

13,162
12,467

17,072,028
16,491,457
14,730,952
14,268,318

8,705,259
8,216,344
7 ,867 ,402
7,754,805

8,568,354
8,032,163
7,518,430
7,531 ,809

34,344
34,344
34,344
34,344

11.53Yo

10.00%
9.50%
8.94Yo

31 .57Yo

30.92Yo

30.99%
31 .15Yo

25 55%
26.73Yo

2875%
28.52Yo

38 041o
38.330/o
38.32%
36.30%

:$

* This schedule will contain ten years of historical information once such information becomes available.
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CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA
Schedule of Total Compensation for Mayor, City of Lake Charles

For Fiscal Year ended September 30,2017

Compensation for Mayor of City of Lake Charles fiscal year 20172

\icholas Hunter, Mayor
Iuly 1,2017 - September 30,2017 Amount

Purpose:
Salarv $34.04:
Vehicle Usase 1,80(

Benefits - health insurance l,86(
Benefits - FICA & Medicare 2,69(
Benefits - retirement 4,511

Total $44,91(

Randy Roach, Former Mayor
October 1,2016 - June 30,2017 Amount

Purpose:
Salary s93,7s0

Benefits - health insurance 6.31C

Benefits - FICA & Medicare 6,795

Benefits - retirement 10.31

Benefits-wellness 18C

Total $ I 17.348
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL 
FUNDS

SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS

Special revenue funds are used to account for specific revenues that are legally restricted to 
expenditures for particular purposes.

Grant Fund – Accounts for funds received and expended for various categorical grant programs, 
including law enforcement grants and summer food service program.  

Recreation Fund – Accounts for the operation and maintenance of recreational programs and 
facilities other than the Civic Center and Golf Course, and for the receipt and subsequent expenditure 
of dedicated taxes, user fees and other funds received for recreational services.

Central School Fund – Accounts for receipt and subsequent expenditure of funds for operation, 
maintenance and improvements of the Central School Arts and Humanities Center.

Special Event Fund – Accounts for receipt and subsequent expenditure of funds for special events 
and exhibit costs.

2015 One-quarter Cent Sale Tax Fund – Accounts for the collection of no less than 25 percent of 
the one-quarter cent sales tax levy authorized in 2015.  Funds are reserved to meet the annual bonded 
debt service requirements of the City, should primary sources of repayment become insufficient.  
Funds not used for this purpose shall be reauthorized for capital improvements in the subsequent year.

Facility Renewal Fund – Accounts for funds transferred from other sources to provide for long-
term accumulation of funds for future maintenance and repair needs. 

Disaster Recovery Fund – Accounts for the receipt of intergovernmental and miscellaneous revenue 
and subsequent expenditure of such funds necessary to recover from disasters. 

Community Development – This fund accounts for the receipt and subsequent expenditure of 
federal funds received from the Department of Housing and Urban Development for housing and 
community development purposes, including related revenues which are restricted to such purposes 
by grant agreements. The principal revenue source accounted for within this fund is the Community 
Development Block Grant Program.
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CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA
Combining Balance Sheet

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
For Fiscal Year Ended September 30,2017

Central
School

Special

Events

2015 One-

Quarter Cent

Sales Tax

Facility
Renewal

Disaster Community
Recovery Development

Total
Nonmajor

Governmental

Funds

$ 7,811,497

1,298,071

321,288

654,978

157,520

21,482

ASSETS

cash (Nore l-G)
Investments (Note l-G)
Receivable

(net of allowance for uncollectable)

Accounts (Note l-l)
Intergovernmental (Note 7-C)

Due from other funds (Note 7-B)
Prepaid items

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable

Escrow

Due to other funds

Deferred revenues

Total liabilities

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable

Committed

Assigned:

Community Services

Public Safety

Disaster Recovery

Capital Projects

Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund balances

Grants Recreation

$ 679,326 $ s89,774

59,174 78,460
$ 137,350 $ 1,488,799 $ 2,096,913 $ 2,694,911

r, r05,700

$ 39,288

54,737

85, I 36

169,570

6,122

t09
49,034

37,520

176.307 7.899

250

I t3,878
il4R, _

_q_e?O, r 5_l_ _$_r 0 r,21_

89

I O,OOO

$ 147,439

r 36,884

436,124

_$_1,625,6!l_ _S 3202,6t3_ _q_3,r3 r,035_ _$_260,82!_ _q_r0,264,836_

$ 106,879 $ $ 312,700

3.092

1 73.1 53

6,000

494,945107,169 68,010

$ 825,t63:

$ 18,074

17,451

$ 114,662

225

147,128

$ 6,71 3 $ 8,s29

885

47

6,000

15,461

10,000

42,363

79,615

52

57,843

1,982

8,1 85

35,525 262,015

I 1,481

696,6ss

6,765

76,413

18,746

1,625,683

789,638

_$_82s,r63_

708, I 36

_$_e70,' sl_
95, I 59

_$_10 r,e21_
l3 t,978

$ 147,439

192,818

$ 260,828

21,481

1,744,459

l,l74,996
602,476

3,023,866

3,202,613
g,769,ggl

_$_l_9,264,836_

187,162

602,476

192,8 I 8

3,023,866

3,202,613

1,625,683 3,202,613 3,023,866
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CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA
Combining Schedule ofRevenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Nonmajor Governmental Funds
For Fiscal Year Ended September 30,2017

Central
Recreation School

2015 One-
Special Quarter Cent
Events Sales Tax

Facility Disaster Community
Renewal Recovery Development

$-$-$-
- 593,477 600,788

29,762 52,445 19,334
,9J6' 645,9n 6Mn

Total
Nonmajor

Governmental
Funds

$ 4,822,8 r 5
2,203,846

163,425

317,672
7,507,758

Revenues:
Taxes

Intergovemmental
Charges for services

Miscellaneous
Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current operating:

Police
Planning and development
Community services

Total expenditures

Excess (defi ciency) of revenues

over expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):

Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

Fund balance at beginning ofyear

Fund balance at end ofyear

Grants

$-
950,348

25,908
,762s6

5 r 3,356

$ 3,229,787
59,233

163,425
10,725

3,463,t70

$-

r oo,ioo

$ 1,593,028

'-
60,941 18,25 |

60,941 1,611,279

734,030 4,408,672 128,107

1,247,386 4,408,672 t28,t07

(271,t30) (e4s,s02\ (27,801)

265,404
265,404

(204.463) 1.6n.279

-- ezs,iqt Z::'',11i

462,t84 635,547 7,147 ,300

183,738 (15,425) 360,458

- 23,574 1,717.270
(r95,000) 

- 

(2,468,000)
(195,000) 23,s74 (750,730)

29,762

473.t94

202.064

s87.574

$ 789.638

945,502

708,136

708. l 36

25,000

(2,80 r )

97,960

$ 95.159

250,000

45,537

86,441

<z.ztt,ioot
(2,273,000)

(661,721\

2,287,404

473,1-94 945,5_02 25,000 250,000

$ l3 l.97tt $ 1.625.(rtt.l

29,762 (1t,262\ 8.t49 (390,272)

3,t72,851 3,035,t28 t84,669 t0,160,t63

_s_1102,6.!l_ _CI_i,023,!!9_ _$_'e2,!l!_ _$__219u!2.!_
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CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA
Grant Special Revenue Fund

Schedule ofRevenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2017

Revenues:
Intergovemmental:
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:

Public safety
Community services

Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over expenditures

Other financing source(uses):
Transfers in

Total other financing sources (uses)

Excess (deficiency) of revenue and other
sources over expenditures and other uses

Fund balance at beginning ofyear

Fund balance at end ofyear

Original

s 1 .528,641

1,528,64t

9l 8.81 2

r,0 r3.254
1.932.066

(403.425)

477.675
477.675

74,250

587,574

_$___!9.!.!21_

$ 1.008,136

3,488

1,011,624

5 13,888

769,797
1,283,685

(272,061)

472,071
472,071

200,010

587,574

j_787ff1_

Budeeted Amounts 2017
Actual

$ 950,348
25,908

976,256

5 t 3,356

734,030
1,247,386

(271,130)

473,t94
473,194

202,064

587,574

j_78e,61!_

Variance with
Final Budget

$ (s7,788)

22,420
(35,368)

532
35,767
36,299

931

I,t23
I,123

j_l051_

2,054

104



CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA
Recreation Special Revenue Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For Fiscal Year Ended September 30,2017

Original Final

3,t41,366
46,000

125,200

$ 3,229,787
59,233

163,425

10,725

3,463,170

2,543,367
1,027,502

481,330
20,304

336,169
4,408,672

(945,502)

945,502
945,502

Variance with
Final Budget

88,421
13,233

38,225

149,604

214,793
224,836
132,825

3,696
320,081
896,231

1,045,835

(995,835)
(995,835)

Budgeted Amounts 2017

Actual
Revenues:

Taxes
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Personal services
Contractual and operational
Materials and supplies
Special charges

Capital outlay

Excess (deficiency) ofrev over exp

Other financing sources (uses):

Transfers in
Total other financing sources (uses)

Excess (deficiency) ofrev and other

sources over exp and other uses

Fund balance at beginning ofyear

Fund balance at end ofyear

1,000

3,t41,366
46,000

125,200

I,000
3,313,566

2,758,160
1,276,343

585,900
15,000

669,500
5,304,903

(t,991,337)

1,941,337
1,941,337

3,313,566

2,758,160
1,2s2,338

614,155
24,000

656,250
5,304,903

(1,991,337)

1,941,337
t,941,337

(s0,000) (s0,000) 50,000

136708136708 708, I 36

$ 708,136658, I 36 658, l 36 50,000
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CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA
Central School Special Revenue Fund

Schedule ofRevenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For Fiscal Year Ended September 30,2017

Budgeted Amounts

$ 90,200
90,200

129,863
25,000

25,000
25,000

(68,763)

76,804
21,827

25,000
25,000

Variance with
Final Budget

53,059
3,173

_$ 6s9O_

Final
2017

Actual
Revenues:

Miscellaneous
Total revenues

Expenditures:
Contractual and operational
Materials and supplies
Special charges

Total expenditures

Excess of revenue over expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):

Transfers in
Total other financing sources (uses)

Excess (deficiency) ofrevenue and other
sources over expenditures and other uses

Fund balance at beginning ofyear

Fund balance at end ofyear

Original

$ 90,200
90,200

129,863
25,000
29,100

183,963

(e3,763)

25,000
25,000

(68,763)

97,960

_$ 29,W

$ 10,106

100,306 10,106

29,100 29,476 (376)

183,963 128,107 55,856

(93,763) (27,80r ) 65,962

(2,80r ) 65,962

97,960 97,960

_$ 2e)el_ _$_e5,t se_
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CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA
Special Event Special Revenue Fund

Schedule ofRevenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For Fiscal Year Ended September 30,2017

Original

$ 17,500

17,500

8,200
271,963
280,163

(262,663)

250,000

250,000

(12,663)

86,441

_$ TJn_

$ 17,s00
17,500

8,200
271,963
280,163

(262,663)

250,000

250,000

(12,663)

86,441

_s 73Jn_

$ 60,941

60,941

6,981

258,423
265,404

(204,463)

250,000
250,000

45,537

86,44t

_q_l_3r,e4_

Variance with
Final Budget

$ 43,441

43,441

1,219

13,540
14,759

58,200

58,200

$ 58.200

Budgeted Amounts 2017
Actual

Revenues:

Miscellaneous
Total revenues

Expenditures:
Materials and supplies

Other services and charges

Total expenditures

Excess of revenue over expenditures

Other financing sources:

Transfers in
Total other financing sources

Excess (deficiency) ofrevenue and other
sources over expenditure and other uses

Fund balance at beginning ofyear

Fund balance at end ofyear
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CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA
2015 One-Quarter Cent Sales Tax Special Revenue Fund

Schedule ofRevenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For Fiscal Year Ended September 30,2017

Revenues:

Taxes

Miscellaneous
Total revenues

Expenditures:

Excess (deficiency) ofrev over exp

Other financing sources (uses):

Transfers out
Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances

Fund balance at beginning ofyear

Fund balance at end ofyear

Budgeted Amounts
Original Final

$ 1,562,500 $ 1,562,500

r,s62,s00 1,562.500

$ 1,s93,028
l g,25l

1,611,279

Variance with
Final Budget

$ 30,528
18,25 r

48,779

2017

Actual

I,562,500 1,562,500

(2,273,000) (2,273,000)
(2,273,000) (2,273,000)

(7 l 0,s00) (710,500)

2,287,404 2,287,404

_q_1,5?6891_ _A__-1,s76891_

I,611,279 48,779

(2,273,000)
(2,273,000)

(661,721)

2,287,404

_q_1,625,683_

48,779

_$ 48J79
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CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA
Facility Renewal Special Revenue Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget to Actual

Fiscal Year Ended September 30,2017

Budgeted Amounts 2017

Actual
Variance with

Final Budget

$ 16,762

16,762

Revenues:

Interest on investments

Total revenues

Expenditures:

Excess (deficiency) ofrev over exp

Other financing sources (uses):

Transfers in

Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Excess (deficiency) ofrev and other

sources over exp and other uses

Fund balance at beginning ofyear

Fund balance at end ofyear

13,000 13,000

Original

s 13,000

13,000

$ 13,000 29.762

13,000 29.762

29.762

13,000 13,000 29,762 16,762

3,172,851 3,172,851

_q_?, t 8s,85_1_ _t_lJ-!s,8s.l_

3,172,85t

8 3,202,613 t6,762
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CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA
Disaster Recovery Special Revenue Fund

Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For Fiscal Year Ended September 30,2017

Original

s 1,3r6,014

438,671

1,7 54,685

1,7 54,685

1,7 54,685

3,035,128

$ s99,759

52,445

6s2,204

294,426.00

175,780

470,206

181,998

(l3,oo2)

3,035,128

$ s93,477

52,445

645,922

(11,262)

3,035,128

_q_:,023,866_

(6,282)

294,394 32

7,990

462,184 8,022

Variance with

Final Budget

(6,2_82)

1,740

t,740

_$._1t19_

Budgeted Amounts

Final

2017

Actual

Revenues:

Intergovernmental

(net of allowance for uncollectable)

Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures:

Current:

Personal services

Contractual and operational

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) ofrev over exp

Other financing sources (uses):

Transfers in

Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)

Excess (deficiency) ofrev and other

sources over exp and other uses

Fund balance at beginning ofyear

Fund balance at end ofyear

r 83,738

(rqs,ooo) trqs,oool
(r95,000) (195,000)

_q_3,03s,12!_ _S 3W,1%_
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CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA
Community Development Special Revenue Fund

Schedule ofRevenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual
For Fiscal Year Ended September 30,2017

Budgeted Amounts 2017

Actual

Variance with

Final Budget

s (32,164)

s 19,334

Revenues:

Intergovemmental

Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures:

Current:

Personal services

Contract and operational

Material and supplies

Special current charges

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues

over expenditures

Other financing sources:

Transfers in

Total other financing sources

Excess (deficiency) ofrev and other

sources over exp and other uses

Fund balance at beginning ofyear

Fund balance at end ofyear

Original

605,376 632,952 600,788

632,952 620.122 (12,830)60s,376

164,330

265,115

6.692

199.281

162,123

262,768

2,430

23s,673

662,994

(30,042)

30,042

30,042

2,587

45,165

(42)

(20,263)

27,447

14.617

23.s74 (6.468)

23.574 (6,468)

8,1 49

184,669 184,669

8.1 49

___CI-184,66e_ ____q_!_e2,8 1 8_ _q8,14e_

159,536

217,603

2,472

255,936

635,547

(15,42s)

635,418

(30,042)

30,042

30,042

184.669

_q 184,66e_

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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INTERNAL SERVICE FUNDS
Risk Management Fund – Includes coverage for general liability, auto liability and worker’s 
compensation.  This fund is used to account for the financing of services provided by the risk man-
agement division to other departments of the City.

Employee Insurance Fund – Provides a self-insurance program for employee health benefits.  
This fund is used to account for the financing of services provided to other departments of the City.
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CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA
Internal Service Funds

Combining Statement of Net Position
September 30,2017

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash

Investments

Receivables:
Accounts
Accrued interest

Due from other funds

Prepaid expenses

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:

Capital assets (at cost):

Machinery & equipment
Less accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets (net of accum. depr.)

Total assets

Deferred Outflows of resources

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable

Due to other finds
Total current liabilities

Long-term liabilities:
Accrued leave benefits

OPEB payable

Net pension liability
Accrued insurance claims

Incurred-not reported claims

Accrued insurance claims - noncurrent
Total long-term liabilities

Total liabilities

Defened lnflows of resources

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets

Unrestricted
Total net position

Risk
Management

s 9,458,730
7,935,476

1,023,044

26,s64

576,827

t9,020,641

35,257
(26,802)

8,455

Employee
Insurance

$ 5,929,61I
3,479,253

22

4,152

9,413,038

9,413,03 8

Totals
2017

$ 15,388,341
11,414,729

1,023,066
30,716

576,827
28,433,679

35,257
(26,802)

8,455
28,442,134

162,436

82,228
l8

82,246

129,280

21,547

479,463
6,519,198

325,000
1,348,820

8,823,308
8,905,554

10,409

19,029,096

162,436

65,391

l8
65,409

129,280
21,547

479,463
5,019,198

175,000
1,349,920

7,173,308
7,238,717

10,408

8,455
11,933,952

_$ 11942,4U

16,837

16,837

1,500,000

150,000

1,650,000
1,666,837

t,tqa,)ot ,r,ut8,iil
_s 7J462ot_ _al-e,688,69!_
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CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA
Internal Service Funds

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Position
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30,2017

Operating revenues:

Charges for services

Other revenues

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:

Personal services

Materials and supplies

General and administration
Depreciation
Claims and losses paid

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

Nonoperating revenues:

Interest

Total nonoperating revenues

Income (loss) before transfers

Transfer in (out)

Change in net position

Net position - beginning of fiscal year

Net position - ending of fiscal year

Risk
Management

$ 7,514,376
30,860

7,545,236

649,380
6,671

1,327,653
4,058

2,997,919
4,985,681

2,559,555

151,467

151 ,467

2,711,022

2,7 11 ,022

9,231,385

_$ 11942A07_

Employee
Insurance

$ 8,090,913
344,193

8,435,106

83,464
12,020

1,069,607

6,180,3 I I

7345,4U

1,089,704

72,061
72,061

1,161,765

Totals
2017

$ 15,605,289

375,053
15,980,342

732,844
18,691

2,397,260
4,058

9,178,230
12,331,083

3,649,259

223,528

3,872,787

3,872,787

15,815,821

_$_l_e"688,69!_

1,161,765

6,584,436

_s 7J46201_
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CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA
Internal Service Fund

Combining Statement of Cash Flows
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30,2017

Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers and users

Payments to employees
Payments to suppliers and claimants
Internal activity - payments to other funds

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash flow from noncapital financing activities:
Operating subsidies

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities

Cash flow from capital and related financing activities:
Purchase of capital assets

Net cash used for capital and related financing activities

Cash flow from investing activities:
Purchase of investment securities

Proceeds from sale and maturities of investment securities

Interest on investments
Net cash provided (used for) investing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning ofyear
Cash and cash equivalents at end ofyear

Reconciliation of operating (loss) to net cash
provided (used) by operating activities:
Operating income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash

provided by operating activities:
Depreciation expense

(lncrease) decrease in accounts receivable
(lncrease) decrease in due from other funds
(Increase) decrease in prepaid items
(lncrease) decrease in deferred outflows ofresources
Increase (Decrease) in accounts payables

Increase (Decrease) in accrued insurance claims

Increase (Decrease) in compensated absences payable

Increase (Decrease) in OPEB liability
Increase (Decrease) in NP liability
Increase (Decrease) in due to other funds

Increase (Decrease) in due deferred inflows ofresources
Total adjustments

Net cash provided by operating activities

Risk
Management

$ 7,937,553
(s7s,973)

(4,581,396)
(8e)

2,790,095

Employee
Insurance

s 8,440,562
(87,227)

(7,363,s96)

989,139

Totals
2017

$ 16,378,1 l5
(663,200)

(11,944,992)
(8e)

3,769,834

(7,766,649)

3,900,000

145,985

(3,720,664)
(e40,s6e)

10,399,299

_0_9,458,?39_

(1,416,433)

3,905,700

84, r 65

2,573,432
3,563,171
2,366,440

-$ 5,929,6n_

(e, l 83,082)
7,805,700

230, I 50

(1,147,232)
2,622,602

12,765,739

_$_l_5,38&11_!_

$ 2,559,555

4,058

392,3_17

198,r l9
(l4,ls8)

4,947
(445,457)

21,214
(733)

s6,961
(8e)

3,361

$ 1,089,704

s,q-se

(s,izr)
(100,000)

$ 3,649,259

4,059
397,7-73

198,1 l9
(14, ls8)

(474)
(545,457)

21,214
(733)

56,961
(8e)

3,361
120,575

_g 3J69,834
220,s40 (99,e6s)

$ 989,739_$_2,780,0%_

Noncash investing, capital and financing activities:
Change in the fair value of investrnents resulted in an unrealized loss of $16,882 at year-end 2017 and

an unrealized loss of$1,887 at year-end 2016.
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CAPITAL ASSETS 
USED IN THE OPERATION OF

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
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CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA
Capital Assets Used in the Operation of Governmental Funds

Comparative Schedules by Source
September 30,2017 and 2016

2017

s 16,180,010

5s,652,970
72,044,795
38,224,774

347,590,588

60,898,839

_q_590,591,976_

s 23,664,442

36,514,499
4,933,963

147,032,526

337,067,079
41,379,467

_a_590,591,976_

s 16,180,010

54,333,362
71,619,524

36,461,806
331,952,735

33,326,304

_$ 5$,ffiJ41_

$ 23,674,538

34,477,186
644,432

95,383,659
350,246,413

39,447,513

_$ 543,n3J41_

2016

Governmental funds capital assets

Land
Buildings
Improvements other than buildings
Machinery and Equipment
Infrasffucture
Construction in progress

Total general capital assets

Property acquired prior to October l, 1985, excluding infrastructure

Property acquired after September 30, 1985 from:
Federal grants

State grants

General fund revenues

Capital projects funds

Donations

Total investments in general capital assets

Note: This schedule presents the capital asset balances related to governmental funds. Accordingly, the

capital assets valued at$35,257 at9l30l20l7 and913012016 that are reported in the internal service funds

are excluded from the above amounts. Generally, capital assets of internal service funds are included as

governmental activities in the statement of net position.
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CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA
Schedule of Capital Assets - Governmental Funds

By Function and Activity
September 30, 2017

Function and Activitv Land

Improvements Machinery
Other Than and

Buildings Buildings Equipment
Construction
in Progress

$- $ 70.671

43,586
5,1 68,8 1 9

5,283,076

10.446

93.793
15,667

2,996,652
438.291

2,t57 t3,53t.237
2,157 t 7,086,086

Infrastructure

GENERAL GOVERNMENT
Legislative
Executive
Judicial

Total general government

STAFF AGENCIES
Finance

Planning and

development
Human Resources

Public works
Information Services

General government

buildings
Total staff agencies

PUBLIC SAFETY
Police
Fire
Permit Center
Total public safety

Streets

Recreation
Community service

Sanitation and waste

s,rzs,isz
5,129,852

214,700 926.986 187,473

s,094,299 6,176,575 1,660,359

5,308,999 7. 103,561 1,847 ,832

l,103,45 I
7,566,9_16

I,208,395
993,394

s 70,671
43,586
38,967

153,224

10,446

93,793
15,667

1,667,493
438,291

597,847

2,823,537

6,557,49s
12,367,5ss

278,220
19,203,270

4,979,630
2,238,793

2,471

64,965
203,9_00

81,540 30,425,831

8,934,306
21,213,305

278,220

291.203.66t
43,589,538

5,548,599
1 97,455, I 85

537,796,983

8 1,540

268,865 8,670,367 2,20t,789

9,301,960
5,000

8 I,870
5,302,141
2,549,5',19

26,553,919
432,63t

280,406,989 5,735,172
192,725

2,558,918
52,328,3271.295,186 26,815,600 41.008,624 8,823,849 67,183,599

10,602,146 34,749,190 67.99s,t74 16,044,743 347,590,588 60,815,142
Total capital assets

allocatedtotunctions _A_l_6,180,9_19_ _q_55,652,99_ _S 72,044J%_ _$ 38224J74_ _q_347,590J$_ _A_60,898,839_ _q_590,59t,976_

Note: This schedule presents the capital asset balances related to govemmental funds. Accordingly, the capital assets valued at 535,257
al9l30l20l7 and 913012016 that are reported in the intemal service funds are excluded from the above amounts. Cenerally, the

capital assets of intemal service funds are included as govemmental activities in the statement of net position.
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CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA
Capital Assets Used in the Operation of Governmental Funds

Schedule of Changes by Function and Activity
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30,2017

Function and Activity

General
Capital Assets

9t30t2016 Additions Deletions

General
Capital Assets

9/30/2017

GENERAL GOVERNMENT
Legislative
Executive
Judicial

Total general government

STAFF AGENCIES
Finance

Planning and Development
Human Resources

Public Works
Information Services

General Government
Total staffagencies

PUBLIC SAFETY
Police
Fire
Permit Center

Total public safety

Streets

Recreation

Community service

Sanitation and waste

Total capital assets

allocated to functions

70,671

43,586

5,168,819
5,293,076

10,446

93,793
15,667

2,996,377

438,291

13,539,477

17,084,051

gs,igt

49,224

14:- 921

1tt,izz1

(s7,464)
(145"886)

(s40,240)
(30,210)
(29,6s3)

(600, I 03)

(2,541,262)
(1,474,698)

(1,772)
(8,699,674)

(t2,717 ,406)

_$_(13,463,3%)_

$ 70,671

43,s86
5,168,819

5,283,076

10,446

93,793
15,667

2,996,6s2
438,29t

13,531,237

17,086,086

8,934,306
21,213,305

278,220

30,425,831

291,203,661
43,603,538

5,548,599
197,441,185

537,796,983

s 590,591,976

8,657,361
20,966,457

250,485

29,874,303

284,166,516
43,316,923

5,393,537

158,755,335

491,632,311

_$ s43,U3J4t_

817,185
277,058

57,388

1,151,63 I

9,578,407
1,761,313

I 56,834
47,385,524
58,882,079

_q_-60,181,619_

Note: This schedule presents the capital asset balances related to governmental funds. Accordingly, the

capitalassets valued at$35,257 on9l30l20l7 and913012016 that are reported in the internal service funds

are excluded from the above amounts. Generally, capital assets of intemal service funds are included as

governmental activities in the statement of net position.

$
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STATISTICAL SECTION
This part of the City of Lake Charles’ comprehensive annual financial report presents detailed 
information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements and 
note disclosures says about the government’s overall financial health.

Contents

Financial Trends
These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the government’s 
financial performance and well-being have changed over time.

Revenue Capacity
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess government’s more significant 
local revenue sources.

Debt Capacity
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the 
government’s current levels of outstanding debt and the government’s ability to issue 
additional debt in the future.

Demographic and Economic Information
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand 
the environment within which the government’s financial activities take place.

Operating Information
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how 
the information in the government’s financial report relates to the services the government 
provides and the activities it performs.

 
Sources:  Except where noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the City of Lake 
Charles’ comprehensive annual financial reports for the relative year.  The City implemented GASB 
Statement 34 in 2003; schedules presenting government-wide information include information 
beginning that year.
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CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA
Net Position by Component

Last Ten Fiscal Years

(accrual basis of accounting)
(amounts expressed in thousands)

Governmental activities
Net investment in capital assets

Restricted

Unrestricted
Total governmental activities net assets

Net investment in capital assets

Assigned
Total governmental activities net assets

Primary Government
Net investment in capital assets

Restricted

Unrestricted
Total govemmental activities net assets

* GASB 68 adopted in 2015

$ 200,193
42,220
48,1 88

_q-2e0,691_

$ 66,241

555

-_$ 

66J%

$ 266,434
42,220

48,743

$ 357,397

$ 204,5s0
30,622

62,216

_[_2e?,3!!_

$ 67,502
2,363

_[_69,865_

$ 272,052
30,622

64,579
g 367,253

2010

$ 216,618

60,553

31,362

_q_308,5n_

s 68,319
2,951

_q_1,r?9-

$ 284,937

60,553

34,213

_g 379J03

201 I

$ 223,s83
51,978

44,864

_$ 320,425

$ 66,627

5,584

s 72,211

290,210
51,978
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2012

$ 228,301

31,734
72,t12

$ 332,14',7

68,959

7,909

s 297,260
31 ,734
80,021

s 409,01s

68,562

11,729

s 299,176
23,t69

t02,629
$ 424,974

$ 368.430

68,622

24,166

s 328.599

31.273

101,346

$ 461,218

$ 389,300

69,202
25,356

$ 363,230
33,409
87,219

20r3 2014

$ 240.382
22,7 57

54.000

$ 3 l?. 139

7 0,'7 85

17,502

$ 3l1.167
22.7 57

71,502
s 40s,426

2015

s 69.095

22.049
s 9t.t44

$ 313,035
24,596
94,841

$ 432,472

2016

( ,{o o77

31,273
77,180

$ 294,028

33,409
61,863

20t7

$ 230,6r4
23.t69
90.900

$ 344583

s 243.940
24,596
1'' 10)

$ 34tJrS

T ?6j68 T- 8dF $ 88287 T e2Js8 $ %J58

$ 483.858
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CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA
Change in Net Position

(accrual basis of accounting)

2008 2009 2010 20ll 2012

Expenses

Governmental activities:
General govemment

Public safety
Public works

Planning and development

General services

Community services

Interest in long-term debt
Total govemmental activities

Business-type activities
Civic center

Golf course

Transit
Water

Total business-type aclivities
Total primary govemment

Program Revenues

Govemmental activities:
Charges for services.

General govemment

Public works
Other activities

Operating grants and contributions

$ 4,158,299 $

28,400,481

26,341,091

3,274,154

1,247,986

2,s40,820

$ 4,855,947 $

8,066,296
1,165,914

5,920,889

$ 4,644,212 $

30,667,312
29,047,659

2,981,902

4,778,t3s $ 5,316,267 $

32,257,586 33,401,4ss

30.295.303 32.980.t30

5,812,8s2
37,722,822
42,253,530
2,656,677
6,507,033

6,1 s8,706

3,788,824

1,718,210

3,36 t ,38 I

6,r 95,338

l 3,486,598

7s3,544
s,142,923
4,838,875

30,417,278

4,428,106 $ 4,56s,486 $ 4,s85,082

)0,691,441 29,2t,079 28,681,s62

26,204,810 24,948,706 30,294,422

3,01r,317 2,420,483 2,8ss,462
s,20t,297 7,8 I 9,930 7,127,977

5,699,264s.658.398 6.10t.747

3, I 95,533

4,384,287

6,936,038

3,57s,028
1,49s,425

2,21s,223

$ 5,432,955 $

10,317,926

t,123,347
4,505,960

5,843,875

5,428,845 5,687,941

6,730,143

4,567,288 $

31,412,865
28,841,269

2,991,321

3,014,670
I ,539, I 86

s,497,834 $

I t,767,500

2.663.000

5,659,656

3,09 r,6 n
1,6t2,629
2,714,383

5,423,120 $

12,706,586

2,672,381

6,021,391

3,365,53 |

I,648,783
2,917,813

5,730,156 $

13,459,995

744.123

4,675,984

s,6t2,894 $

36,589,474

34,219,219
2,521,348
s,838,64s

7 ,191,241

3,949,094

r ,680, l 37

3,066,5 I I

5.997,403 $

I 3,438,315

7 5t,477
4.002,036

6,174,061 6,350,062 6,668,047

2,8s0,831 2,703,667 3,396,559 3,93s,479 4,0s3,332 3,409,036 3,203,842 3,138,628 2,703,86s 3,149,772

7s,62t,7t4 80,370,184 78,004,s33 82,0t2,403 83,ss3,405 83,083,781 8s,207,s84 90,198,299 94,736,686 t04,26t,392

2,298,862 2,354,540
8,829,630 9,139,256 8,645,421 8.948.287 8,980,994 9,181,423 9.622.826 9,890,095 10,173.955 t0.845,330

15,892,590 16.244.476 t5,850,789 16,233,963 16.125,151 16.089,819 11,041,449 17,822,222 18,869,697 19,713,745

$ 9t,s14,304 $ 96,614,660 $ 93,855,322 $ 98,246,366 $ 99,678,ss6 $ 99,173,600 $ 102,249,033 $ 108,020,s2r $ 1r3,606,383 $ 123,97s,117

3,265,481
1,480,51 I

2,]59,228

s,126,923
8,21s,969

9l r,091

3,80 I,382
4,913,193

3.734,478
1,432,343

2,038,547

3,356,078

1,489,217

5.067,281 $

I l,l46,l7l
I , I 06,880

s,037,836

1.108.756 996.480

s,237,t39 4,428,3fi
Capital grants and contributions 2,917,6'78

'f'otal govmntl activity prgrm revenucs 22,526,724 22,968,558
Business-type activities:

Charges for services:

Civic center

Golf course

Transit
Water

Operating grants and contributions
Capital grants and contributions
Total busnss-type prgrm revens

Total primary govemment program

t,213,667 1,510,505

2.991.355 3,949.165 7,243,043 5,516.540 8.346.684

27,224,063 25,349,523 27,560,394 30,797,540 30,126,798 32.535.9 I 5

915,970

98s,883

83,792

6.936,227
I,157 ,412

1,047, I 63

1,126,764

62,8 r0
7,s86,073
| , I 98,730

968,296
928,512
98,804

l 0,333, I 08

I,411,923
736,314

975,050

844.392
I I 5.597

10,6s7,748

1.422,853

3. l 84,780

941,963

974,094

r I t,750
|,327,208
I,sts,747

541,173

968,322

1,046,272

189,754

t2,066,695
t,647 ,581

1,000,078

1,0 r 2,359

t84,332
12,687,98s

2,303,70s

I , I 38,73s

992,086
r 89,93 l

12,300,282

2,834,6s5

$ 5,091,090

9,006,678

I,030,878
4,426,140
5,685,329

25,240,115

930,1 l 3

905, l 53

8l,418
8,925,396
I,307,484
1,698,748

911,360
903,040

191.826

I 3,2 I s,887

2,75t.946
261,931

I 8,295,990

7,795,t94 801,268 266,752

t7,989,72711,292,951 t2,532,045 13,848,312 14.476,957 17,200,420 15,411,935 23,713,818
-S---f 45DF - J-mffi 6t-SJ-ro8s-f ti-T-qt.76.f 0m-T_TZlaFZt@-S--54r-rH58-

17,722,441

_t_1!, r r 6, 5x_ j_s 0,2 s 8, 3 s6_ _a_1!,7 r 3.26!_
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2010 201 I 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
Net (expense)/revenue

Govemmentafactivities $ (52,694,990)$ (s7,401,626) $ (52,764,418) $ (54,788,340)$ (58,203,882)$ (55,523,387)$ (54,410,044)
Business-type activities (4,599,639) (3,712,431) (2,002,477) (1,757,006) 1,075,269 (677,884) 6,672,369
Totaf primarygovemmentnetexpenses _$ (s7294,629)__A_(6t,tt4,0s2_$__A3JqqI2I__$__G$q.rc__L_(s?,128,6.!])__!__g!,201,27!_ _!__W!]16?2_

General Revenues ond Other Chonges in Net Assets

Governmental rctivities
Taxes

Property taxes

Sales taxes

Franchise taxes

Riverboat taxes

Grants and contributions not restricted

to specific programs

Interest and investment earnings

Miscellaneous

Gain (loss) on sales ofcapital assets

Transfers

Total governmental activities
Business-type activities:

Grants and contributions not restricted

to specific programs

Interest and investment eamings

Miscellaneous

Gain (loss) on sales ofcapital assets

Transfers

Total business type activities
Total primary govemment

Change in Net Assets

Govemmental activities
Business-type activities
Total primary govemment

$ 6,612,603 $ 7,348,241 $

45,584,783 45,t49,67t
6,842,265 5,446,30t
8.399.666 9.099.020

7,489,471 $ 7,923,348 $

4 t,685,781 41,127,692

5,702,863 s,787,057

8,9s9,034 9,t t3,904

l9s,0l8
4.781.799

3,717,359

67,296

201,846
2,638,3s8

859.064

198,471

r,728,068
t,206,9s0

I 90,806

I .089. I 27

2.t94,t44

7,707,653 $

45,659,894

4,873,59t
9,713,282

3,462,831

575,503
1,479,307

8.t76.273 $

46,717,755

5,420,60t
9,691,942

181,836

62,044
1,922,170

8,631,895 $

50.5 I 9.838

s,9s2,906
9,664,37s

185.172

671.283

3.024.0s0

9,t63,826 $

54,786,123

5,736,856
I1,054,210

I 80,867

965,038
4,722,125

10,217,089

60,570,243
5,472,965

10.799.768

194,470

834,33 I

3,730,355

$ (60,071,s0l ) $ (62,200,771) $ (73,844,r r4)
(t ,417,7ss)

_$___lz:2q.q!2_

$ 10,616,469

64,596,373
5,722,675

10,657,944

227,691

1 ,1 62,1 05
4,666,850

(6,378,347) (6,ss4,391 ) (3,060,7s8) (2,746,0ts) (3,s4s,7e0) (4,fi3,92s) (3,64s,s82) (2,348,768) (2,s 1s,786) (2,93s,90s)
69,822,442 64,I 88. I t0 63,909,880 66,680,063 69,926,271 68,058,696 7s,003,937 84,260,277 89,303,435 94,714,202

200,000

18t,262
252,500

(497,393)

200.000

26,59?
200.000

46,s6s sz,sqg 35,695 ( 12.505) st.7tz zzt.iq
lr3,376

nt.izs
r4l,45l

zsl,sss

6,378,347 6,554,391 3,060,7s8 2,746,0ts 3.545,790 4,|3,925 3.64s.s82 2,348,768 2,515,786 2,935,905

2,689,28s 2,791,166 3,187,898

_!___!!t121!2_ _S____22p8iq.!._ _L__27,e02.199_

6,514,716 6,780,988 3,307,323 2,798,564 3,s8 t,485
$ 76,337,1s8 $ 70,969,098 $ 67,217,203 $ 69,478,627 $ 73,507,756

$ t7,t27,452 $ 6,786,484 $ 11,145,462 $ il,891,723 $ t,722,389 $

4,t01.420
$ 72,160,1 l6

12,s3s,309 $ 20,s93,893 $ 24,188,776 $ 27,102,664 $

I ,643,9 l0
20,870,088

t,770,t431,915,077 3,068,557 1,304,846 t,041,558 4,656,754 3,423,536 10,399,663 2,856.790

_\_)2!!.s2e__$____2.ryq_ _!___121!U9!_ _!___.l2lll2!1_ _L__.lgl2J_11_ _$_____E$!.q!_ _!___412j$!_ _!___2?,04s.J66_ _!__nl465J!_ _!____n!40_])_
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CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA

Govemmental Activities Tax and Other Revenues by Source

Last Ten Fiscal Years

(accrual basis of accounting)

Fiscal

Year

Property

Tax

6,6t2,603

7,348,241

7,489,471

7,923,348

7,707,653

8,176,273

8,631,895

9,163,826

10,217,089

t0,616,469

One Percent

Sales Tax (1965)

20,048,716

19,767,4t8

18,382,454

I 8,994,509

19,940,426

20,638,460

22,309,909

24,233,672

24,759,696

25,695,368

* Additional

One Percent

Sales Tax (1987)

20,048,779

19,767,417

I 8,382,454

I 8,994,509

19,940,425

20,638,461

22,309,909

24,233,672

24,759,696

25,695,368

Employee's Pay

Quarter cent

Sales Tax (1995)

5,012,194

4,932,0t5

4,595,619

4,750,340

4,985,1 l3

5,t59,621

5,577,484

6,058,418

6,189,924

6,423,849

One-Quarter Cent

Sales Tax Debt

Reserve Fund

4,571,836

6,372,113

2008

2009

2010

20tt
20t2

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

* Sales tax lery above dedicates 28 percent of collections to Capital Projects of which 60 percent can be used for debt service

Notes: Beginning fiscal year 2007, the City has entered into a Cooperative Endeavor Agreement with

the Calcasieu Parish Policy Jury to pool gaming on a parish-wide basis.

Golden Nugget Casino opened in December 2014.

2009 property tax revenues reflect the reassement ofproperty in 2008.

2013 property tax revenues reflect the reassement ofproperty in20l2.
2017 property tax revenues reflect the reassement ofproperty in 2016.

2016 15 year quarter cent sales tax began January 2016

Monthly Sales Tax Receipts 287o Dedicated to Capital Projects (included in above)

Collection Month 2010

$ 3%OU
411,697
542,866
369.537
4t3,60t
476,895
41t,099
4l8,l3l
454,755
4l 1,539

417,784
427,158

20r I
$ 426J89

420,85 I

553,457
386,1 t5
420,739
478,140

438799
423,997
467,521
426,33t
443,15t

20092008 2012

November
December
January

February
March
April
May
June

July
August
September

October
Total

405,728
393,645
588,320
5l1.944
436,991
498,970
438.287

466,481
478,38 I
443,t14
467,114

s 457,279
45t,762
598,144
424,821
43 1,582

508,343
444,422
460,r65
489,6r0
486,688
4t6,796
444,037

$ 5,613,650

s 455.770
465.968
622.484
418.689
409.673
545.560
437.274
425.190
467.518
424,589
428.762

433,399

$ 5,534,877 $ 5,147,087
432,773 454,344re
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Riverboat

Gaming

Tax

Electric

Utility

Franchise

Gas

Utility

Franchise

Cable

Television

Franchise

Charges for

Services User

Fees Wastewater

$ 8,399,666

9,099,020

8,959,034

9, l l 3,904

9,713,282

9"691,942

9,664,375

l 1,054,210

10,799,768

10,657,944

5,215,659

3,964,234

4, l 83,356

4,346,623

3,463,387

4,009,040

4,442,183

4,339,524

4,098,903

4,295,722

632,849

588,93 l
590,275

483,307

405,302

396,650

474,212

420,979

360,464

406,840

993,758

893, I 36

929,232

957,127

1,004,902

1,014,91l

1,036,5r l
976,353

1,013,598

1,020,114

s 7,9s3,166

8,149,099

8,934,31 l
10,191,203

I1,001,880

11,601,657

12,519,677

13,323,763

13,281"720

13,221,450

$ 439,768
446,902
580,76 I
424,817
447,863
521,802
470,869
493,820
497,303
487,062
487,685
480,1 l 7

$ 5,778,769

2015

@
s41,692
702,020
500,766
514,014
617,823
540,169
s47,963
598,577
577,527
s49,074
566,067

_[_6,?85,42!_

2016

$ 535.0 D
533,725

694,329
512,445
519,495
652,3t6
548,264
565,63 l
611,634
611,509
557,614
s90,743

2017

$ 544,564
564"660
730,672
527.052
s20,04s
665,259
591,265
597,337
686,415
571,248
583,584
612,602

_s 7,194J03_

2013 20r4
45 1,83 8

s23,949
609,804
425,861
474.515
528,496
529,857
526,757
538,256
5 19,849

513,189
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CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA
Fund Balances of Governmental Funds

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(modified accrual basis of accounting)

(amounts expressed in thousands)

2008 2009 2010 20il 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017
Ceneral Fund

Reserved

Unreserved
Nonspendable
Committed

Unassigned
Total General Fund

All other governmental funds
Reserved

$ 3,289,392 $ 230,186 $ 297,834
28,820,688 28,007,800 25,483,998

$ 486,580 $ s43.389 $ 478.983 $ s2s,480 $ 621,436 $ 666,530 $ 684.120
2,895,603 2,567,929 2,363,360 2,853,169 2,413,358 2,06t,843 3,561,194

2t,932,680 22,24s,646 23,0s3,203 2s,996,329 28,338,533 27,297,165 30,764,493
32,110,080 28,237,986 25,781,832 25,3t4,863 2fi46g64 25,595546 293749n 3t373,3?? 30,0r5J38 35.009"80?

23,28s,955 19,013.569 t6,022,8s3
Unreserved, reported in:

Special revenue funds 8,778,666 12,922,418 14,598,101

Capital projects funds 51,085,939 43,174.593 77,320,653
Nonspendable
Restricted

Commifted
Assigned

27 ,460 51,623 50,925 30,840 46,917 48,896 62J65
44,338,979 31,73t,73t 23,962,2tt 22,754,774 24,595,560 3t,272,991 33,409,232
5t,269,454 s0,934,223 s7,358,834 57,603,158 65,108,250 72,1t6,986 ss,063,188
8,388,325 12,033,195 7,674,979 10,491,959 13,392,519 9,851,74s 8,994,330

Tdd dl dh€tgolorrl@td fudt _-__-!1!l9l!9_ 10?,941,607 lozl.O24.2l8 giJ5ofl, E9,04(949 ,0.E80ija 1o3J43246 tt3pr0,6tE --- 9;mril-
Tdd.ll EolllrrlMlrltur(b s ll5r@.40 I103.148,566 $ t3.],72J,439 S t20,339,0E1 I120,t07,736 S [4.942.4S5 f t20J55.709 t t]4.516.623 S t4.t.Jt6.t56 t 82.518.722

'Th.inc'!!sintundt hcc in fisc.l yc{r 2010 @ dw FiM y lo uspo hond proeik t@iEd durinS lnc p6iod f6 cqitrl projei! ed spent in futft rirs.. Nde GASB 54 doprcd itr 201 I -
* cAsB 5E ad@pr.d in 2ot 5

128



CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA
Changes in Fund Balances ofGovemmental Funds

Last Ten Fiscal Years
(modified accrual basis of accounting)

FY 2008 F\'.2009 FY 2010 FY 2011

$ 62.638.371

6,633,096
10,759,547
1 3,1 34,1 06

383,267
2,826,993

FY 20t3

$ 67,508,949
6,349,383
9,752,774

14,375,194
247,061

r,888,663

t-Y 2012 FY 2014 FY 2015 FY 2016 FY 2017
Revenues:
Taxes
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and tbrfbitures
Mrscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current operating:

General government
Finance
Human Resources

Fire
Police
Public works
Planning and development
Communrty services
General services

Capital prqects
Debt service:
Principal retirement

Bond issuance costs

lnterest and fiscal charges

Total expenditures

Excess (defi ciency) of revenues

over expenditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Transf'ers rn
Transt'ers out
Issuance ofdebt - ret'unding bonds
Issuance ofdebt
Premium on debt issuance
Bond reflnding-cost of issuance

Pymnt refirnded bond escrw-current

$ 60,681 ,304
6,351,695

I 0,830,886
r r ,300,612

338,073
2,708,846

92,217,416

2,727,390
I ,496,01 0

352,726
12,729,943
I 5,775,008
20,212,640
2,596,371
4,780,142
4,096,854

24,458,504

6,421,242
I,414,680
2,109,632

99.237 ,142

2,876,353
1,498,360

312,168
13,293,542
l 7, I 08,345
21,183,964
2,785,459
4,913,007
4,127,074

27,249,392

5,836,224

4.247.927
to-ffi

$ 81,278,866
9,940,761

12,965,781
l 6,050,508

186,042
t,632,574

122,054,532

3,0s9,233
t,739,594

374,72t
14,938,379
l 8,530,92 l
23,986,800
2.521,354
5.509,270
4.629.048

33,685.525

5,722.670

2.8s4.289

'TZBI.IdA-

$ 88.826.340

6,597,424
10,603,497
16,286,940

301,103
2,154,234

t24,769,538

3,204,360
I ,714,273

397,613
r 5,870,09 r

r 9,770,508
26,42t,585
2,61t,276
5,998,397
4,788,886

50,470,05 I

6,664,637

2.719.730
i4-0'6t1767

6,600.61 8 4,582,043
97,056.529 94,208,025

$ 62,863,828
7,63s,s03
9,4t7,429

10,232,4s7
306,694

2,449,791
1,352,3s8

288,724
12.634,153
14,094,524
20,648, I 06
2,805,009
4,662,889
5.554.769

I 9. I 36,059

3,637,281

2.905.960

$ 63,906,886
6,104,766
8,85 1,035

10,440,834
322,461

$ 6s,208,410

5,526,807
8,264,523

r3,680,453
3 l 1,388

2,351,245

$ 71,638,915
6,686,060

12,275,671
15,290,879

253,920
1,695,540

$ 77,964,674
6,657,t20

10,364,017
16,016,725

1 95,1 39
3,064,934

9s,342,826 100,122,024 107,840,985 fi4,262,609

2,598,746
1,389,805

3 l 7,809
13.074,636
14,196,539
20,039, l 83
2,305,258
4,545,957
4.254,079

28,093,724

3,991,176

2.758.796

96,375,380

2,857,662
1,488,859

313,428
12,940,071
16,200,141
20,324,226

3,028,735
4,721,208
4,1 68,1 95

25,022,510

5,449,519
147,128

3,982,94s
100,644,647

2,892,999
1,524,491

309,1 l 3

13.523.625
l8,ll 1,542
21,449,006
2,793,690
5,516.244
4,453.969

2l .031 .285

6,947,090

3,603,630

3,016,20'7
1,610,407

367,152
14,493,469
18,096,917
22,093,94't

2,679,361
5,389,074
4,415,87 |

14,829,729

5,405,386

4.59 | .559

2,94s,962
1,594,704

339,09 l
14,481,544
17,glL"230
22,045,127

2,535,761
5,343,835
4,253,097

I 8,090,669

6,790,771

3,398,436
I 02.356.684 99.730.227 96.989.07990,169.623 97.565.708

6.886.906

r 7,610,9r 3 17,216,245
(24,489,2_60) (2s,770,636)

:-

(3,3s7,683) (7.O19.726\ ( I 0,088.989)

t9,55t,t76
(22,9 | s,600)

4.222.06'7

14,552,Ot3
(r 8,612,300)

57.015,000
2,174,886

(4.269,267)

I 5, I 53,082
( I 8,982, I 35 )

3.7 t3.962

21,967,386
(25,731,31 l)

833.344

21,798,979
(24,694,561)

98.037

(2.234.660') 8,1 r0,758 17.273.530 4,502,728 ( r 5,861,869)

21,876,158 4r,585,71l
(26,354,532) (44,101,497)

l 5,825,000
- 6,812,591

906,376
(270,6t7\

Pymnt refirnded bond escrw-advanci (17,735,000)
Pymnt ref unded bond escrw-rnterest'
iotal other fi nancin g sources( uses ) TS783,l 7 ) ----TE554l9Tt ----TW

Net chanse in fund balances -$----S2- ,[-lUllZgZtI -l--jq.iz1.qz]-
Debt service as a percentage of

noncapital expenditures

____-__-___-____ __________:_
(l rs,09r) 8s'7,643

_$.__(4194.3sQ_ _$.__l!11,346).

- (14,995,000)

(2,e30,s81) (2,7e7,s4s) (3,012,61s)

$ (s.r6s.24r) $ s.3

4.296.805

$ 8.799.s31

26,615,768
(29,551,673)
24. I 40.000

8.012.943
3.687.728
(378,726)

(s,920,000)
( I 9,720,000)

( r ,801,60s)
s,084,43s

_\_!jlJJl)4)_

10.23o/o9 59% 9.37% 12.29o/o 10.47o/o12 2904 13.53% 13 240/o

GovernmentRl Activities Trx Revenues by Source
Last Ten l'iscal Years

(modified occrual basis of accounting)

Employee's Pry

Quarter cent
Sales Tax ('95)

$ s,0l2,l 94

4,932,01s
4,595,619
4,750,340

4,985, l r 3

5, I 59,62 l
5,577,484
6,0s8,41 8

6.189.924

1,25,423,849

Onc-Quartcr C'ent

Sales Tax Debt
Reserve l'und
$-

4,57 1,836

6.372.n3

1290%

Riverboat
Caming

Tax

$ 8,199,666
9,099,020
8,959,034

9,1 13,904

9,713,282
9,69t,942
9,664,375

I 1,054,210

10,799,768

10,6s7,944

Electric
Utility

Franchise

$ 5215,659
3,964,234
4, r 83,356
4,346,623
3,463,387

4,009,040

4,442,183

4,339,524
4,098,903

4,295,722

Gas

Utility
Franchise

(lable

Television
l'ranchise

Fiscal
Year

Property
Tax

$ 65D,603
7,348,241

7,489,471

7,923,348
7,707 ,653
8,176,273

8,63 1,89s

9,163,826
10,21 7,089

10,616,469

Additional
One Percent One Percent

Sales Tax ('65) Sales Tax ('87)

$ 20,048,716 $ 20,048,779

19,767,418 19,767,417

18,382,454 18,382,4s4

18,994,509 18,994,509

19,940,426 19,940,425

20,638,460 20,638,461

22,309,909 22.309,909
24,233,672 24,233,672

24,759,696 24,759,696
2s,695,368 25,695,368

2008

2009

20 t0
201 I

2012
2013
20t4
20ts
2016
2017

632,849

588,93 l
590,275

483,307

405,302

396,6s0

474,212
420,979

360,464

406,840

993,758

893, l 36

929,232

957.127

1,004,902

I ,0 t4,91 I

I,036,5 I I

976,353
I,01 3,598

1,020,r 14



CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA
Assessed and Estimated Actual Value of Taxable Property

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Personal, Business

Industry

Fiscal Year
Ended

Tax
Year

Assessed

Value

Real Property and Mobile
Estimated

Actual
Value

Assessed

Value

Estimated

Actual
Value

2008

2009

2010

20tt
2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

2007

2008

2009

2010

201 I

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

295,823,700

352,041,t71

362,072,150

368,075,460

371,813,160

408,917,100

432,041,780

483,192,030

516,842,790

541 ,069,35 I

2,958,237,000

3,520,411,710

3,620,721,500

3,680,756,600

3,718,13 1,600

4,089,171,000

4,320,417,800

4,831,920,800

5,168,427,900

5,410,693,510

$ 114,102,720

116,471,700

109,775,460

I13,615,250

I I1,831,890

106,665,010

148,41 8,7 l0
168,282,760

164,358,1 l0
159,795,020

$ 760,684,800

776,478,000

731,836,400

757,435,000

745,545,933

7l 1,100,067

989,458,067

1,121,935,067

1,095,720,733

1,065,300,133

Note:

(1) Ratios of assessed valuation to actual value are established by state law. Assessment ratios currently

applicable to various classes of property are as follows:

lUYo - Land and residential improvements

l5% - Commercial improvements

I 5% - Personal property

25% - Public Utilities

(2) All property assessments are made by the Calcasieu Parish Assessor or the Louisiana Tax Commission.

Required reassessments of all properties were made in 2008, 2012 and2016.

Source: Calcasieu Parish Sheriff& Tax Collector
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Assessed

Value

Estimated

Actual
Value

Estimated

Actual
Value

Total
Direct
Tax
Rate

Public Utilities Total all Property Assessed

Value as a

Percentage of
Actual Value

$ 18,450,920

18,738,980

18,833,580

19,094,820

16,539,480

t7,706,110

18,114,470

17,272,840

19,s43,930

19,986,390

$ 73,803,680

74,955,920

75,334,320

76,379,280

66,157,920

70,824,440

72,457,990

71,272,840

78,t75,720
79,945,560

$ 3,792,725,480

4,371,845,630

4,427,892,220

4,514,570,880

4,529,835,453

4,871,095,507

5,382,333,747

6,025,078,707

6,342,324,353

6,555,939,203

Assessed

Value

$ 428,377,340

487 ,251,851
490,681,190

500,785,530

500, I 84,530

533,288,220

598,574,960

669,293,0s0

700,744,830

720,850,761

16.09

15.35

15.35

15.35

15.35

15.35

1s.35

15.35

15.35

15.23

11.29%

11.00%

11.08%

11.09%

tl.04%
10.95%

tt.t2%
tt.tt%
11 .05o/o

11.00%
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City of Lake Charles

CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA
Property Tax Millage Rates

Direct and Overlapping Governments

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Calcasieu Parish School Board Calcasieu Parish

Calendar Fiscal

Year Year

General and

Special Revenue

Funds Total

Debt

General Service

Fund Funds Total

Parish

Police Road Gravity
Jury Districts Drainage

Recreation

and Com Fire

Centers Protection

Airport Parish

Harbor& Water& Parish

Terminal Sewer Total

2007

2008

2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

201s

2016

2008

2009

20r0

20lL
2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

16.09

15.35

r5.35

15.35

15.35

r5.35

15.35

r5.35

15.23

15.23

t 6.09

15.35

15.35

r 5.35

15.35

15.35

r5.35

r 5.35

15.23

15.23

18.72

18.72

18.72

18.72

18.72

18.04

18.04

18.04

17.23

t7.23

27.50

24.00

24.00

24.00

24.00

22.60

22.20

22.20

2l .00

21.00

46.22

42.72

42.72

42.72

42.04

40.64

40.24

40.24

38.23

38.23

41.5

39.28

33.02

33.02

33.82

34.01

34.78

35.46

32.86

34.29

3.88

3.67

3.67

3.67

3.53

3.53

4.06

4.06

3.88

3.88

5.79

5.29

5.79

5.79

5.57

5.57

5.57

5.57

5.79

5.79

7.00

7.00

5.65

4.79

5.77

5.77

5.32

7.40

7.93

7.59

I 1.54

r r.08

I 1.08

I 1.08

10.8s

10.85

10.85

r 0.85

11.54

I 1.54

8.80

8.34

8.34

8.34

8.14

8.14

8.14

8.19

8.58

8.58

18.t4

18.46

r 5.59

15.59

\5.37

15.37

15.37

15.37

12.51

12.43

96.95

93.12

83.14

82.28

83.05

83.24

84.09

86.90

83.09

84.1 0

Source: ldformation obtained llom Calcacsieu Parish Tax Ass€ssor

Note: Overlapping rares are rhose oflocsl govemmental entities that apply to property owners within lhe City of Lake Charles. Not all overlapping ral€s apply to all

property owners.
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CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA
Principal Property Taxpayers

Tax Year December 3 I , 20 I 6 and December 3 l, 2007

for Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2017 and September 30, 2008

2017

Taxpaver

Golden Nugget Lake Charles LLC

PNK (Lake Charles) LLC

Entergy GulfStates Louisiana LLC

IFG Port Holdings, LLC

JP Morgan Chase Bank NA

Wal-Mart Real Esttae Business Trust

Women & Children's Hospital LLC

Bolton Ford LLC

Carboline CO

Crowley Marine Services

Bell South Telecommunications

Capital One NA
* Hibernia in 2002

Harrah's Entertainment Inc
* Players in 1998

Cameron State Bank

Firestone Synthetic Rubber

Assessed

Valuation

2016 Rank

Percentage
of Total

Valuation

Assessed

Valuation

2007 Rank

Percentage
of Total

ValuationType of Business

HoteVCasino

HoteUCasino

Electric Utility

Warehousing and

Storage

Bank

Retail

Hospital

Automotive
Dealership

Petrochernical

Manufacturing

Facilities Support

Services

Telephone

Bank

Riverboat Casino

Bank

Petrochemical

Manufacturing

$s4,72s,790

44,004,940

11,322,620

6,243,470

4,700, I 80

4,380, I 30

3,529, l 50

3,282,320

2,9ss,690

2,911,090

7.59 vo

6.10 o/o 35,946,860

0.87 o/o 6,492,560

0.65 o/o

1.57 o/o 3,332,480

0.61 % 8,345,010

0.49 o/o 4,456,090

0.46 %

0.4r %

0.40 %

9,015,720

s,643,400

3,5 I 1,760

3,415,940

I

4

I

2

3

7.37 %

t.33 %

0.68 %

t.7t %

0.91 %

1.85 Yo

t.t6 %

0.72 o/o

0.70 o/o

0.68 o/o

4

5

6

7

8

9

l0

9

J

6

2

5

7

8

3,316,970 l0

$ r38,055,380 19.15% $83,476,790 t7.tt%

2017 Total city valuation:

2008 Total city valuation:

Source: Calcasieu Parish Tax Collector

$

$

720,850,761

487,5t9,8s2
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CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA
Property Tax Levies and Collections

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal

Year

Tax

Year

Total Tax

Levy

s 6,896,377

7,483,466

7,s34,39s

7,692,549

7,648,874

8, r 50,758

8,613,145

9,142,203

10,283,298

10,684,965

Less:

Cancellations

and

Reductions

83,620

144,030

46,098

60,903

44,979

48,846

47,999

58,897

57,120

62,362

Net Tax

Levy

$ 6,812,757

7,339,436

7,488,297

7 ,631,646

7,603,895

8,10t,912

8,565,146

9,083,306

10,226,t78

10,622,603

2008

2009

2010

20tt
2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

2017

2007

2008

2009

2010

201 I

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

Source: Calcasieu Parish Sheriff& Tax Collector
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Less:

Outstanding

Delinquent

Taxes

Net Total

Taxes

Collected

Percent of
Net Taxes

Collected

Percent of
Delinquent

Taxes to

Net Levy

t.t6 %

0.80

0.65

0.46

0.24

0.27

0.29

0.22

0.34

0.32

79,015

58,377

48,697

35,458

18,208

21,530

24,951

20,265

34,563

34,374

$ 6,733,742

7 ,281,059

7,439,600

7,596,188

7,585,687

8,080,382

8,540,195

9,063,041

10,191,615

10,588,229

98.84 %

99.20

99.35

99.54

99.76

99.73

99.71

99.78

99.66

99.68
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CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA
Sales Tax Rates

Direct and Overlapping Govemments

Last Ten Fiscal Years

City of Lake Charles (lalcasieu Parish State of Louisiana

Dedicated l7o School Board

General Salaries

Law

Enforcement

'I'ourism

(ieneral Promotion

Calendar Fiscal General

Year Year Fund

General F'und

Public Safety Public Works

Waste

Water Recreation

Capital

Project

0.28o/o

0.28o/o

0.28o/o

0.28o/o

0.28o/o

0.28o/o

0.28o/o

0.28o/o

0.28o/o

0.28o/o

Employee's

Pay

0.25o/o

0.250/o

0.25o/o

0.25o/o

0.25o/o

0.25o/o

0.25o/o
*0.25o/o

'o.5oo/o
*o.5ool,

'fotal

2008

2009

20r0

201 I

2012

2013

2014

201s

2016

2017

0.20o/o

0.20o/o

0.20o/o

0.20yo

0.20%

0.20o/o

0.20Yo

0.200/o

0.20o/o

0.20o/o

0.28o/o

0.28o/o

0.28o/o

0.28o/o

0.28o/o

0.28o/o

0.28o/o

0.28o/o

0.28o/o

0.28o/o

0.l6Yo

0.160/o

0.160/o

0.16%

0.160/o

0.160/o

0.160/o

0.160/o

0.160/o

0.160/o

0.08%

0.08%

0.08o/o

0.08%

0.08%

0.08%

0.08%

0.08%

0.08o/"

0.08%

l.50Yo

1.50o/o

1.50o/o

1.500h

1.50%

t.50%

1.50o/o

1.50o/o

t50vo

1.500/o

0.50Yo

0.50Yo

0.50o/o

0.50Yo

0.50%

0.50%

0.50Yo

*l.00Yo

l.00vo

1.00o/o

0.7s%o

0.7s%o

0.75Yo

0.7 5o/o

0.'150/o

0.'150/o

0.75Yo

0.7 50/o

0.7 5o/o

0.75o/o

9.00o/o

9.00o/o

9.00o/o

9.00o/o

9.00o/o

9.00o/o

9.000/o

9.250/o

10.75o/o

10.75o/o

2009 1.00o/o

2010 1.00o/o

2011 1.00o/o

2012 1.00%

2013 t.00%

2014 1.00o/o

20t 5 l.000/o

2016 1.00o/o

2017 1.00o/o

201 8 I .00o/"

3.97o/o 0.03o/o

3.97o/o 0.03o/o

3.97o/o 0.03o/o

3.97o/o 0.03o/o

3.97"/o 0.03o/o

3.97% 0.03yo

3.97o/o 0.03o/o

3.97o/o 0.03o/o

**4.97Yo 0.03o/o

**4.97Yo 0.03o/o

*Rate increased from 0.50% to 1.00% July 1,2015
*Rate 

increased from 0.257oto 0.50% January 1,2016
**Rate increased from3.97o/oto 4.97o/o April l, 2016

Source: Information obtained from Calcacsieu Parish Sales and Use Tax office.
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CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA
Principal Sales Taxpayers

Tax Year June 30, 2016 andJune30,2007

for Fiscal Year Ended September 30,2017 and September 30, 2008

2017

Percentage

of Total

Valuation

2008

Type of Business

Retail

Govemment

Hotel and Casino

Hotel and Casino

Grocery

Health Care

Building Supply

Building Supply

Retail

Grocery

Retail

2017 Total sales tax: $

2008 Total sales tax: $

Tax

Paid

$5,844,570

3,060,502

1,850,107

1,309,336

1,055,333

929,775

898,679

628,982

586,831

574,103

$ 16,738,218

64,231,599

44,942,517

Tax

Paid

$6,423,577

2,706,770

l,l 30,368

848,971

618,965

968,283

740,079

768,557.64

61 8,849.98

464,367

$ 15,288,788

Percentage

of Total

Valuation

14.29o/o

6.02%

2.52%

1.89o/o

1.38o/o

2.15o/o

1.65%

t.7t%

1.38o/o

1.03o/o

34.02%

Rank

1

2

J

4

5

6

7

8

9

l0

Rank

9.10%

4.76%

2.88o/o

2.04o/o

1.640/o

1.45o/o

r.40%

0.98%

0.91o/o

0.89%

J

5

8

4

7

6

9

10

26.06%
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CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA
Rati6 of Outslanding Dcbt

Las( Tcn Fiscal Yca6

Bonded Debt

Fiscrl

Yerr

LCDA Deferrcd Amounl 2001 Dcfcrred Amount 2010

PeBion LCDA Se*er LCDA Sser LCDA Public LCDA Public LCDA Public

Refundint Scwcr Rcfundin8 Rcfunding Improvement Improvemeot lmprovemcnt

Bonds Bondt Bonds Bonds Bon& 2007 Bonds Bonds

D.fercd Amount 2014 Deferred Amouna 2017 Deferr€d Amounl

LCDA Public LCDA Public LCDA Public LCDA Public LCDA Public

Improvcmant lmprovemcnl lmprovement lmprovcmcnt lmprovcment

L.ke Ch.rles Totrl Tot.l Per.ent.ge

Citycoun Lo.ns ofAll ofPeBon.l Per

DEQ Losn Building Debt Debt ln.ome C.pitr2010 Bonds Refinrncing Bonds 2014 Bonds Refinrn.ing Bonds 2017 Bonds

Tot.l
Bonded

Debt

200t $5,915,000 $ 2t,0t0,000 $

2009 5,005,000 20,t00,000

20t0 4,035,000

201 I 3,005,000

20t2 1,930,000

2013 805,000

2014

2015

2016

2017

- $ 33,370,000 $ t,029,0il $

- 32,t9S,000 973,952

43t,234 30,970,000 91t,823

392,03 I 29,695,000 863.694

352,t2t 2t,370,000 t0t,565

313,625 26,995,000 753,436

274.422 25,565,000 698,307

235.219 9.0t0.000 256.639

t96,016 7,530,000 224,560

156,8 l3

t6,t75,000

t4.905,000

t3.6t0.000

t2,290,000

t0,930,000

9,535,000

8. t00.000

6,600,000

39,280.000

37,705,000

35,960,000

34,t65,000

32,3 t5,000

30,4 t0,000

2t.445.000

6.6t5.000

t.61 1.027

r,570,765

t,470,503

t.370.24t

I,269.979

1.t69,717

t,069.455

259.273

t5,775.000

t5.605.000

t5.430.000 24. t10.000

I 61,324,081

58,273952

93,48 t,084

92,054,691

90,547,164

84,5 12,914

77,t99,357

73,t40,30t

74,93t,634

77,59t.639

2.59% t 855

2.46% 812

3.65% t,298

!.600/" t,279

3.45% t,255

3.17% r,t50

2.92% r,060

2.75% 9t6
2.6t% 9t5

2.69% t,0t0

854.085

7t4,364

7t4.643

3 - $6r,324,08t 3 - $ - $

- 58,271.952

- 93.48 1.084

- 88,t36.490 9t8,20t 3,000,000 3,918,201

- t2,501.896 5,t40,26t 2,905,000 t,045,268

- 76.692,302 5.0t5.6t2 2,805,000 ?.820,6t2

, 7t.052,70t 4,146,649 2,700,000 6,846,649

- 67.3 t5.660 3,934,64t 2,590,000 6,524,648

- 6t,954,395 t0,509,239 2,475,000 t2,9t4,239

3.6t7.72t 57.673,457 17,55t,1t2 2.360,000 t9,9lt,lt2

Notc: Details rcgarding lhc cil)'ls dtstanding dcbl con bc fMd in the nol6 to thc finmcial state@ts.

Nonc of lhis debt is GcMal Obligation Dcbt.

Se thc Schcdulc of Dsnographics md Edmic Slatistis fd pcsnal iMm md populatio dala.
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CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA
Direct and Overlapping Govemmental Activities Debt

As of September 30,2017

Direct

Debt

Percentage

Applicable to

City of
Lake Charles

Amount

Applicable to

Lake CharlesJurisdiction

Direct:

City of Lake Charles

Total direct debt

Overlapping:

Calcasieu Parish School Board

Calcasieu Parish Police Jury

Total overlapping debt

Total Direct and Overlapping Debt

77 .591,639 t00%

27%

7 5o/o

77.591,639

77,591,639

I 75, r 80,000

16,642,7 51

77,591,639

47,408,845

12,428,164

191.822,751 59,837,009

$ 269,414,390 $ 137,428,648

Sources: Assessed value data used to estimate applicable percentages provided by Calcasieu Parish Tax Collector.

Note: Overlapping govemments are those that coincide, at least in part. with the geographic boundaries of the city.

This schedule estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those overlapping govemments that is bome by the residents

and businesses of the City of Lake Charles. This process recognizes that, when considering the govemment's ability to issue

and repay long-term debt, the entire debt burden is bome by the residents, and businesses should be taken into account.

However, this does not imply that every taxpayfl is a resident and therefore responsible for repaying the debt ofeach

overlapping govemment.

The percentage ofoverlapping debt applicable is estimated using ta.xable property values. Applicable percentages were

estimated by determining the portion of the parish's taxable assessed value that is within the govemment's boundaries and

dividing it by the parish's total taxable assessed value.

139



CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA
Computation of Legal Debt Margin

Last Ten Fiscal Years

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Debt limit

Total net debt

applicable to limit

Total net debt

applicable to

the limit as a

percentage of
debt limit

2008 2009

$ sl,7l0 $ s6.732

2010 20ll
s 49.305 $ 50.314

2012 2013

$ s0.258 $ s3.554

2016 2017

$ 70.3 14 $ 72,33060.093 67.169

0

Leqaldebtmargin$51.710 $56.732 $49.305 $s0,314 $50,258 $ 53,554 S 60.093 $ 67.t69 $ 70,314 $ 72,330

0

0% 0%0o/o0%0%0o/o 0% 0%

L*gal Debt Margin Calculation for Fiscal Year 2017

(amounts expressed in thousands)

Assessed value

Add back: exempt real property

Total assessed value

Debt limit (10% oftotal assessed value)

Total outstanding General Obligation Bonds ofCity of Lake Charles

Legal capacity ofCity ofLake Charles for Ceneral Obligation Bonds

Note:

Under state finance law, the City ofLake Charles' outstanding general obligation debt should not exceed l0 percent oftotal assessed

property value. By law, the general obligation debt subject to the limitation may be offset by amounts set aside for repaying general

obligationbonds. TheCityofLakeCharleshadST3,3T2,T6loutstandingbondeddebtatSeptember30,20l5. Noneofthisdebtis

General Obligation Debt secued by ad valorem taxes, and the amount applicable to the legal debt limitation is therefore zero.

All City ofLake Charles general obligation debt was paid in fiscal ye r 1997.

$ 720,851

2,459

$ 723,3 l0

72.330

$ 72.330
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CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA
Demographic and Economic Statistics

Last Ten Calendar Years

Calendar

Year

Median

Age

34.5

35.3

35.3

3s.9

35.0

35.0

34.1

31.8

34.1

Unemployment

Percentage

Rate

Personal

Income

(amts in

Population thousands)

Per

Capita

Personal

Income (l)

Public

City School

Enrollment

(K-12 Grades)

Private Total

City School City School

Enrollment Enrollment

(K-12 Grades) (K-12 Grades)

2008

2009

2010

20tt
2012

20t3

2014

2015

2016

Notes:

71,757 $

71,757

71,993

72,177

73,474

74,024

74,889

76,070

76,848

2,371,425

2,371,425

2,558,631

2,621,757

2.668.282

2,663,459

2.683,273

2,795,649

2,879,1r0

33,048

33,048

35,540

36,324

36,316

35,981

3s,830

36,75t

37,465

12,783

12,566

12,034

12,399

13,375

I 3,539

I J,JJJ

13,357

13,45 I

2,741

, 57S

2,465

3,482

3,099

3,974

4,435

4,430

3,998

15.524

I 5,141

14,499

l 5,881

t6-474

t7,513

17,768

17.787

17,449

5.9 o/o

1.3

6.3

6.8

6.1

5.6

5.8

4.2

4.2

(l)

(2)

Estimates for population, income, age and unemployment provided by

the Bureau of Labor Statistics and the US Census Bureau

School enrollment includes public and state approved private schools only

as provided by the Calcasieu Parish School Board and the Louisiana Department ofEducation
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CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA
Principal Employers in the MSA

Calendar Year 2017 and 2008

2017

Employer

Type of
Business

Percentage

Number of of
Employees Rank Total MSA

Percentage

Number of of
Employees Rank Total MSA

4.850 5.4o/o

1.2o/or,039 9

Calcasieu Parish School Board

Lake Charles Memorial Hospital

Tumer Industries Group

Golden Nugget

L'Auberge Du Lac

Citgo Petroleum

Christus St. Patrick's Hospital

Calcasieu Parish Sheriffs Office

City of Lake Charles

Northrop Grumman

Tumer Industries

Axiall Corporation (formerly PPG)

Calcasieu Parish Police Jury

Isle of Capri Casino

Education

Health Care

Contractor

Gaming

Gaming

Oil Products

Health Care

Law Enforcement

Government

Aircraft
Maintenance/
Repair

Fabrication

Basic Chemical

Government

Gaming

4,899 r

2,148 2

1,650 3

1,413 4

1,300 5

1,1 13 6

915 7

0.01

869 8

8r0 9

2.0%

l.5Yo

l.3o/o

l.2o/o

1.0%

0.8%

0.8%

0.7o/o

0.7o/o

2,400

1,27 5

1,085

906

2,250

1,296

1,173

1,171

2.1vo

1.4o/o

1.2o/o

2.5o/o

\.4%

1.3%

t.3vo

2

5

8

3

4

6

7

72t

_l-5,83!_ _r4.4%_ _r7A4s_ te.%

Source: SWLA Economic Development Alliance and Imperial Calcasieu Regional Planning and Development (Major Employers

in Southwest Lousisiana with 100+ full-time, non-contract employees)

MSA: Metropolitan Statistical Area includes all of Calcasieu and Cameron Parish. All top ten employers are in Calcasieu Parish

2017

Total employment: Calcasieu Parish r 09,856 89.499
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CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA
Full-time Equivalent City Employees by Function

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Functions/Programs 2008 2009 20r0

48.5

30

5

r90

192

167

65

19

56

25

30.5

77

2013

46.5

30

4

182

189

157

65

l9
56

24

27.5

71

2014

46.5

30

4

182

189

157

65

19

56

24

27.5

7t

2015

46.5

30

4

182

196

165.5

65.5

19.5

58.5

25

29

86.5

2016

46.5

30

4

182

t96
165.5

65.5

19.5

58.5

25

29

86.5

20172011 2012

General govemment

Finance (includes

Water business office)

Human Resources

Public safety

Fire

Police

Public works

Waste water

Transit

Water utility
Planning and development

General services

Community Services

Total

46.546.54746

30

5

190

194

166

64

19

57

24

JJ

78

30

5

190

192

166

64

l9
57

24

33

77

30

4

182

189

157

65

t9

56

24

27.5

7l

30

4

182

189

157

65

l9
56

24

27.5

71

30

4

182

196

165.5

65.5

19.5

58.5

25

30

87

906 904 905 871 871 871 871 908 908 909.5

Source: City budget reports

Note: Personnel count includes full time and regular part-time positions. Temporary and seasonal employees are not included.
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CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA
Operating Indicators by Function

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year
Function
General govemment
* Legal: request for legal action

Printing/communication:
* Number of mail pieces metered

Risk Management
Accident reports/investigations

Claims
Finance/includes Water Business

Checks issued

Occupational licenses processed

Purchase orders processed

Water: number of customers

Water: Average daily consumption
(millions of gallons per day)

Human Resources

Public safety
Fire: Calls for service

* Fire: Code inspections
Police: Calls for service

Public works
Solid Waste

* Tons garbage collected
* Tons incinerated
* Tons trash collected
* Streets: Work orders
* Transit: Bus riders
* Vehicle Maintenance: Work orderr
* Waste water: Work orders

Planning and development
Building permits issued

Community Development
* Down Payment Assistance
* Rehab/Reconstruction
* Street Projects

Community Services

Recreation and parks

* Athletic teams
* Summer camp attendance
+ Civic Center: Events

Golf Course: Rounds of golf
Art Center/museum

* Art exhibits
* Concerts/Events

Source: Various city departments

* Prior year statistics not available.
+ Includes toumament teams

2008 2009 2010 20ll

239 199

67,550 72,701

626 544 632
277 178 289

2012 20 l3 2014

t02

130,336 175,019 100,651 121,273

443 377 415 457

208 186 205 226

7587965l90

2015

103

8s.85 I

11,652

5,193

2,694
29,980

8.75

503 553

249 273

2016 2017

79,967 6t,347

Applications received 7ll 961 1,000

New hires 483 462 425

Employee Health Fair Participatior 268 285 300

l 5,356
5,431

3,738
28,147

t0.79

15,543 14,760
6,2't3 6,031

3,290 2,881

28,124 28,886
9.33 8.87

2,571 2,588 2,790
2,775 3,594 4,465

93,886 90,995 96,732

26,324 26320 25,814
3,338 2,322 2,905

10,682 9,583 7 ,930
647 1,289 1,863

178,889 t75,875 190,834

3,530 4,291 5,867
3,337 9,508 I 1,100

6,287 4,162 6,395

22 l7 22

889
630

23,699 19,'150 12,025
5,845 5,382 5,134
2,800 2,825 2,653

28,926 29,704 30,042
9.03 8.65 8.42

1,250 t,328 1,100

364 436 325

325 375 450

558
322

13,520 tt,4l2
s,206 s,206
2,938 2,840

30,226 30,862
8.68 10.73

t4,927
6,027
2,78s

28,775

9.05

t,327
432
320

956
417

405

971 l,0l l
416 412

530 450

2,863 2,768 2,807 2,996
7,305 4,000 7,386 2,929

107,100 108,064 l25,l6l 121,384

24,515 23,95t 25,018 25,563
4,857 4,t63 4,340 8,343

5.957 6,208 6,212 7,053

2,708 1,234 1,3',10 1,734

2t9,802 223,407 228,068 267,126

5,689 5,841 5,877 5,498

5,490 6,000 12,371 I1,898

3.299 3,619 3,979
2,929 2,929 2,929

106,It0 130,060 128,351

25,855 26,782 27,048
4,920 4,761 4,351
7 ,032 7,295 7 ,557
1,556 2,054 2,054

265,459 258,442 262,603

6,078 6,598 6,444
1t,787 13,823 I 1,195

6,073 4,356 4,762 4,122 4,603 4,840 4,331

279 292 3l I 313 877* 913-

4',10 219 480 472 447 425 430

356 377 358 368 353 352 340

32,969 36,464 23,852 3 1,900 30,3 l8 36,31't 36,641

13 9

43 35

t7
5

0

823
355

356

33,000

l6
28

l5
t2

I

l6
l19

24
l3
2

t7
l2
2

l5
24

l4
8

I

l5
l9

ll 3

36
02

808 808

355 355

344 332
32,780 30,439

ll
100

l6
25

l5
26

l6
t6
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CITY OF LAKE CHARLES, LOUISIANA
Capital Assets Statistics by Function

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Fiscal Year
Function

Public safety

Fire Stations in City limits
Fire Stations outside City limits
Police:

Stations

Patrol Units
Public works

Solid Waste/Recycling
Collection trucks

Streets

Streets (miles)
* Streetlights
* Traffic Signals

Transit
Public Buses

Para-ffansit buses

Trolley
Waste water

2008 2009 2010 20ll 2012 2013 2014 201 5 20t6 2017

8

2

8

2

43
lll 87

8

2

8

2

4

92

4

92

4

92

4

92

8

2

8

2

8

2

8

2

4

98

4
94

47
tt4 154

JJJJJJJJ3430)Z

7

600

425

13

7

4

1

600

425

l8

466

34

2

2

17

12

1

I

2

32

460

9,28s
66

7

4

I

600

425

l8

460

2,900
22

32

503

14,000

68

4

2

1

600

425

l8

46s
2,9s4

22

32

534
10,000

66

5

2

I

600

425

l8

430
3,000

22

460 460 460
9,285 9,285 9,285

66 66 66

534 535

10,000 l r,000
62 64

549 553

I 1,000 I 1,000

66 64

7

2

Sanitary sewers (miles) 600

Storm sewers (miles) 425
* Maximum daily treatment capacil 13

(millions of gallons per day)

Water utility
* Water mains (miles)
* Fire hydrants
* Maximum daily capacity

(millions of gallons per day)

Community Services
Recreation and parks

** Park acreage

Parks

Swimming Pools
*** Spray parks

Tennis courts

Community Centers

Civic Center

Golf Course
Art Center/museum

455 458 458

2,820 2,850 2,850

22 22 22

4

2

I

4

2

1

5

2

I

5

2

1

600 600

425 42s
l8 l8

480 480

3100 3150

22 22

502
JJ

2

2

ll
l3

I

I
2

2s6
34

2

1

t7
t2
I
I
2

466
34

2

J

t7
t2
I
I

2

466

34

2

2

17

12

I

I

2

465

2

2

l5
12

1

I
2

600 600

425 425

l8 l8

470 473

3,000 3,050

22 22

s02 502
JJ JJ

22
22

ll il
13 r3

ll
ll
22

s02 502
J5 55

22
22
11 1l
13 13

l1
lt
22

Source: Various city departments
* Prior year statistics not available.
**In 2009 the addition ofRiverside Park increased total acreageto 466.
{'{'*One spray park donated to Ward 3 Recreation District.
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